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HOUSE OF COMMONS

First Session—Twenty-eighth Parliament

1968

STANDING COMMITTEE

PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

Chairman: Mr. OVIDE LAFLAMME

PROCEEDINGS
No. 1

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 24, 1968

ORGANIZATION

Including
APPENDIX A

The items listed in the Revised Main Estimates for 1968-69, relating to
the Chief Electoral Officer and the Representation Commissioner.

ROGER DUHAMEL, F.R.S.C.
QUEEN'S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
OTTAWA, 1968

29120—1



STANDING COMMITTEE ON PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS
Chairman: Mr. Ovide Laflamme’
Vice-Chairman: Mr. James Jerome

and Messrs.

Aiken, MacGuigan, Richard,
Benjamin, Marceau, Ritchie,
Cafik, Mazankowski, Ryan,
Downey, Peddle, Sullivan,
Fortin, Portelance, Trudel,
Howard (Skeena), Prud’homme, Valade—20.

(Quorum 11)
Edouard Thomas,

Clerk of the Committee.
*Mr. Laflamme replaced Mr. Kaplan on October 16, 1968.



House or COMMONS
TuEespAY, October 8, 1968.

Resolved,—That the following Members do compose the Standing Com-
mittee on Privileges and Elections:

Messrs.
Aiken, Kaplan, Richard,
Benjamin, MacGuigan, Ritchie,
Cafik, Marceau, Ryan,
Downey, Mazankowski, Sullivan,
Fortin, Peddle, Trudel,
Howard (Skeena), Portelance, Valade—(20).
Jerome, Prud’homme,

WEDNESDAY, October 16, 1968.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Laflamme be substituted for that of Mr.
Kaplan on the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections.

WEDNESDAY, October 16, 1968.

Ordered,—That, saving always the powers of the Committee of Supply in
relation to the voting of public moneys, the items listed in the Revised Main
Estimates for 1968-69, relating to the Chief Electoral Officer and the
Representation Commissioner, be withdrawn from the Committee of Supply
and referred to the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections.

FripAy, October 18, 1968.

Ordered,—That the subject-matter of Bill C-16, An Act to amend the
Canada Elections Act (Students Franchise), be referred to the Standing Com-
mittee on Privileges and Elections.

ATTEST:

ALISTAIR FRASER,
The Clerk of the House of Commons.

1—3
29120—13
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, October 24, 1968
(1)
The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met this day at
10.38 a.m., for organization purposes.

Members present: Messrs. Cafik, Fortin, Laflamme, MacGuigan, Marceau,
Mazankowski, Portelance, Richard, Ryan, Sullivan, Trudel, Valade (12).

The Clerk of the Committee attending and having called for nominations,
Mr. Ryan moved, seconded by Mr. Marceau, and

Resolved,—That Mr. Laflamme be the Chairman of the Committee.

The Clerk of the Committee, having declared Mr. Laflamme duly elected
Chairman, requested him to take the Chair. Mr. Laflamme took the Chair
and thanked the members of the Committee for the honour bestowed upon
him.

Moved by Mr. Portelance, seconded by Mr. Cafik, and

Resolved,—That Mr. Jerome be elected Vice-Chairman.

Moved by Mr. Ryan, seconded by Mr. Richard, and

Resolved,—That the Committee print 750 copies in English and 350 copies
in French of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

Moved by Mr. Ryan, seconded by Mr. Cafik, and

Resolved,—That a Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure be comprised
of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman and five other members appointed by the
Chairman after consultation with the Whips of the different parties.

Moved by Mr. Marceau, seconded by Mr. Trudel, and

Resolved,—That the items listed in the Revised Main Estimates 1968-69
relating to the Chief Electoral Officer and the Representation Commissioner
referred to the Committee on October 16, 1968, be printed as an Appendix to
the Committee’s Proceedings. (See Appendix A)

The question of obtaining authority to sit while the House is sitting was
referred to the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure.

At 10.55 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee

1—5
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APPENDIX “A"

SECRETARY OF STATE

REVISED ESTIMATES, 1968-69

439



SECRETARY OF STATE 441
No. Change
of Service 1968-69 1967-68
Vote
Increase Decrease
$ $ $ $
F—OFFICE OF THE CHIEF
ELECTORAL OFFICER
(8) |Expenses of elections including the salary of the
Chief Electoral Officer (Details, page 451)...| 14,262,680 121,000 | 14,141,680
45 |[Salaries and Expenses of Office (Details, page
B81 ) 5css s s svnmunn assmsmsen i SRR R e 165, 500 140,900 24,600
14,428,180 261,900 | 14,166,280
SuMMARY
1000 VOUB: . & ol v o5 5i5ieieg sis suorice s imuislals Siesrmon 165,500 140,900 24,600
Authorized by Btatute.......i.coscseesssvores 14,262,680 121,000 | 14,141,680
14,428,180 261,900 | 14,166,280




SECRETARY OF STATE 451
Positions ; Amsallie
FReaes Details of Services
1968-69 | 1967-68 1968-69 1967-68
$ $
F—OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ELECTORAL
OFFICER
Approximate Value of Major Services not included
in these Estimates
Accommodation (provided by the Department of Public
WOLKS) .5 ova s s iR Ak o e meivis s s ASAIL o hAY. 08 75,400 71,400
Accounting and cheque issue services (Comptroller of|
the TPeRsUTY Y. . vuvavvesssidnssais s NNk o « BRI 19,800 16,200
Contributions to Canada Pension Plan Account and
Quebec Pension Plan Account (Treasury Board).. 2,200 2,000
Contributions to Superannuation Account (Treaxury
BOARLA T 7o vt atortortsroristormbrie s worores VRSHUAAL 44 13,200 11,000
Employee surgical-medical insurance premiums (Treas-
UEV BORIA) 205 - o 0t s vnnow stimsnn iy snsioSomai. I 500 1,400
Employee compensation payments (Department of
LABOWIN s 0.0 2.5 e slousicniowosamus- NRIISNE Byg sofisy 2,300 1,100
Carrying of franked mail (Post Office Department)... 5,300 4,800
118,700 107,900
Statutory—Expenses of Elections including the
salary of the Chief Electoral Officer
1 1 [SALARY OF THE CHIEF ELECTORAL OFFICER (CHAP. 39,
1) (1) BTATUTES O ADOBNE. o - . oo ds o sionnbanionsscosmeai 1) 22,680 21,000
EXPENSES OF ELECTIONS (CHAP. 39, BTATUTES OF 1960)..(12)| 14,240,000 100,000
Total, SIAMULOrY TOOM. . ... ovnivercivesossesssssnsiny 14,262,680 121,000
Expenditure
EON=08 s e R I B avre s e b i aeean t s $ 12,725,443
B s st ess vits wsin b sl s s e i o b 734,802
1967-68 (estimated)........ceevvevveennns 602,000
Vote 45—Salaries and Expenses of Office
Salaried Positions:
Administrative and Foreign Service:
2 1 ($10,000-$12,000)
2 3 ($ 8,000-%10,000)
1 1 ($ 6,000-8 8,000)
Technical, Operational and Service:
1 1 ($ 6, 000-$ 8,000)
5 3 ($ 4,000-$ 6,000)




452 REVISED ESTIMATES, 1968-69
Positions
Amount
{onwyoars) Details of Services
1068-69 | 1967-68 1968-69 1967-68
$ $
F—OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ELECTORAL
OFFICER (Continued)
Vote 45 (Continued)
Salaried Positions: (Continued)
Administrative Support:
2 2 ($ 6,000-$ 8,000)
6 5 ($ 4,000-8 6,000)
2 2 (Under $ 4,000)
21 18
(21) (18) |Continuing Establishment 129,800 117,700
(3) Casuals alid OEHEIN, . ... cvenemossimbrsiikmeriabiissnsle 8,900
(24) (18) |Salaries and Wages.... 138,700 117,700
Travelling Expenses.......... 1 3,500 1,200
Freight, Express and Cartage s 100 100
«:(2) 300 200
..(2) 2,900 2,900
..... STE 4| DI RPN ey 11,900
Office Statmnery, Supphes and Eqmpment A7) 4,300 2,000
Furniture and Furnishings..........coeuevns. .(9) 14,500 3,800
Sundries .(12) ,200 1,100
165,500 140,900
Expenditure
BOBB-00:+0 < o o« i s vammbssnms s TS He s $ 107,500
196687 .. .. 5d 5 B BN GRTNATS 0w ToavH 165,867
1967-68 (estimated)..... e 8600 8.6/8 Mo nladle 150, 300




MANPOWER ALLOCATION AND UTILIZATION

1967-68 1966-67
o Strength Strength
ils trengt trengt)
Estab- Estab-
page (Oct. 1, : (Oct. 1,
lishment 1967) lishment 1966)
Man-Years (Numbers)| Man-Years (Numbers)
451 Chief Electoral Officer......... 22 (22) 18 (18)




442 REVISED ESTIMATES, 196869
No. Change
of Service 1968-69 1967-68
Vote
Increase Decrease
$ $ $ 3
N—OFFICE OF THE
REPRESENTATION COMMISSIONER
(S) |Salary of the Representation Commissioner
(Details, paga 488). ... » 5o isbusistos stz saed 27,000 25,000 2,000
(S) |Expenses of Representation Commission (De-|
tails, page 468). . . L e e A o e s s e s 98,000 1880001575 55l v e A 37,000
125,000 mei............ 35,000




466 REVISED ESTIMATES, 1968-69
Positions Amount
(man-years) Details of Services
1968-69 | 1967-68 1968-69 1967-68
$ $
N—OFFICE OF THE REPRESENTATION
COMMISSIONER
Approximate Value of Major Services not included
in these Estimates
Accommodation (provided by the Department of
Publie Works) mit me st L 0 5 ipts.ags mialaiolh s = sole 8,200 11,100
Accounting and cheque issue services (Comptroller of|
L b B e L 3,300 3,600
Contributions to Superannuation Account (Treasury
555 g L o eiee Bl ot 0 il et W Dol RS 9,600 9,200
Contributions to Canada Pension Plan Account and
Quebec Pension Plan Account (Treasury Board).... 1,300 900
Employee surgical-medical insurance premiums (Treas-
T IBORBYS | ol ooy h e e e e o lele wiatiers  dasa s 5.6 87 100 300
22,500 25,100
1 1 |[Statutory—Salary of the Representation Com-
(1 (1) missioner (Chapter 40, Statutes of 1963, as
O T U Rl SRR el B B S (1) 27,000 25,000
Statutory—Expenses of Representation Commission
(Chapter 40, Statutes of 1963)
Salaried positions:
Administrative and Foreign Service:
1 1 (8$14,000-%16,000)
1 ($12,000- £14,000)
1 (%10, 000-812, 000)
1 1 (£6,000-£8,000)
Administrative Support:
3 3 (%6, 000-£8, 000)
5 8 (%4, 000-$6,000)
2 (Under $4, 000)
11 16
(11) RI0)L TRRLRTIER. (e, ol o e s s s i T SR TR bl et 1) 82, 500 98,200
| ———————|Travelling Expenses..........c..coueetenescssnssnnss 2) 2,000 12,000
I'reight, Express, Cartage and Postage.............. (2) 150 150
Telephones and Telegrams...........covvvennnennnn. 2) 2,050 2,050
Professional Services............ooviriieivinennnnnn. (4) 2,000 7,500
Office Stationery, Supplies and Equipment.. ........ 7) 3,000 3,000
BNl and Bunplien. .. ... viss i ss otk sem i (7) 6,200 12,000
ST LS IR el VW B e I (12) 100 100
98, 000 135,000




MANPOWER ALLOCATION AND UTILIZATION

1967-68 196667
o P Strength Strength
ils ishment trengt trengt
Estab- Estab-
page 1968-69 g (Oct. 1, 2 (Oct. 1,
lishment 1967) lishment 1966)
Man-Years | Man-Years (Numbers)| Man-Years (Numbers)
466 Representation Commissioner. 12 17 12) 17 (13)
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OFFICIAL REPORT OF MINUTES
OF
PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

This edition contains the English deliberations
and/or a translation into English of the French.

Copies and complete sets are available to the
public by subscription to the Queen’s Printer.
Cost varies according to Committees.

Translations under the direction of the Bureau
for Translations, Secretary of State.

ALISTAIR FRASER,
The Clerk of the House.




HOUSE OF COMMONS

First Session—Twenty-eighth Parliament

1968

STANDING COMMITTEE

PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

Chairman: Mr. OVIDE LAFLAMME

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE
No. 2

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 31, 1968

The items listed in the Revised Main Estimates for 1968-69,
relating to the Chief Electoral Officer

WITNESS:
Mr. J. M. Hamel, Chief Electoral Officer.

ROGER DUHAMEL, F.R.S.C.
QUEEN’S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
OTTAWA, 1968

29122—1



STANDING COMMITTEE ON PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

Chairman: Mr. Ovide Laflamme
Vice-Chairman: Mr. James Jerome

and Messrs.

Aiken, Marceau, Ritchie,

* Brewin, Mazankowski, * Rose,
Cafik, Peddle, Ryan,
Downey, Portelance, Sullivan,
Fortin, Prud’homme, Trudel,
Ma~Guigan, Richard, Valade—20.

(Quorum 11)
Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.

*Mr. Brewin replaced Mr. Howard (Skeena) on October 24, 1968.
* Mr. Rose replaced Mr. Benjamin on October 28, 1968.



ORDERS OF REFERENCE

THURSDAY, October 24, 1968.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Brewin be substituted for that of Mr.
Howard (Skeena) on the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections.

MonpAy, October 28, 1968.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Rose be substituted for that of Mr.
Benjamin on the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections.

ATTEST:

ALISTAIR FRASER,
The Clerk of the House of Commons.

23
29122—13



REPORTS TO THE HOUSE OF COMMONS

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections has the honour to
present its

FIRST REPORT
Your Committee recommends that it be authorized to sit while the House
is sitting.
Respectfully submitted,

OVIDE LAFLAMME,
Chairman.

(Presented October 31, 1968)

. The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections has the honour to
present its

SEcOND REPORT

Pursuant to its Order of Reference of Wednesday October 16, 1968, your
Committee has considered the items listed in the Revised Main Estimates for
1968-69 relating to the Chief Electoral Officer.

Your Committee commends them to the House.

A copy of the relevant Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence (Issues No.
1 and 2) is tabled.
Respectfully submitted,

OVIDE LAFLAMME,
Chairman.

(Presented October 31, 1968)



=

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, October 31, 1968
(2)

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met this day at
10.08 a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Ovide Laflamme, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cafik, Jerome, Laflamme, MacGuigan, Mazan-
kowski, Peddle, Portelance, Richard, Rose, Sullivan, Trudel, Valade—(12).

Also present: Messrs. Mather, Peters.

In attendance: Mr. J. M. Hamel, Chief Electoral Officer; Mr. R. M. Fau-
velle, Chief Examiner of Elections.

Moved by Mr. MacGuigan and

Resolved,—That the Committee seek the permission to sit during sittings
of the House.

Moved by Mr. MacGuigan and

Resolved,—That a message be conveyed to the Committee on Procedure

of the House asking that Committee to investigate the question of providing
sufficient interpreters to satisfy the requirements of all committee meetings.

Item I of the Chief Electoral Officer’s revised budget for 1968-69 having
been called and a copy of the Chief Electoral Officer’s Report dated September
11, 1968 being tabled, members of the Committee questioned the witness.

The Chief Electoral Officer was requested to provide a breakdown of elec-
tion costs at a later date.

The Committee agreed to report and commend the Revised Estimates
1968-69 for the Chief Electoral Officer to the House.

At noon, the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Thursday, Oct, 31, 1968
e 1010

The Chairman: At the start I would like to
mention that we have had the co-ordinating
meeting of the different committees. It has
been decided that we might sit during the
evenings next week, and for this we will need
a motion from any one of you. We need a
motion to sit while the House is sitting. Dur-
ing the Private Members’ hour, maybe.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Valade: Before submitting this propos-
al, I feel the Committee should give some
thought, especially after the meeting of the
committee chairmen, to the possibility of an
agreement about early morning sessions. I
have no objections to evening sittings but
they do create problems. It means a twelve or
thirteen-hour working day and I wonder if
we can work effectively if we have evening
sittings in addition to a normal day’s work in
other committees, in the House and in our
offices.

The Chairman: Mr. Valade, at the co-
ordinating committee meeting, which includ-
ed members from all parties, the External
Affairs Committee, the Broadcasting Commit-
tee, the Privileges and Elections Committee
and even the Finance committee, it was found
necessary that some committees agree to
evening sessions to make it possible to sit at
all. I take it then that you have no objections
to evening sittings? It was also expected, I
think, that most members would limit them-
selves to membership in two committees.

Mr, Valade: Mr. Chairman, three commit-
tees of which I am a member sit at intervals
of half an hour in the morning, so there is
obviously a conflict here. However, I do not
want to object formally, but I wonder if the
committee would give my suggestion some
serious thought.

[English]

Mr. Mather: Mr. Chairman, on a point of
order.

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Mather: I do not have any interpreta-
tion here.

Mr. Cafik: That is correct. There is none.

Mr. Richard: Is it the intention of the Com-
mittee to sit all the time in the evening, and
never during the day? All the meetings will
be in the evening?

The Chairman: No. Yesterday the co-
ordinating meeting decided to correct the
situation you found yourself in this morning,
Mr. Valade, having to attend two different
committees at the same time. This is to cor-
rect the situation. And in accepting the sched-
ule proposed by the co-ordinating meeting, we
would sit during the evenings next week, and
with sitting during that time we will not have
two different meetings at the same time.

Mr. Valade: Do you mean that this will be
only a temporary arrangement?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Cafik: Do you need a motion on the
floor in order to allow us to sit while the
House is sitting? Is this the object at the
present moment?

The Chairman: Yes. This is the object. We
need a motion from this Committee to put the
motion before the House, to ask its permis-
sion to sit while the House is sitting.

See Minutes of Proceedings.
e 1015

The Chairman: Have you gentlemen
received this report from Mr. Hamel? Do you
have a copy of this report in your hands? We
have here with us today Mr. Jean-Marc
Hamel, who is the Chief Electoral Officer.
With him is Mr. Fauvell, and Mr. Fournier.
Mr. Fauvell is the Accountant for the Office.

We deeply regret that this morning we do
not have interpretation here.

Mr. MacGuigan: Mr. Chairman, why do we
not have interpretation?

The Chairman: This is what I tried to find
out myself. It is lack of personnel, maybe.

1



2 Privileges and Elections

Mr. MacGuigan: It seems to me it shows
lack of respect for this Committee on the part
of those who are administering this.

Mr. Mather: Mr. Chairman, I understand
that another committee had that problem the
other day—I forget which committee it was—
and they passed a motion referring the prob-
lem to the Committee on Procedure of the
House to rectify the situation as soon as pos-
sible, which I think is a very sensible idea, I
imagine the problem is physical, that there
are perhaps not that many interpreters avail-
able, but it is essential. I think we should
have interpretation.

The Chairman: It is up to you to decide if
we accept to go on without interpretation.

Mr. Sullivan: Mr. Chairman, what language
are we going to speak?

The Chairman: Both, I think.

Mr. Portelance: Mr. Chairman, most of us
here are French-speaking but understand
English. There is no problem.

The Chairman: Well, I personally agree
with every one of you that we should have,
and we must have interpretation in our delib-
erations. The only thing we will have to
decide—I will try to find out myself—is how
it happened that we did not have any, and to
make sure that it is not going to happen
again. But for the time-being and for this
meeting, if there are any objections to con-
tinuing our deliberations without interpreta-
tion, then we will just adjourn this meeting.
But if we can go on this way...

Mr. Sullivan: Mr. Chairman, I think that if
somebody will repeat in English what they
said in French, I think it will be fine, but
otherwise. . .

Mr. Mather: I would agree to proceed as
best we can, Mr. Chairman, but it might be a
point in line with what I have said earlier
that another committee faced the same prob-
lem and they took the action of referring the
matter to the Committee on Procedure to
urge them to rectify this. It may add strength
to that representation if our Committee were
to do the same thing.

Mr. Valade: Mr. Chairman, on that point,
we sensed that this was developing when we
started because I spoke French to my good
friend here Barry Mather who claimed that
there was no translation and could not
understand what I was saying. I do not mind

October 31, 1968

speaking English because I can do it, but
there are some technical expressions some-
times and technical words which are difficult
to translate into French, or into English. This
is the difficulty. I do not mind going on
myself, but I assure the Committee that I
intend to speak in French sometimes. If this
creates a problem for other members. ..

Mr. Mather: It seems to me that the thing to
do is to try to rectify the present problem
rather than stop the meeting. And I would
move, if I had a seconder, that this com-
mittee urges the Committee on Procedure of
the House to take up the matter of proper
provision of interpretation to all the
committees.

The Chairman: This is, I think, a good
suggestion. We were not advised that we
were not going to have interpretation this
morning. We were only advised when we
asked where the interpreter was. He was not
here. I think we should try to carry on, but if
there are objections or if there is something
that anyone has to object to, we will adjourn.

e 1020

Mr. Mather: Would you accept the motion
which I made?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr, Valade: Just on that point, I see that
there is a report from the Chief Electoral
Officer here. Is this report going to be read in
French? I have a French copy. Is it going to
be read in French or in English?

The Chairman: Well, I had it in both
languages.

Mr. Valade: Yes, I know, but is it going to
be read by the Chair or by Mr. Hamel in
French or in English? I want to follow it one
way or another. If it is read in French, those
members who only speak English may have
difficulty in following it. If it is read in
English, we can follow it in French.

Mr. Trudel: Do you intend to table the
report, Mr. Chairman, or just read it?

An hon. Member:
Valade’s question.

The Chairman: I think, Mr. Valade, you
must have received a French and an English
copy.

Mr. Valade: I have a French report. I am
sorry, I have a—

The Chairman: You have the English copy
as well?

This will answer Mr.
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Mr. Valade: No, I am just asking if the
report is going to be read or tabled?

The Chairman: This report has already
been tabled in the House and referred to this
Committee for consideration. This is the rea-
son we have Mr. Hamel here. If you have any
questions to put to him with regard to the
matters raised by this report, he is here to
give all the information he can.

Mr. Richard: Mr. Chairman, if I may say
so, I think we should go ahead with this
meeting. I think it would be very difficult to
come back to another meeting and have the
same situation.

The Chairman: I agree.

Mr. Richard: I think we should go ahead. I
do not think we would have the same situa-
tion another time.

Mr. Mather: Then the motion still stands to
refer this to the Parliamentary Committee on
Procedure of the House. To try to rectify the
situation for all committees as soon as possi-
ble. Is there a question on the motion?

The Chairman: This is a motion and I think
it has already been seconded. Is anyone
opposed to this motion?

Mr. Mather: It has been moved and second-
ed. It is a motion and I think we should have
a vote on it.

The Chairman: We will have representa-
tions made to the Committee on Procedure of
the House.

Mr. Hamel, do you have a statement to
make?

Mr. Jean-Marc Hamel (Chief Electoral
Officer): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. No, I do
not have any statement. I am here to answer
any questions you may wish to ask me. As
the Chairman said, this report was tabled in
the House at the beginning of this session,
together with the report of the representation
commissioner. So, I am at your disposal.

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Hamel, I noticed in a cou-
ple of places in your report you indicated that
you will be submitting further commentary
later on about some of the aspects of the
election, and that your detailed report will be
finalized sometime in March of next year.
Will your further commentary on the last
election come forward at that time or are you
anticipating that you will be submitting some-
thing between now and then?
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Mr. Hamel: There are two matters here.
First of all, the report, which should be ready
by March, is what we call the poll-by-poll
report of the election. This is the report I
have to submit after each election pursuant to
Section 58 of the Act. This is being prepared
and T understand that part of it is now with
the printer. As I say, it should come out,
about March. This is still our target date.

Mr. Jerome: I believe that is section 56.

Mr. Hamel: That is correct. As I say, this
will be ready in March. This is the big blue
book.

The second thing I refer to here is a series
of amendments to the Canada Elections Act.
As you know, under the Act I am expected to
make recommendations to Parliament for the
better administration of the Act.
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Mr. Jerome: Yes.

Mr. Hamel: You may recall that in 1963 the
Standing Committee on Privileges and Elec-
tions considered a series of amendments,
which were never enacted because of the dis-
solution of Parliament before they were actu-
ally considered by the House. Since then we
have discovered there are a few other amend-
ments which we feel should be submitted to
you for the better administration of the Act.
This is something else we are presently work-
ing on and it will be ready whenever the
Committee decides to consider amendments to
the Canada Elections act.

Mr. Jerome: So that your material is virtu-

ally ready at any time given reasonable
notice?

Mr. Hamel: Oh, yes.
Mr. Jerome: Thank you.

Mr. Hamel: Although I must admit that
this series of amendments to the Canada Elec-
tions Act is a fairly big task. It will have to
be completely prepared with a new format. In
1963 it was prepared in the format which was
in use at the time. It now means an English
and a French version. We will now have to
prepare it in bilingual form, which means
that we will have to have a completely new
printing of the whole series of amendments
whatever we feel should be added to it in
light of the last two elections.

The Chairman: Mr. Sullivan?
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Mr. Sullivan: Mr. Chairman, will this Com-
mittee be supplied with office copies of the
Canada Elections Act as it is presently
amended and any other material, any studies
made, for recommendations for amendments?

The Chairman: This is supposed to be
referred to this Committee, but until it is
referred to us by the House of Commons we
have no right to study it. However, I am
inclined to believe that it is going to be
sought very soon. Do you have any other
questions, Mr. Jerome?

Mr. Jerome: No, Mr. Chairman, I have no
further questions.

The Chairman: Mr. Valade?

Mr. Valade: What is the work of the Com-
mittee before we get references from the
House? What are we going to...

The Chairman: This is the budget of the
whole office of the Chief Electoral Officer. If
you want to examine the estimates of the
Chief Electoral Officer, it has already been
referred to this Commitee and Mr. Hamel,
Mr. Fauvelle and Mr. Fournier are here for
this reason. If you have the Blue Book of the
Estimates it is at page 441, Vote 45—office of
the Chief Electoral Officer.

45. Office of the Chief Electoral Officer

(S) Expenses of elections including the
salary of the Chief Electoral Officer

45 Salaries and Expenses of Office
$14,428,180

Mr. Valade: Does Mr. Hamel have any gen-
eral comments to make on this before we go
into the estimates?

Mr. Hamel: No. The only comment I may
make is that this is the budget that was pre-
pared last year about this time and which was
amended to include the approximate cost of
the election. This is why it is called the
Revised Estimates for 1968-69. So, this is the
budget as submitted last year.

The Chairman: For your information, Mr.
Valade, on this item of estimates you are
allowed to ask Mr. Hamel any question you
wish on any matter relating to his office.

Mr. Valade: Yes. On this question, Mr.
Chairman I would like to ask Mr. Hamel to
indicate to the Committee if he intends to
change the representation in the poll work-
ers—although “poll workers” is perhaps not
the correct term—or does he intend to cover
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up some expenses to the effect that parties
will have electoral expenses paid by the gov-
ernment? Is this foreseen?
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Mr. Hamel: As I mentioned earlier, Mr.
Valade, my obligation under the Act is to
make recommendations for the better
administration of the Act. I have a feeling
that if I were to make a recommendation
along these lines I might exceed my terms of
reference. This would be a fundamental
change in the Act, so I do not think I have
the authority to make these kinds of recom-
mendations to the Committee.

Mr. Valade: This is where we seem to be
boxed in in our discussion. In my opinion, Mr.
Chairman, these changes must be considered
seriously by the Committee. Certainly, on this
topic, we should have the Director General’s
opinion and an estimate of what would be the
cost of such an amendment to the law.

In the documents tabled here there is such
a recommendation in Appendix C which was
submitted to you by Mr. Lizotte, the official
agent for a candidate. He suggested that the
electoral law be amended to bring it some-
what closer to that of the electoral law of the
Province of Quebec which defines very clear-
ly the ministerial and opposition parties’
representation.

Certainly one of the objects of this Com-
mittee is to look into that possibility. If we do
that there will have to be a forecast of, or
some provision made for, what the cost will
be and how it will be met. I think that infor-
mation could be given by the Director Gener
al, who has vast experience, and whether it is
feasible on a national scale.

Mr. Hamel: Perhaps it would be of interest
to you gentlemen to know that whenever the
Committee wishes to consider the Act I
intend, at its first meeting, to table a copy of
every suggestion received from the public
and from different groups. Practically every
week we receive, either directly or through
some members or cabinet ministers, recom-
mendations for amendments to the Act which
would involve fundamental changes in the
concept or in the philosophy of the Act. These
I intend to table for the consideration of the
Committee, without any specific recommenda-
tions in some cases.

If it involves my own responsibility for
making amendments or recommendations for
the better administration of the Act, I may
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make a recommendation that this be, or be
not, followed. ;
On your other point, about how much i
might add to the total cost, this, I presume,
would be quite easy to establish. If the Com-
mittee intended to make a certain change in
the Act we could, on the basis of the number
of polling stations we have, establish an
approximate cost for the coming election.

One final comment I would like to make on
that subject is that if you refer to the com-
mittee which prepared the amendments to the
Act of 1960, the Act that is now in force, you
will see that a number of amendments origi-
nated from that committee. I am thinking of
one at the moment regarding the use of Eng-
lish French in New Brunswick.

In 1963 the same thing happened. Although
these were never enacted, a number of
amendments to the Act were recommended on
the initiative of the committee and not on the
initiative of the Chief Electoral Officer.

Therefore, amendments could come, as I
say, from your Committee, on the one hand,
and also from recommendations emanating
from my own office.

Mr. Valade: Mr. Hamel, do you feel that in
the last election you had sufficient personnel
and that the arrangements were such as to
meet the obligations of your office in an
efficient way, or were you short of personnel?
Were there any problems in communications
and materials?
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I put this question because I complained to
the returning officer in my area that they
were lacking some materials. His reply was
that they had been asking for this in Ottawa,
through your office, and that they were not
supplied enough material. Were you short of
personnel or material?

Mr. Hamel: We were certainly not short of
material, and I do not think we were short of
personnel. This might have been only an
excuse. I think every returning officer was
provided not only with enough material but
usually with some additional supplies just in
case he would need more than we had
expected.

As I say, I cannot understand how this
could happen, because generally I think we
were quite fast in answering any request for
additional supplies. By and large, and judging
by the return we had of unused material
from the districts, I think most of the return-
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ing officers had much more than they actually
needed.

Mr. Valade: On another subject, because
this particular problem may have been a local
one, did you receive many complaints during
the campaign, Mr. Hamel, on the conduct of
the election in ridings? Were you subject to
many demands for inquiries. Were there
complaints about the activities of returning
officers throughout Canada, or was it
regionalized?

Mr. Hamel: I did not receive any official
complaint under section 58 of the Act. I
received, of course, the odd oral complaint
or, at times, some letters but never specifical-
ly accusing an election officer of having con-
travened some section of the Act. Neither did
I receive any complaint specifically pursuant
to section 58, in which case I would have had
to take action in conjunction with the
Representation Commission.

Mr. Valade: You say “specifically”, Mr.
Hamel. I remember sending a telegram to
your office complaining of the activities of my
returning officer. During an election, when a
candidate is busy with his campaign, I know
it is technically difficult to ask him to make
an official written accusation to your office,
with all the requisite information, but I know
that I have sent many telegrams to you and
have telephoned many times to protest
against certain irregularities.

This brings me to the following question:
How do you deal with the complaints that are
made to your office by an official candidate
during an election?

Mr. Hamel: Every complaint, be it oral or
in writing, under section 58 of the Act has
to appear in the report that is tabled in the
House. However, we follow up on every other
complaint and write the returning officer and
ask for his explanation and in all cases, as
you probably remember, we send copies of
the reply of the returning officer to whoever
complained against him.

Mr. Valade: I want to be more specific and
I am asking these questions because perhaps
they will assist the Committee later on when
it is discussing proposed amendments.

Do you consider your office has the neces-
sary tools to make inquiries in vivo—de visu,
if you wish me to use this word—on the spot
when a serious complaint is made about a
returning officer not doing his job properly?
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As an example of this, I complained that
the locale used by the returning officer was
not suitable for the ordinary conduct of an
election. I remember your office informed me
that, after having inquired, they found the
premises to be in accordance with the regula-
tions. I still maintain they were not in con-
formity with the spirit of these regulations.

Now I ask the question whether, with a
view to clearing this matter up, your
office could not have a better arrangement by
which it could inquire into these complaints
on the spot? If you rely on a report which
can be made by an RCMP officer or an inves-
tigator of some sort who may have no idea of
the complaint or the situation, do you not
think this is a very important matter for an
election? This caused a lot of problems in my
area. The premises were not even in accord-
ance with the requirements of City Hall
because there was a hazard in the stairs used
to reach the premises. It was a hazard that
could have caused accidents. The space was
so narrow that no more than two persons
could accommodate themselves in that office
when the regulations state that the premises
should allow all the functions of an election
to go smoothly. Now, the answers I received,
after inquiry, were that the premises met the
requirements.

I am asking the question, based on an
example, if there is no way these complaints
could be more efficiently investigated. In any
complaint that is made, of course, the person
responsible for investigating should at least
have contact with those who make the
complaints.

Mr. Hamel: Well, we have many ways of
establishing whether the premises selected by
the returning officer to use as his own office
are adequate or not. I may say that during
the last election we forced a few Returning
Officers to move because it was demonstrated
to us that the premises were not adequate.
However, in the particular case in point, all
the information I had was to the effect that
this was suitable.

In fact, in large cities reports are presented
to me even before any complaint is received,
to make sure that the premises are adequate,
not only from the physical point of view, that
is from the point of view of allowing the
people to go and come easily, but also from
the security point of view. Apparently every-
thing was in order. I for one, consider that
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our present way of investigating these com-
plaints is quite efficient.

Mr. Valade: How do you go about having
the complaints investigated. Maybe that will
help me to put my suggestions later on. How
do you go about investigating a complaint? Do
you have a regular staff or a special staff for
investigation, particularly during an election
period?

Mr. Hamel: We mainly use the facilities of
the RCMP.

Mr. Valade: The RCMP?

Mr. Hamel: Yes, and this has been done for
years as far as I know.

Mr. Valade: I will pass.

Mr. Richard: Mr. Chairman, I have a sup-
plementary to this specific question. Are there
any restrictions on the returning officer about
choosing a site? Why do they have to choose
a cheap site or something that would not be
decent? What are the restrictions on choosing
a proper office? Why should they not choose
something good? Are there limitations?
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Mr. Hamel: No. We cannot establish a flat
rate or a flat rent because conditions vary too
much from one end of the country to the
other. The only advice we give them is to try
to get something reasonable, at a reasonable
cost. I have heard that some returning officers
were establishing their offices in pretty shab-
by places, in old stores and so on. This is
something we may have to look into more
carefully next time. It is a question of cost
for an area. We are trying to keep the cost
down as much as we can, but on the other
hand, some people might be satisfied—I may
add that in same places it is not easy to find a
decent place for two months or two and a
half months because it is just not possible to
find something adequate for that period.

Mr. Richard: It is not due to any restriction
that you put on cost or anything?

Mr. Hamel: No, we do not impose any ceil-
ing because this would be unrealistic. Perhaps
for $200 a month you could find something
very good in a small town, while in Toronto,
Montreal or Vancouver you would not even
get a shack for that.

Mr. Richard: There is really no reason for
using all these shabby places that we use in
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most. cases as offices for returning . officers
during elections?

Mr. Hamel: Another thing you have to
remember is that the returning officer cannot
afford to take a week or two weeks to find a
place. He has to do it in a matter of hours
because under the law he has to open an
office immediately after the election is called.
So at times he may only have a day or two
days or three days.

Mr. Richard: I will come back later.

Mr. Mazankowski: I am just wondering
whether some terms of reference should not
be outlined in this case. For example, in my
constituency the returning officer operated
out of his own home. While I am not com-
plaining about it, he was very accommodating
and he co-operated in every way, shape or
form, but it seems rather strange that one
should have to operate out of a basement in
his home and in rather cramped quarters.
Now, if there is a restriction, in a town of
4,000 people certainly some accommodation
could be made available, you would think. Do
you have any restrictions in so far as that is
concerned?

Mr. Hamel: Under the law the returning
officer is responsible for selecting his own
office space and the only advice we give him
is to try to keep it to a reasonable cost. Many
of them, for a number of reasons which I do
not have to explain because they have a base-
ment or a couple of extra rooms in their
house, will rent this for election purposes. In
some cases, as I say, we had to force them to
rent something else either for briefing the
enumerators or for election night, because
there was just no way to move TV cameras
in or for the press people to go in.

As I say, it is very difficult under the terms
of the present law to tell a returning officer:
“You are not going to use your own house.”
We ask them two questions when they come
to us for an office. First, the number of
square feet, is it large enough for the kind of
work you intend to do, and second, how
much does it cost? If it is 400 square feet and
he is asking us $1,000 for two months, well,
we will say: “Well, be reasonable,” or,
“Maybe 400 square feet is not enough.”
However, as I say, there is no—I do not think
there could be any fast rule on this because
of local conditions, even in the same city. For
example, in Edmonton, some of the Edmon-
ton returning officers had no problem at all
but one of them, as I understand it, had a
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heck of a time finding a place. In Montreal,
and in Toronto, it is the same thing.

Mr. MacGuigan: I would just like to follow
up on this. First of all, do I understand that
they may rent from themselves? You rent
from them? I mean, they can profit financial-
ly from it?

Mr. Hamel: In that case we would pay
them rent for that portion of their house
which they will use as their election office.

Mr. MacGuigan: Fine. I understand there is
now a permanent group of returning officers
who remain with you from election to elec-
tion. Did you find there was a need to replace
many of these returning officers before this
election? Is this a fairly stable group?

Mr. Hamel: This is not new. Returning
officers under the Canada Elections Act for
quite a while have been appointed almost for
an indeterminate period. Before the last elec-
tion a number had to be appointed, not
because they resigned, and so on, but because
under the new electoral map there were 258
new electoral districts. The Representation
Order of 1966 made tremendous changes in
the representation in Canada and only six
electoral districts remained unchanged. The
mandate, the returning officer who was in
function before which he had terminated with
the life of his own electoral district and for
the new district a returning officer had to be
appointed and, by the way, as you know
returning officers are appointed by the gov-
ernment and not by me, so we had—I do not
know—over 200 returning officers who were
pretty new to the job for the last election,
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Mr. MacGuigan: Yes. Do you train these
people? Do they just get materials or do you
actually have an oral training session for
them?

Mr. Hamel: We feel that it would be unfair
for these people just to throw the book at
them and say, “Well, this is your job and you
try to do it the best you can.”

Usually we had a three-day course for
these people as soon as they are appointed.
They are called to Ottawa and they spend a
couple of days on the Canada Elections Act,
on the practices, on procedures and so on,
and then one day on the financial aspect of
conducting an election, what is allowed and
what is not allowed and which accounts you
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pay and which accounts we pay from Ottawa,
and so on.

Unfortunately, when an election is called
usually a number of people get scared, or a
number of people are not available. In the
last election, for instance, we had two in
Europe. One of them could not come back on
time. We had one who was involved in a car
accident the week before and was in hospital
and was not due to be out of the hospital
before July.

So these people had to be replaced and the
election had been called and as you know
there is a period of about 10 days between
the day the writs are issued and the begin-
ning of the enumeration. During that period
of time the returning officer has to select and
appoint his enumerators, select an office for
his own use, have his proclamation printed
and a number of other chores, you know. So
every day is very important. In those cases
we gave them only a very condensed course
of no more than about a day and fortunately,
with the exception of one, they were all from
places not too far from Ottawa. It meant they
could come here in the same day.

Mr. MacGuigan: Do they in turn instruct
their deputy returning officers orally as well
as giving them materials?

Mr.
them.

Mr. MacGuigan: I am wondering how the
early counting of ballots could have occurred
in a number of polls. Is there a feeling that
the deputy returning officers were not ade-
quately instructed in these polls? This would
seem to be fairly elementary.

Hamel: They are expected to train

Mr. Hamel: Do you mean mistakes in the
counting of the ballots in the poll itself, or in
the compilation in the office of the returning
officer?

Mr. MacGuigan: No. Apparently it was bal-
lot papers cast at advance polling stations
that were counted early in this case. I am
referring to your report on page 3. Nine dep-
uty returning officers made a count before the
allowed time.

Mr. Hamel: On that point—and I am not
divulging any secret because this was part of
the series of recommendations made in 1963—
there will have to be some amendment to the
Canada Elections Act if we want to avoid this
in future because, if you look at my pred-
ecessor’s reports after the 1965 election, 1963
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and 1962, this is not new. This happened at
every election. In fact, in 1965 the number
was less than in 1968, but in 1963 the number
was much higher than in 1968 and this in
spite of specific instructions issued.

I investigated each case and in each case
the deputy returning officer acting at the
advance poll received very specific instruc-
tions. Now, why did they do it? I do not
know. In all cases, as you know, the pay is
forfeited. They lose their $50.
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Mr. MacGuigan: Yes.

Mr. Hamel: I cannot go any further than
that at the moment.

Mr. MacGuigan: On the other matter you
mentioned that some DRO’s were reluctant to
accept responsibility for the custody of the
ballot boxes for the period from the close of
the advance polls until 9.00 p.m. on the ordi-
nary polling day, do you expect the DRO’s
individually to keep these boxes.

Mr. Hamel: Under the law they have to.

Mr. MacGuigan: That seems not to be a
very secure proceeding in any case. It leads
to a proliferation of depositories for the ballot
boxes.

Mr. Hamel: In essence this is the recom-
mendation I intend to make to you people.
Instead of asking DRO’s to keep custody of
boxes between the close of the advance poll
and the polling day, they should be transmit-
ted to the returning officer for custody.

Mr. MacGuigan: I have just one final
question. At Appendix C, is one suggestion
for change in the Canada Elections Act. Why
is this the only suggestion for amendment
which you append to your report?

Mr. Hamel: This is the only recommenda-
tion received that is specifically pursuant to
section 58 of the Canada Elections Act. We
received a number of other suggestions from
associations, other handicapped people, blind
people and so on, and these will be submitted
to the Committee at the beginning of its first
session. This will be tabled.

Mr. MacGuigan: Thank you.
The Chairman: Mr. Rose?

Mr. Rose: My question is supplementary to
something that Mr. MacGuigan said. He said
that you and your office do not appoint the
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returning officers; that is done by the

government.
Mr. Hamel: That is correct.

Mr. Rose: You see, this brings up all kinds
of interesting aspects of political patronage
and that kind of thing in the appointment of
these various returning officers, and I am
interested in knowing what kind of recom-
mendations you might have in this
connection.

Mr. Hamel: I do not have any recommenda-
tions. If you go back, I think to about 1930,
the Chief Electoral Officer was responsible for
the appointment of the returning officers. I do
not think this would be efficient because I do
not have the machinery, having my office in
Ottawa, if at the beginning of an election a
returning officer drops dead or decides not to
take the job away out in British Columbia,
Alberta or in Saskatchewan, to try to find a
replacement.

Mr. Rose: Do I understand, then, that the
returning officers are appointed by the prov-
ince or some organization within the
province?

Mr. Hamel: That I do not know. This is the
responsibility of the government. How they
go about getting their names I do not know.

Mr. Rose: It seems very strange, sir, that
no one knows something as vital and as basic
as this and I just cannot conceive its happen-
ing. It is like the answer we got yesterday
concerning the political affiliations of appoin-
tees. I am not laying this at the door of any
one political party, because I think this cer-
tainly has happened under both of the major
political parties, but I think we could certain-
ly look to some other kind of method for
appointing these people, because I am con-
vinced that not always are the best people
appointed for this purpose and further, that
there have been some very capable ones that
have been replaced regardless of the changing
of the boundaries.

I will not pursue this any further because I
think we must be loyal to the kind of supple-
mentary privileges we are allowed here. I
have other points, but I know there are other
people who had their hands up to be next. Do
you have any further comments on this?

Mr. Hamel: This has been in the Canada
Elections Act since 1937, so far as I know,
and it was again put in the Canada Elections
Act in 1960 when it was last amended. In
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other words in 1960 when the Canada Elec-
tions Act was amended, if you read section 8,
it says that every returning officer holding
office at that time shall be deemed to have
ceased to be a returning officer and new
appointments will be made. This has been the
case so far as I know since 1937.

Mind you, a number of returning officers—
not too many—have been in office for quite
awhile. I have one appointed in 1938 who has
acted at every election since then except the
election of 1945 while he was serving, and
there are two or three I can think of at the
moment who have been in office since 1950,
1949, 1952. There is a small group. ..
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Mr. Rose: They are in the minority, are
they not?

Mr. Hamel: Yes.
Mr. Rose: Thank you.
The Chairman: Mr. Mather?

Mr. Valade: I have a supplementary related
to that same question.

The Chairman: Mr. Valade?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Valade: I should first like to ask a
question.

What authority does the Director General
have to lay off a returning officier against
whom official complaints have been made?
Must he apply to the governor-in-council, and
wait for the governor-in-council to make
other recommendations to replace him?

Mr. Hamel: No authority, either for appoint-
ments or suspensions or for laying off any
returning officer. According to secton 8 of the
Act, the governor-in-council has full authori-
ty. The only thing I can do, if the returning
officer does not do his work in a competent
way, is to recommend to the governor-in-
council that he should be dismissed. I have
done that only once over the past 2 and a half
years. Although the man concerned had been
appointed a year and a half ago, I could not
get him to sign the papers. So, I recommend-
ed that he be replaced.

Mr. Valade: This procedure is valid in a
normal election period, but I am speaking of
the period of time when the list is issued.
Under this procedure can you replace a
returning officer during that short period of
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time, if you have a very serious grievance
against him, and if you recommend this dis-
missal to the governor-in-council? Do you
have anough time to make a replacement in
such a short time, or will the decision be
made only after the elections?

Mr. Hamel: Well, if something very serious
were to happen during an election, the
recommendation would go to the Secretary of
State, who is responsible to the governor-in-
council for the application of this Section of
the Act, and I imagine that a decision would
be made immediately.

Mr., Valade: Is it physically possible to
make such a change during election time?

Mr. Hamel: Well, of course, we would have
very serious problems.

Mr. Portelance: According to the Act, the
returning officer of the riding would have to
deal with the problem.

Mr. Hamel: If the returning officer is una-
ble to carry out hs duties, dies, or resigns, the
election secretary becomes acting returning
officer for the riding.

Mr. Valade: On an interim basis. But not
necessarily for the election period.

Mr. Hamel: He will carry out his duties
until replaced. This means that the problem is
serious. Because of the provisions of the Act,
it is impossible to ensure the replacement of a
returning officer during election time without
an order from the Governor in Council.

Mr. Valade: Do you intend to submit a sub-
amendment to the Committee with respect to
this?

Mr. Hamel: No, for the same reason I gave
a while ago, I do not feel that I have the
authority to make such a recommendation.This
would be a radical change in the Act, and I
am only entitled to recommend changes
which would facilitate the administration of
the Act.

Mr, Valade: This is exactly the question
which was posed by my colleague, awhile
ago. If this returning officer, whether it be
the clerk or some other person in charge of
the polls, were to become “ipso facto” the
returning officer, this would solve the problem
without having recourse to the governor-in-
council.

Mr. Hamel: We would of course need a
change in the present Act.
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Mr, Valade: Yes. That is why I am asking
you whether you actually intend to recom-
mend such a change in the Act?

Mr. Porfelance: Mr. Chairman, I wish to
ask a supplementary question. At present, the
secretary replaces the returning officer until
the latter is appointed. Actually, the secretary
himself can also be appointed, can be not?

Mr. Hamel: Yes, it happened in Prince
Edward Island, the returning officer died two
days after the elections. So, his wife, who was
his secretary during the elections, became,
“ipso facto,” the acting returning officer, and
was appointed to this post in due course.

Mr. Portelance: Apparently, Mr. Lizotte
states in Appendix VI, that the Act is not
very clear. Regarding the appointment of
returning officers, clerks, and secretaries, I
believe however, that the Act is clear, but
one may not always be in a good position to
judge it. Of course, this may not be very
pleasant to all parties participating in the
campaign. The Act is not very clear, where
paying the secretary is concerned. I believe
the Quebec Act is much clearer. The secre-
tary knows exactly where he stands with
regard to his salary. But the Federal Act does
not provide any such clear information.

Mr. Hamel: I think we have to make two
distinctions. There are two procedures con-
cerning the choice of enumerators, rural
procedure and urban procedure.

e 1105

For instance, in the urban procedure, the
candidate elected in the preceding election,
i.e. the member who sat in the previous par-
liament, and the candidate who had the larg-
est following number of votes, in the pre-
ceding election are to recommend the enu-
merators to be appointed by the returning
officer.

In the rural procedure, it is the returning
officer who, according to the act, chooses and
appoints the enumerators, and deputy-return-
ing officers.

As far as the secretary is concerned, two
points must be mentioned: according to the
Act, the secretary should know his exact
duties at appointment. He must be present on
nomination day, during the provisional days,
and on the official polling day. Provision is
made for his fee. But, the returning officer
occasionally uses the same person as chief
office clerk or private secretary. If he uses
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him as a messenger, there is no problem: we
pay him. But if he uses him in his office to
write his correspondence we pay him a given
amount based on the number of names on the
voters’ register. That person is paid according
to an agreement between the returning officer
and himself. And that’s where we occasional-
ly have some problems. But, this is complete-
ly beyond our control.

Mr. Portelance: I feel, however, that some
suggestions should be made so that under the
new Act, the secretaries can be remunerated
according to an established rate.

Mr. Hamel: Well, of course, he then ceases

to be an election secretary and becomes a
mere employee of the returning officer.
' Some returning officers, for instance, in-
stead of hiring people for the office, ask
schools for the blind or retarded children’s
schools to help addressing envelopes in which
the lists of electors are sent to the electors.
Others have hired from 1 to 6 girls to do the
job.

Mr. Portelance: Mr. Hamel, on that same
point: a returning officer must have someone
to replace him when he is away. This
requires a responsible person. That is where
the Provincial Act allows the returning officer
to appoint a secretary to replace him when he
is absent. Someone has to be in the office all
the time. If the Act does not provide for the
returning officer to be able to appoint some-
one to replace him occasionally, he is not
entitled to do so.

Mr. Hamel: Yes, he can do it. For instance,
I know of a returning officer who was paid
$3,200 for his expenses, for clerical help.
Which means all the clerical work done in his
office. The person appointed claims she has
not received a cent! Unfortunately, I heard
about it when the returning officer had already
been paid.

Mr. Portelance: Does this person have any
recourse?

[English]
The Chairman: Mr. Mather?

Mr. Mather: Mr. Chairman, the Commis-
sioner has indicated that he has several
recommendations to make later, I think, in
regard to improving the electoral system. I
hope one of those recommendations will be in
an area where reform is very long overdue,
and that is, the situation as affects the indus-
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trial worker, particularly in the part of the
country I come from, the lower mainland of
British Columbia. We have hundreds if not
thousands, of industrial workers, loggers and
fishermen who, during any summer election,
are away for several days and maybe weeks
prior to the advance pool, on the fishing
grounds, in the logging camps, in the mining
areas of the province, hundreds of miles
away from their own voting constituency.
These people by means of not being able to
vote at the advanced poll and not being able
to get back to vote in their own riding, in
effect are disenfranchised, and in many cases
have been for some years. I do not know
whether the Commissioner can make recom-
mendations in that field. I do know that dif-
ferent election committees of this House over
many years, have studied this same problem
and have made recommendations toward
reforming it. I think it is really an issue that
we should concern ourselves with, if not now,
perhaps later on.
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In the case of the members of the armed
services, we have in effect absentee voting. It
is not just because members of the armed
services usually vote very much against the
party I happen to represent that I am raising
this, or that members of the industrial work-
ers usually vote very much in favour of our
party that I am raising this, but there is a
disparity there, an imbalance. My question is
whether the Commissioner would consider, or
if he is considering, bringing in recommenda-
tions to change and improve that situation. If
he is not, I can tell the Committee that if I
am a member of the Committee I will be
doing so later on.

The Chairman: I do not want to answer
this question, Mr. Mather, but T may say at
this point that at the beginning of his
remarks Mr. Hamel stated his terms of refer-
ence and he is here within his administrative
responsibilities as Chief Electoral Officer. I do
not think he has any authority at this time to
make recommendations except for the
improvement of the administrative part of the
law.

Mr. Mather: I think this would be a consid-
erable improvement in the operation of the
law.

Mr. Hamel: I just want to mention that at
the very beginning of this session you had
Mr. Castonguay’s report which he tabled pur-
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suant to the Representation Commissioner
Act. I see a copy of that report over there,
and this kind of situation is covered in it. I
presume the Committee will consider this
matter whenever it studies that report.

Mr. Mather: Thank you. It is not in your
province to make that type of recommenda-
tion at this time?

Mr. Hamel: No, the Representation Com-
missioner was asked by Parliament in 1964 to
make a specific study of this problem. This is
one of many problems, this is one facet of. ..

The Chairman: At a subsequent meeting we
will have Mr. Castonguay here and then you
can ask him questions.

Mr. Mather: Yes.
The Chairman: Mr. Mazankowski?

Mr. Mazankowski: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I
have a supplementary with respect to the
matter of returning officers. Who does, in
fact, make the appointments of returning
officers, and upon whose recommendations,
and upon what qualifications are such appoint-
ments made?

Mr. Hamel: Well, the appointment is made
by way of an Order in Council on the recom-
mendation of the Secretary of State. Beyond
that, well, this is completely outside my own
jurisdiction.

Mr. Mazankowski: Legally, you do not
make the appointments officially?

Mr., Hamel: The first I know of a returning
officer is when I get a copy of the Order in
Council giving me the name and the address
of the man, then I get in touch with him to
see what he looks like.

Mr. Mazankowski: Thank you.
e 1115

[Interpretation]

Mr. Valade: A supplementary question, Mr.
Hamel. When you happen to learn the names
of the deputy returning officers recommended
by the governor in council, are you able to
judge whether they include candidates who
are not qualified. If you feel that the person
is not qualified, do you have the authority to
intervene? Have you any discretionary pow-
ers to enable you to ensure that the election
is properly conducted. Have you the authority
to make recommendations to the governor-in-
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council in this regard? Because you might
find cases where the person is unable to do
the job, is not competent. In that case, are
you helpless. You must accept a recommenda-
tion which is inconsistent with efficient per-
formance of the job.

Mr. Hamel: This is very difficult to estab-
lish. Among our returning officers, we have
people from nearly all professions, all walks
of life,—farmers, foremen, doctors, lawyers
and so on.

Mr. Valade: Excuse me, Mr. Hamel this is
not a “red herring” and I do appreciate your
difficulty.

Mr. Hamel: Well, these people come to the
office for three days. It is very difficult, in
three days, to decide whether a fellow is able
or unable to do the work. What we have tried
to do, is to show them that this is not an easy
job. Many think that it is a kind of a job
which takes an hour or two per day, even
during election time. So we try to impress
upon them that their work involves serious
responsibilities, is time consuming, and calls
for a lot of effort.

Occasionally, some returning officers may
give us the impression that they will have
serious difficulties because of a lack of educa-
tion or resourcefulness but these sometimes
turn out to be the best we have. So until a
man has actually been put to the test, it is
very difficult to find out whether he is able or
unable to do the work.

Mr. Valade: Well, it may be that my ques-
tion was not very clearly put. What I mean is
this. When as director-general, you actually
find out that a returning officer is not up to
the job, you do not then seem to have the
discretionary authority to replace him or even
to recommend his replacement.

Mr. Hamel: Only if there is some violation
of the Act. Competence is certainly included
among the conditions in the returning officer’s
oath of office.

Mr. Valade: But apparently, your terms of
reference do not seem to give you the discre-
tion to recommend a change.

Mr. Hamel: Well, as I said a while ago, I
did so in one case. If I am convinced that a
man is not competent to do the job, this is of
course a very serious matter and we must
have very serious reasons before making such
a recommendation, of course.
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Mr. Valade: Well, I am amazed at the scope
of your authority. It seems that you are sub-
ject to rather strict control concerning your
freedom, to seek out the best possible staff to
run an election. And you always seem to be
bound by an order-in-council in such deci-
sions. Well, I have no wish to keep anyone
else from speaking.. .

The Chairman: No, go ahead.

Mr. Valade: I wanted to ask another ques-
tion concerning the number of spoiled ballots
during an election. Often, during an election,
perhaps in some ridings only, there is a large
number of spoiled ballots. When a candidate
feels there is an undue number of spoiled
ballots in an election, his only way to verify
to find out whether these ballots are for him
or against him, is to ask for a judicial re-
count. Do you not think that there should be
some sort of mechanism which would allow
for a recount of such ballots, without resort-
ing to judicial recount, legal recount. Do you
not think that we should have some sort of
machinery to consider the spoiled ballots
only? My own case is a special one. I
checked with your office and apparently, in
my constituency, 3.8 p. 100 of the ballots were
spoiled. I think the national average was
about 1.3. So if I lost an election, I would
have to take legal steps, legal measures to ask
for a judicial recount, which of course, in-
volves considerable expense, which might be
between fifteen hundred to three thousand
dollars or even more.

Do you not think that there could be some
sort of machinery by which wasted ballots
could be counted during the official recount
without resorting to a judicial recount? That
would apply only to wasted ballots.

Mr. Hamel: Well the protection which you
have at present is through the agent of the
candidate who is present in the office during
the counting of the ballots. I admit that we
have not tallied the total ballots rejected dur-
ing the 1968 election. I know that in some
districts, including yours, the number of
rejected ballots is larger than average. The
average of the whole country is about 1 per
cent or a little above 1 per cent. I have three
districts in mind where the number was well
above that average. The same occurred in
1965. I do not have the figures here but if you
look at Quebec, in general, the number of
rejected ballots has been higher than in the
rest of the country. We must say that there
have been quite big discrepancies. However,
in Quebec, there is little difference in the
average number of rejected ballots in provin-
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cial elections and federal elections. Why is
this so? I'm afraid I don’t know.
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Mr. Valade: Mr. Hamel, my point concerns
the recount machinery of such ballots. During
elections, candidates have no way of finding
out whether the rejected ballots are actually
ballots which should be rejected according to
the letter and meaning of the Act.

I wonder whether the Committee could not
upon your recommendation, devise a process
whereby it would be possible, during the
official recount, to set aside the envelopes of
rejected ballots which may not be opened at
the time of the official counting. You have the
returning officers’ report, but you are not
allowed to open the envelopes of rejected
ballots to find out, in the presence of those
concerned, whether or not such ballots should
actually have been rejected. I wonder wheth-
er you intend to propose or recommend any
changes...

The Chairman: Mr. Valade, I think that Mr.
Hamel has already answered that question.
As far as the possibilities of amending the
Act are concerned, except for administration
questions which concern him, I do not think
that the question you ask is actually under
his authority.

Mr. Valade: Mr. Chairman, I thought I was
in line with our discussion, to find out the
kind of suggestions which Mr. Hamel could
make in order to amend the Act.

At this stage of our work, I think we are
simply looking into the wvarious difficulties
which arise from the Act. This I consider an
extremely serious problem because a candi-
date has no way of finding out whether
rejected ballots were actually rejected in
strict accordance with the wvarious causes
stipulated in the Act. In order to do this, the
candidate must request a judicial recount. I
should like to ask the Director General
whether this is not a case where an Act
ought to be amended because I think this is
an administrative matter.

The Chairman: I believe the question has:
already been answered. Actually, the amend-
ment of the Act is under our jurisdiction and
not that of the Director General.

Mr. Valade: Naturally on the recommenda-
tion of the Director General.

Now, to switch to something else...
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[English] - ..

The Chairman: With 'your permission, Mr

Valade, I will now call on Mr. Peters.
e 1125

. Mr. Peters: Mr. Hamel, is a service being
provided similar to that in Ontario where
they have an electoral court composed of a
judge and a number of people who review
specific offences that may take place in an
election? I think they call it an electoral
board.

Do we have this method of reviewing Fed-
eral elections, and can an offence or an omis-
sion that may be committed by the returning
officer be brought before an agency in the
area concerned?

I am thinking of the example you used a
few minutes ago, of a person not being paid
where there appears to have been a service
rendered. Can this be referred to an electoral
board in the area?

Mr. Hamel: Under the Canada Elections
Act there is no election board, or electoral
board, as it might exist in certain other
provinces.

When an election officer is alleged to have
been guilty of an offence under the Act it is
up to the Chief Electoral Officer, or, under
the terms of the present Act, up to the
Representation Commissioner, to take action.

If any person other than an election officer
is alleged to have been guilty of an offence
any individual can take action, and it is a
private action in that case. It is up to whom-
ever is aware of the action to lay charges
with the appropriate authorities.

Mr. Peters: In Ontario it seems to be of
dubious value, and I do not really know what
finally happens when an individual has to lay
a charge, but have you considered the dif-
ferent systems that the provinces may use?

It seems to me that every Member of Par-
liament is in a position in his own area to
correct some of the problems that develop,
and will continue to develop. I have seen a
number of these problems recur. Are any of
the provinces using machinery better suited
to correcting some of these local difficulties or
problems that arise with deputy returning
officers, or that develop in the election ma-
chinery, rather than doing it through the Act?
Have you considered any alternative ways of
doing this?
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Mr. Hamel: No, not at the moment. I am
not aware of any provision in provincial
legislation about this.

Mr. Mather: M}zy I ask a supplementary
question?

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Mather.

Mr. Mather: Can the Commissioner say
whether other countries, such as Australia or
Britain, have any sort of court, to which Mr.
Peters has referred in the provincial sense,
for dealing with problems, on protests, aris-
ing out of an election? Does any machinery,
different from our own, exist in say,
Australia?

Mr. Hamel: Not on this matter, no.
The Chairman: Mr. Peddle?

Mr. Peddle: Mr. Hamel, the result of the
election in Humber-St. George’s-St. Barbe is
being contested before the Court. Can you tell
the Committee the background to that
situation?

Mr. Hamel: The information I have I got
from the copy of the brief submitted to the
judge.

It is alleged that a number of polls worked
on daylight saving time instead of on stand-
ard time; in other words they opened one
hour too early in the morning and closed one
hour too early in the evening. I understand
this is the basis of the action. I understand
about 15 polls closed at 7 o’clock daylight
saving time instead of at 8 o’clock daylight
saving time.

Mr. Peddle: Did this happen anywhere else
in Canada?

Mr. Hamel: Not that I know of; I know of a
number of polls in sections of rural Quebec
and rural Ontario which opened at 8 o’clock
daylight saving time. I heard about it in the
afternoon and I told them to stay open until 8
o’clock because the opening time is far less
important than the closing time.

e 1130

It is very important to me that they all
close at the same time. Therefore, they were
open for 12 hours, but at least they closed at
the same time as the others.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Portelance: Mr. Hamel, do you have an
assistant during elections, for instance, in
Montreal or in large centres?
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Mr. Hamel: No.

Mr. Portelance: Which means that even
before the returning officer can have the bal-
lots printed, no one is authorized to have this
printing done without him.

Mr. Hamel: According to the Act, this is
the responsibility of the returning officer. All
elections are conducted from my office in
Ottawa.

But if you look at the meaning of the Fed-
eral Act, the returning officer, in his constitu-
ency apparently has all the responsibility.
The returning officer has powers which I
myself do not have. He has duties which I
cannot perform on his behalf. He is supplied
with all the material necessary and with
necessary controls, but from thereafter he is
on his own. With modern communications we
can settle some problems, for instance, we
have several cases in isolated places where
we found errors on the ballot paper two days
before the advanced poll, and we were able
to replace them in time.

Mr. Portelance: A further question. I know
that Quebec is smaller than Canada, if you
like, but the Chairman of the Election ap-
points an assistant in the large centres. For
instance, no returning officer can order the
printing without the higher official’s signa-
ture. This eliminates many errors and the let-
ters are uniform. In a word there is a stan-
dard guide-line.

Mr. Hamel: It should be remembered, too,
that in this regard the Quebec ballot paper
is different and that the Quebec Act restricts
the printing which must appear on the part of
the ballot paper so that there is no blank
where people might write their cross, while
the Federal paper is required by the Act to
be open.

There is a big blank space where the name
and address of the candidate are printed and
the cross must be made at the end. All that is
required to leave sufficient space, I think it is
an inch, between the end of the name of the
candidate and the end of the ballot paper so
that there is enough space for the cross to be
marked.

But according to the present Act, I have no
authority to appoint or to delegate a
representative or an assistant in Montreal,
Toronto or Winnipeg.

Mr. Portelance: Do you think this would be
a help from your point of view?
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Mr. Hamel: It all depends on the kind of
powers to be delegated. According to the
present Act, there is no delegation authority. -
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[English] _
The Chairman: Mr. Jerome?

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, I notice in the
estimates of the Secretary of State concerning
the election, that in excess of $14 million was
estimated for the cost of the election as per
statute, and I was wondering if the Chief
Electoral Cfficer will be tabling, for the con-
sideration of this Committee, a detailed
report of the distribution of the actual cost of
the 1968 election?

Mr. Hamel: We usually do. What we had
last time was a breakdown by district, by
province, and under a certain number of
headings, such as preliminary duties, and the
revision of the boundaries of the polling divi-
sions. I have the report for the last election
here—returning officer’s services and ex-
penses, printing, cost of polling stations, cost
of enumeration, and finally the total for each
electoral district in Canada. Then the sub-
total for each province; as well as the sub-
total under each of the main headings, such
asd .

Mr. Jerome: Are you required to complete
and file that report with Parliament?

Mr. Hamel: No.

Mr. Jerome: So unless we request you to
table it before this Committee, you are not
required by any statute to do so?

Mr. Hamel: No. We will do it in any event.
If you wish to have a look at it we would be
pleased to table it. Exactly when we will be
in a position to do it, I really do not know.
We still have a number of returning officers
who have not submitted their personal
account.

Mr. Jerome: Right. I am very anxious that
at some time during the course of the work of
this Committee we examine that detailed
breakdown. If you would be good enough to
go ahead and make copies available for the
members of the Committee or something of
that sort I do not know whether a motion is
required to that effect, if it is I so move.

The Chairman: It is a good suggestion. Do
you have an idea of when it would be
feasible?
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Mr, Hamel: I am told that sometime
towards late December we could have this
ready, fairly complete.

Mr. Jerome: Yes. If, Mr. Chairman, you
feel that it requires a motion I would be
prepared to so move.

The Chairman:
motion.

It does not require a

Mr. MacGuigan: Mr. Chairman, I have one
small question. I had a number of complaints
from election workers after the election. My
recollection is that it was from workers in the
advance polls, perhaps it is in the course of
revision, but they had not been paid as
promptly as those who worked on election
day, which seemed a bit incongruous in view
of the fact that their duties ended earlier. The
explanation I had at the time was that
because they were paid from Ottawa their
cheques were necessarily longer in coming,
but there was a rather lengthy delay it
seemed this year. Is this usual, or can any-
thing be done to speed up this process of
payment?

Mr. Hamel: Well, this could be due to one
of many factors or a combination of many
factors.

First of all, we cannot pay earlier than the
date we receive the account through the
returning officers office and some of them
were pretty slow in sending their accounts
out.

Second, we had the postal strike, which
kept the whole thing at a standstill for a
while. Finally, in some cases some people
were paid but forgot about it. We receive at
times complaints either from you people or
from individuals complaining that they have
not received any cheque. One day we
received 18 complaints like this, and we
referred 18 complaints to the Comptroller of
the Treasury to find out whether the cheque
had been issued and so on. Out of 18, 16 had
been cashed by the right person.

Mr. Mather: They are so small, they did
not notice them.

Mr. Hamel: One even said the cheque was
so attractive that he thought it was some pub-
licity material.

Mr. Richard: Mr. Hamel, my question is in
connection with the preliminary work done
by the returning officer to prepare a map
showing the polling divisions. I have always
found that it was a pretty cheap job. We get
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a map that is outlined in red pencil or some-
thing, and I have always thought that your
office, after receiving this map showing the
divisions, should be able to produce a decent
map showing these divisions so we would
understand exactly what the divisions are, by
streets; I am talking about cities.

At election time, one of the great difficul-
ties we have in enumeration, as you know, is
that the enumerators are not properly
instructed. That is the big—irregularities in
elections do not exist very much—I mean,
those are local complaints. However, the
machinery, the instruction of enumerators by
the returning officer is done in great num-
bers, 20 or 25 people in 15 minutes, and with a
statement describing the poll in writing. Very
few people understand a geographical de-
scription of a poll. If they had a proper little
map showing them each poll, what the limita-
tions of that poll are on a map, and if our
own map was a proper map it would help.
You know very well the maps we receive are
copies of a map that was outlined in red
pencil by some amateur cartographer, and I
think it is the machinery, the tools that are
lacking at the beginning. We do not have
proper maps and the enumerators do not
receive proper instructions, and the mistakes
are honest mistakes by enumerators because
they do not know what they are doing.
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Mr. Hamel: Well, you are undoubtedly
right with this question of poor training on
the part of the returning officers when it
comes to the enumerators. With respect to pre-
paring those maps, there certainly is a physi-
cal problem in the sense that I certainly could
not do it with my present staff because we
have about 50,000; particularly if we were to
prepare maps for each polling division. This
may be beyond human possibility, preparing
this here in Ottawa. If each returning officer
could be given the tools to do that, it might
be the best way to do it.

Now, as to our preparing or reproducing in
a more expert way, the map prepared by the
returning officer, well, three is no doubt that
it could be done, although I do not think I
could do it with my present personnel
resources.

Mr. Richard: It would be a great help.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Portelance: Are the maps you mention,
Mr. Hamel, supplied to the returning officer
so that he can establish some kind of divi-
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sion? Apparently, the man, in my district,
had to draw up the map of his own riding.
Apparently, he was unable to get a proper
map from you.

Mr. Hamel: Well, the only maps we can
supply them are the maps which have been
drawn up by the Department of Mines and
Technical Surveys. These maps are not
always very detailed, are not always very
useful. And we found out that a large number
of such maps have accurate boundaries only
for districts as a whole. But when it comes to
the interior of the district, i.e. parishes,
municipalities, rural areas and so on, the
detail is not as well given. Very often, return-
ing officers have to ask for more detailed
maps on the spot. They are allowed a modest
amount for the purchase of more detailed
maps.

Mr. Richard: Mr. Hamel, what happens
very often, as during last election, is that we
have a map which shows nothing at all. There
was a poll in the area covered by the map
where, according to the returning officer’s last
report, many new streets had been layed out
and areas built up. There were two or three
hundred people living on new streets not
even shown on the map.

Mr. Hamel: Well, one of the problems is
that our population is very mobile. If you
look at Mr. Castonguay’s report, the
Representation Commissioner’s report, it is
estimated that 4,800,000 Canadians change
domicile every year. This represents 25 p. 100
of the population. In urban centres, there are
urban renewal programs and projects, blocks
of houses are destroyed, and new develop-
ments built.

It is always fairly difficult to make a revi-
sion of electoral districts the week before the
election. As we do not always know when it
is going to take place, it is very difficult to
have very up-to-date information. At the time
of the last general election, most markings
had been made about one year before the
election. In one year, there were many
changes. I can give you a thousand instances
of places and fields being discovered, and at
enumeration time, we found more than 980
voters at a place where there was not one
single building marked a year before.

[English]

The Chairman: Mr. Mazankowski.

Mr. Mazankowski: I would like to ask
Mr. Hamel how the advance polls are
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established and wupon what requirement
they are based? Is it geographic location or
location according to population? The reason
for my asking is that I believe this pertains
particularly to rural areas. I know in my own
constituency it cost us a lot of money to get
one vote. We operated an advance poll for
two days and it was taken advantage of by
one person. Of course, we have to bear in
mind that we cannot deny the rights of any-
one to vote. However, I was just wondering
upon what basis the advance polls are estab-
lished. Does that come directly under your
jurisdiction or does it come under the juris-
diction of the returning officer?

Mr. Hamel: In urban areas, well, you men-
tioned rural, though, this is left to the return-
ing officer, except in a centre with a popula-
tion of one thousand or more, under the law
you have to establish an advance poll. For
the other areas it is left to the returning
officer. The only criterion we can give him is
to try to provide reasonable facilities.
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If a person has to travel more than 25 or 30
miles, particularly in the Eastern part of
Canada, it is getting pretty far. So at times
we have complained that people had too far
to go to cast their vote at the advance poll;
other times some people claim that we have
too many. We may have a recommendation on
this but we have the perennial problem of
advance polls where there was one vote cast
or two votes cast, or no vote at all. Where
there is no vote at all it is a waste of money,
but it is not a big problem. However, when
you have one or two votes, the vote is no
longer secret.

Mr. Mazankowski: Mr. Chairman, are as-
pects of this taken into consideration when
the next election rolls around?

Mr. Hamel: I will have a recommendation
on this because it is an administrative prob-
lem. I may have a series of recommendations
with respect to the advance polls not neces-
sarily to try to avoid this question where we
have one advance poll where no vote at all
was cast. I agree, as I say, that this is a waste
of money, but on the other hand I think the
obligation that we have to provide reasonable
facilities to the elector is more important than
the $120 or $125 that we may save.

I am much more concerned about the polls
where only a very small number of votes
were cast. One of the solutions might be to
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count these votes in a different way. Instead
of counting each advance poll as a separate
poll, we could put them all together, or, if we
have five advance polls, we could put three in
one and two in the other.

Mr. Richard: I hope Mr. Hamel has consid-
ered the situation in the cities where you
limit the number of advance polls by the
number of voters, if I understand the situa-
tion well, and that is unjust because some-
times due to the geographical location, as in
my area, you straddle the river with people
from the opposite side. You assemble them in
such a way that they have to go terrible
distances out of their way to vote. So I think
you should provide more advance polls in the
cities.

Mr. Hamel: We ask each returning officer
to group approximately 35 polling stations in
one advance poll in urban areas. Now, we
believe that the returning officer is much
more aware of local conditions than we can
be here. So, we leave the actual grouping of
the polling divisions pretty well up to him.

Mr. Richard: You do not give him much
latitude outside of that 35.

Mr. Hamel: No.
The Chairman: Mr. Peters?

Mr. Peters: I would like to ask a supple-
mentary. Have you made any recommenda-
tions as to the accounting of the advance
polls. It seems awfully stupid to me that they
should have to wait before they can open this
advance poll which they have had for a peri-
od of two days. It seems to me that there is
no legitimate reason—or at least I do not see
any legitimate reason—for not counting those
at least at the same time as the other ballot
boxes are opened.

Mr. Hamel: I asked myself the same ques-
tion, Mr. Peters. I understand one of the rea-
sons it was put in the Act—that the votes cast
at the advance polls could not be counted
before nine-o’clock standard time on polling
day—was that many deputy returning officers
who act at the advance polls also act at the
ordinary poll, and the intention was for them
to count the votes cast at the regular poll
before tackling the counting of the advance
poll.

Mr. Peters: Perhaps your recommendation
could be that they count these ballots as soon
as possible rather than at nine o’clock. And I
do agree there is a duplication and there
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probably has to be because of ‘the limited
number of people, but it seems rather a
shame, particularly on that night, for them to
have to wait for these advance polls when
nothing but the Act is stopping them from
being counted. I agree they should not be
counted two days before or anything like
that, but as long as the other polls are closed,
I do not see why the Act does not allow them
to be counted. If it said “at the same time”,
then they could count the other ones first and
count the other ones right after. I do not see
the reason for the specific delay because it is
not always true that the same people are
involved.
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Mr. Hamel: I must admit that I am inclined
to agree with you. In fact I received a recom-
mendation from the police force in one city.
A returning officer had asked for some sur-
veillance—not exactly protection but that the
polls be watched by the police. Because of
that request the police had to maintain people
there until about 9.30 p.m. or 10.00 p.m.—
until the last ballot box had reached the
returning officer’s office, and, as far as we are
concerned, that increased our manpower
costs.

Mr. Peters: Do you know what percentage
of deputy returning officers clerks and scruti-
neers who served in the advance poll also
served in the regular poll?

Mr. Hamel: We could find out that informa-
tion for you but it would not be easy because
we would have to go through 50,000 names.

Mr. Peters: Is there really any reason that
we should not write into the Canada Elections
Act a provision that a person should act only
in one poll—in other words, if they have
served in an advance poll they are not eligi-
ble to serve in a regular poll.

Mr. Hamel: It could be done although I do
not think it is necessary to achieve what you
are trying to achieve. On the other hand, in
some cases I understand that a returning
officer had some problems in getting compe-
tent people to act as DRO’s. So this would
still limit the choice of people they could tap
for this kind of work.

Mr. Peters: Is the machinery more expen-
sive for an advance poll than it is for a regu-
lar poll because of the longer period?

Mr. Hamel: Yes, for the advance poll it is
$50.00 for the DRO and $36.00 for the poll
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clerk, because there are two days involved,
and for the regular poll it is $24.00 and $17.00.

The Chairman:
further?

Do you have anything

[Interpretation]

Mr. Portelance: Just one question: in the
report which you will bring to the Commit-
tee, do you contemplate limiting the electoral
expenses of the candidates?

Mr. Hamel: No, this would be way beyond
my authority.

Mr. Portelance: But it could be done in this
committee here if the act came here for
study.

Mr. Hamel: I already made a report which
was submitted in the Fall of 1966. A Commit-
tee chaired by Mr. Barbeau—I believe—sub-
mitted a report which was tabled in the
House in October 1966 which offers a series of
recommendations for the payment of electoral
expenses.

Mr. Valade: My final question Mr. Hamel.
You must surely have studied the feasibility
of having permanent electors’ lists. I know
that this matter has already been suggested.
Did you look into the possibility of having
permanent lists of voters; do you wish to do a
comparative study of...

Mr. Hamel: Well, the work has been done
by Mr. Castonguay and the report which you
had at the beginning of the election, was the
report he made in the light of the experience
gained in the United States, France, Aus-
tralia, and so on.

Mr. Valade: Would such a permanent list
help avoid this accumulation of work during
election time? Would that be one of the
recommendation you envisage? Or, do you
not propose to express an opinion on that
matter?

Mr. Hamel: The recommendations have
already been made by Mr. Castonguay and
one of the opinions or the advice he gives, is
that permanent lists would probably reduce
the electoral period to 30 days because the
enumeration and the revision would not be
necessary any longer.
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Mr. Valade: In the cost, would there be a
large difference?

Mr. Hamel: Yes, according to Mr. Caston-
guay, the cost would be considerably higher
than the present cost.

Mr. Valade: Another question: Have all the
members of Parliament and the candidates
complied with the requirement to submit
election report in the required time, do you
have any comments on this?

Mr. Hamel: Well, as a rule, I do not know
about that. If you look at the Act, the tabling
of the expenses report is strictly the respon-
sibility of the returning officers, who must
keep it for 6 months and at the end of that
six-month period he either destroys it or
returns it to the candidate. In the present
case, there was an order by the House of
Commons on the initiative of Mr. Knowles
that we table a list of the candidates who
have submitted an expense report and candi-
dates who have not done so. I think that most
statements from the returning officers have
come in, and there are only one or two miss-
ing so we should be able to table in the
House the information within 2 weeks
perhaps.

Mr. Portelance: Does a defeated candidate
have to submit a report of his expenses, does
the Act provide for a penalty if he fails to do
so? It does not. So he makes no report unless
he wishes to.

[English]

The Chairman: Is it the wish of the Com-
mittee to report the estimates of the Chief
Electoral Officer back to the House or do you
want to have another meeting to put more
questions to Mr. Hamel? If not, we will
report the estimates back to the House and
perhaps have at our next meeting Mr. Caston-
guay, the Representation Commissioner. Is
that agreed?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

The Chairman: This meeting is adjourned
until next Tuesday evening.
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS
Chairman: Mr. Ovide Laflamme

Vice-Chairman: Mr. James Jerome

and Messrs.
Forest, Nesbitt, Skoberg,
Fortin, Peddle, Sullivan,
Hogarth, Portelance, Trudel,
Kaplan, Richard, Valade,
MacGuigan, Ritchie, Woolliams,
McGrath, Rose, Weatherhead—(20).

(Quorum 11)

Edward Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.

Note—The above list is current as at January 22, 1969 and includes
substitutions made by Order of Reference or pursuant to Standing Order
65(4) (b).

Pursuant to Standing Order 65(4) (b),

Mr. Kaplan replaced Mr. Hogarth on January 21, 1969.

Mr. Hogarth replaced Mr. Marceau on January 22, 1969.

Mr. Weatherhead replaced Mr. Cafik on January 22, 1969.




ORDERS OF REFERENCE
MonpAY, November 4, 1968.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Mather be substituted for that of Mr.
Brewin on the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections.

TuEespAY, November 5, 1968.

Ordered,—That the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections be
authorized to sit while the House is sitting.

THURSDAY, December 12, 1968.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Skoberg be substituted for that of Mr.
Mather on the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections.

MonpAY, December 16, 1968.

Ordered,—That the names of Messrs. Nesbitt, Woolliams, McGrath, Hogarth
and Forest be substituted for those of Messrs. Aiken, Downey, Mazankowski,
Prud’homme and Ryan on the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections.

TuESDAY, December 10, 1968.

Ordered,—That the Second Report of the Standing Committee on Trans-
port and Communications be referred to the Standing Committee on Privileges
and Elections to determine the reason for the omission of the resolution
adopted by the Committee on November 28th, from the Second Report of the
Committee presented to the House on November 29th, and which reads as
follows:

Resolved,—That the Canadian Transport Commission be requested to
postpone the implementation of its decision to abandon railway service in
Newfoundland until such a time as the Committee travel to Newfoundland
to study the transportation problems of the Atlantic Provinces.

ATTEST:

ALISTAIR FRASER,
The Clerk of the House of Commons.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, January 23, 1969.
(3)
The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met this day at 11.09
a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Ovide Laflamme, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Forest, Fortin, Hogarth, Jerome, Laflamme,
McGrath, Nesbitt, Peddle, Portelance, Richard, Ritchie, Skoberg, Sullivan,
Trudel, Weatherhead—(15).

Also present: Messrs. Carter, Isabelle, Lessard (LaSalle), Mahoney, Thomas
(Moncton).

In attendance: Mr. Robert Normand, Clerk of the Standing Committee on
Transport and Communications.

The Clerk of the Committee, on instruction, read the names of the current
members of the Committee as follows:

Messrs. Forest, Fortin, Hogarth, Jerome, Kaplan,
Laflamme, MacGuigan, McGrath, Nesbitt, Peddle,
Portelance Richard, Ritchie, Rose, Skoberg,

Sullivan, Trudel, Valade, Woolliams and Weatherhead.

The Chairman advised the Committee that the meeting was held to discuss
its Order of Reference given by the House of Commons on December 10, 1968.

The Committee agreed to table the following exhibits:

Exhibit I—Order of Reference before the Standing Committee on Trans-
port and Communications dated October 16, 1968;

Exhibit II—Votes and Proceedings of the House of Commons No. 56
dated December 3, 1968, containing the Second Report of
the Standing Committee on Transport and Communications
to the House;

Exhibit III—Issues Nos. 6 to 9 inclusive of the printed Minutes of Pro-
ceedings and Evidence of the Standing Committee on Trans-
port and Communications.

Moved by Mr. Skoberg and

Agreed,—That the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure consider those
items discussed at this meeting in preparing the list of witnesses to be called.

Moved by Mr. Jerome at 11.41 a.m. and
Agreed,—That the Committee adjourn to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.
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The Chairman: Gentlemen, I see that we
have a quorum.

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, prior to pro-
ceeding with today’s business, it is somewhat
difficult to determine who is actually on these
committees from day to day. Might we have
the Clerk of this Committee read out the
names of members who are now officially
members of this Committee.

The Chairman: This is what I was going to
request the Clerk to do right away.

Mr. Hogarth: Thank you, sir.
(Names of members read.)

The Chairman: As you all know, gentle-
men, there was an order of reference by the
House of Commons to us on December 10. If
you have not already received copies of the
terms of reference, I would ask the Clerk to
have them distributed right away to all the
members.

Yes, Mr. Nesbitt.

Mr. Nesbitt: On a point of order, Mr.
Chairman. It is just a small thing but I think
perhaps it might save problems in the future.
I have before me the minutes of the proceed-
ings of the Steering Committee meeting that
was held before the Christmas recess and I
note that it says in there that the date was set
for Tuesday, January 21, and it was my
understanding that we would perhaps have
another meeting of the Steering Committee
after our return. I have no objections to hav-
ing the meeting this morning but I just
thought perhaps for further meetings of the
Committee that the Steering Committee might
meet in advance because there are so many
committee meetings going on now and it
might make it more convenient.
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The Chairman: I understand your point,
Mr. Nesbitt because I realize that at the
Steering Committee meeting on December 18,
it was proposed that we would sit on Tues-

day. But unfortunately, I could not be here
personally on Tuesday and this is the reason
we felt it appropriate to have a preliminary
meeting this week.

Mr. Nesbiti: As I say, I would like to make
it clear that I do not have any objection at all
to meeting this morning, Mr. Chairman. I just
thought it might be better if perhaps the
Steering Committee could meet so that we
can know when the meetings will be held
because there are so many meetings going on
now and some of the committees are not even
geing to be meeting in Ottawa—they will
be meeting elsewhere—that it might save us
quite a few problems in future.

Mr. Sullivan: Mr. Chairman, I would like
to raise a point of order. I notice that the
member for St. John’s East and the member
for Calgary North are now members of the
Committee. My objection to this is that I
understand we are to rule upon this question:
of privilege and that the complainant or the
mover in the House was Mr. McGrath, the
member for St. John’s East, and the seconder
was Mr. Woolliams. I think it is highly
irregular and improper that they now become
members of this Committee which is acting as
judge and jury, and I am absolutely at a loss
to understand why this procedure was
allowed to happen when we have now the
prosecutor and the complainant a member of
the court who is going to decide it and the
question of privilege. I think “impropriety” is
probably the mildest word I can think of. I
just do not understand that this can go on, in
all fairness to the people here. It is even a
reflection on this Committee. I do not know
what this Committee or you can do about it
but I have never heard of this in my life. Mr.
Woolliams uses the expression “hanky-panky”
all the time, and this motion...

Mr. Nesbiti: You have not been around
here very long.
Mr. Sullivan:...used the expression “a

true-rooted democracy”. To have a com-
plainant sit on the same committee that is
going to make the decision I think is grossly
unfair and also very improper.
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Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, I support my
honourable friend’s remarks. I have not been
around here very long either, as Mr. Nesbitt
has pointed out to my honourable friend, but
it appears to me that if we are to judge the
conduct of any member of a committee or of
a committee itself, any person who is on that
committee—and I would extend my friend’s
suggestion to those persons—any person who
is on that committee or any person who is a
potential witness before this Committee with
regard to that person’s activities should, sure-
ly, in the interests of good ethics, withdraw
from this Committee and see that somebody
else is appointed in his stead. It would be a
most embarrassing situation if we wanted to
hear from Mr. McGrath as to the nature of
his complaint if we had to call a member of
this Committee to give evidence. That would
be an absurd situation and it might well
develop in these particular proceedings. I
would respectfully suggest that these gentle-
men consider their positions, just in the light
of the common, natural justice of the
situation.

Mr. McGrath: I am not concerned with the
fairness of the situation. I am certainly con-
cerned with what is technically right or
wrong. Certainly it is not my conduct that is
under examination here. I think the honoura-
ble gentleman who made that remark did not
mean to imply that, but that is what he said.
It is not my conduct that is under investiga-
tion. It is the conduct of those people who are
responsible for compiling the Second Report
of the Standing Committee on Transport and
Communications. Consequently I have every
right to sit on this Committee to cross-exam-
ine witnesses and to suggest to the Committee
what witnesses should be called. I would sug-
gest, since I raised the complaint in the first
instance, that it would be most appropriate
that I be in this position to do so.

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, I would like to
correct the suggestion that the honourable
member has just made that I referred to his
conduct. I said that we are investigating the
conduct of a committee. We do not know yet
whose conduct we might be investigating, and
surely the members of that committee in
decency, would not expect to sit in judgment
of what happened there, and at the same time
would not expect to give evidence before this
Committee, sitting on this Committee.

The Chairman: First I would like the
honourable members to read the terms of ref-
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erence. Some additional copies will be dis-
tributed right away.

In answer to the point of order raised by
Mr. Sullivan I must refer the honourable
members to the terms of reference of the
House which simply say:

That the Second Report of the Standing
Committee on Transport and Communi-
cations be referred to the Standing Com-
mittee on Privileges and Elections to
determine the reason for the omission of
the resolution adopted by the Committee
on November 28th, from the Second
Report of the Committee presented to the
House on November 29th, and which
reads as follows:
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I do not need to read it now, but as far as
we are concerned, at the beginning of the
deliberations I do not see how, in those cir-
cumstances, we could ask some honourable
members to readjust or to think about their
own position on this Committee and I would
like to refer the honourable members to
Beauchesne’s Parliamentary Rules and Forms
in the fourth edition, page 54, section 66,
which simply deals with what we may call
the interest which qualifies or disqualifies a
member from voting, either in the House or
in committees.

Article (1) says that :

66. (1) The interest which disqualifies a
member from voting in the House must
be immediate and personal, separately
belonging to the person whose vote is
questioned.

I think, Mr. Sullivan, in fairness to Mr.
McGrath, that this simply disposes of the
point of order you have raised and I believe,
as far as I am concerned right now, that I
have to rule this point of order not founded
on those grounds and I think if there is any
other matter that has to be raised, we will
deal with the precise purpose of this meeting
today.

As Mr. Nesbitt has mentioned, we had a
Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure
meeting on December 18 and it was agreed at
that time that we would have this meeting
this week to have all the exhibits filed and
then discuss together what witnesses we
would like to hear, relevant to the terms of
reference referred to us by the House of Com-
mons, and I do not believe it would be very
appropriate to engage in a very wide debate
on those matters. I want to read the report of
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the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure
that was prepared by Mr. Thomas, our Clerk.

The Sub-committee agreed that, owing
to the illness of the Chairman of the
Standing Committee on Transport and
Communications, Mr. Gustave Blouin, the
next meeting of the Standing Committee
on Privileges and Elections should be
held after the Christmas recess. The date
was tentatively set at Tuesday, January
21, 1969.

The Chairman stated that the first item
of business would be to have the Clerk of
the Standing Committee on Transport
and Communications, Mr. Robert Nor-
mand, ...

who is here to my right,

...appear and table as exhibits certified
copies of

(1) The Order of Reference before the
Standing Committee on Transport and
Communications;

(2) The printed Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence of the Standing Committee
on Transport and Communications.

I was informed that those Minutes have
been circulated among all the members of
this Committee and if there is anyone here
who has not already received the Minutes of
the Proceedings and Evidence of the Trans-
port and Communications Committee, we will
have them distributed right away.

(3) The second report of the Standing

Committee on Transport and Communi-
cations to the House.

which is precisely the report on which there
has been the motion by the House referred to
us for study. Is it agreeable to the members
that we have Mr. Normand file those exhibits
and that the exhibits except, of course, the
printed Minutes of Proceedings, appear in the
minutes of today’s proceedings? The Order of
Reference has already been circulated and
would be considered Exhibit No. 1.

The printed Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence of the Standing Committee would
be considered as Exhibit No. 2.

Mr. Sullivan: I so move.
Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: Then we would like to have
Mr. Normand, who acted as the Clerk of the
Transport and Communications Committee.
Mr. Normand, do you have the true copy
offaly
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Mr. Robert Normand (Clerk of the Standing
Commitiee on Transport and Communica-
tions): Yes, Mr. Chairman, these are official
copies.

The Chairman: Is it the second report of
the Standing Committee that you are filing
now?

Mr. Normand: The second report is right
under the printed issues, Mr. Chairman, in
French and English as was printed in the
Votes and Proceedings.

The Chairman: Is it understood, then, that
when we refer to the second report of the
Standing Committee on Transport and Com-
munications, which was discussed in the
House of Commons, we refer to the Votes and
Proceedings of the House of Commons, No.
56, where this second report has been print-
ed? Is it agreed?
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Some hon. Members: Agreed.

The Chairman: Then while we have the
meeting of this Committee right now, I would
request your advice on the way we should
proceed, how we should deal with this mat-
ter. I will hear suggestions of every hon.
member who wishes to speak. Mr. Nesbitt?

Mr. Nesbitt: It is just a suggestion, Mr.
Chairman, but since we have just had the
Minutes tabled by Mr. Normand it might be
an opportunity for members to look over the
exhibits. Also, I understand that Mr. Blouin
is still ill, and perhaps having gone this far—
after hearing other suggestions, of course—it
might be well, perhaps, to adjourn after the
evidence and the exhibits are tabled until we
have had a chance to look at them.

The Chairman: I think this suggestion is
very well taken, referring to Mr. Blouin. I
have received a letter from him. He left the
hospital a few days ago and he will be availa-
ble here by February 10, but not before that
time. Mr. Blouin got in touch with me and
requested the opportunity of being heard
before the members of this Committee.

Since he was the Chairman of the Trans-
port and Communications Committee, I think
we owe him the opportunity of appearing
here and being in a position to answer any
questions that could be asked him. Mr.
McGrath?

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, since you
mention Mr. Blouin as certainly one of the
principal witnesses, I think consideration by
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the Committee should also be given to calling
the government House Leader to ask him to
explain his references on page 3587 of Han-
sard for December 6. He was replying to my
question which reads as follows:

Would the house leader advise the
house what is the position of the resolu-
tion that was passed by the committee
dealing with the decision of the Canadian
Transport Commission allowing the
Canadian National to abandon rail pas-
senger service in Newfoundland, which
was not incorporated in the first report of
the committee to which I referred in my
original question?

Mr. Macdonald (Rosedale): I have not
studied this; I am advised the resolution
was passed but that it was out of order.

I would like to know where Mr. Macdonald
got this advice and in order to determine that
I think the Committee should call Mr. Mac-
donald as a witness.

Mr. Sullivan: Mr. Chairman, this is a pure-
ly political football. That is far outside the
terms of reference as I see it.

Some hon. Members: No, no.

Mr. Richard: Mr. Chairman, I suppose
every member should have the privilege of
stating how we should proceed in this matter.
I do not care how you proceed, but there is
an awful lot of time between now and Febru-
ary 10, and since you have a steering commit-
tee I am sure the steering committee should
meet and decide on the procedure. If we are
going to do it here and now before the steer-
ing committee meets that is not very good.

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, with great
respect, I make these suggestions because I
am not a member of the steering committee.
Certainly it is my understanding that the
steering committee will consider what wit-
nesses they will call and what procedure we
will follow. I merely make this suggestion for
the consideration of the steering committee
when it does meet.
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The Chairman: The idea of asking you gen-
tlemen for suggestions is so that we can take
those suggestions into consideration and study
every one of them in the subcommittee when
we meet after this meeting.

Mr. McGrath: There are a number of other
suggestions I would like to make as well, Mr.
Chairman. In calling witnesses, I suggest that
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the Clerk of the Transport and Communica-
tions Committee be called as a witness. I sug-
gest also that the Chief of the Committee and
Private Legislation Branch be called as a
witness to explain what seems to be the
unusual dealy in printing the Minutes of Pro-
ceedings and Evidence, No. 6. There was a
considerable delay in that evidence being
printed and I would like to have an explana-
tion of this unusual delay.

The Chairman: Mr. McGrath, I do not want
to interfere with your remarks but.. .

Mr. McGrath: It is a suggestion, Mr. Chair-
man; that is all.

The Chairman: I know that it is a sugges-
tion, but I would not like you to say that it is
an “unusual delay” since we did not hear the
evidence.

Mr. McGrath: That is merely my opinion
and that is why I want to call the witness.

The Chairman: I would accept your phras-
ing, in saying “the delay for”, but “the
unusual”—it might be usual after you hear
the evidence of those people.

Mr. McGrath: Well, you can delete the
word ‘“unusual”.

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, of course we
are just making suggestions of how we would
proceed, but I was under the impression that
we were inquiring into the reason for the
omission of a certain resolution in the Com-
mittee. I cannot understand how it would
seem relevant to that question to look into the
impressions of the government House Leader,
or of the impressions of anybody else for that
matter, nor do I see how it would be relevant
to that question to look into the length of
time that was involved in printing the reports
of the Proceedings of that particular
Committee.

Neither of those questions appear to me to
be relevant. I assume that we would proceed
to examine the Chairman of the Committee
who, one would expect, would be in a posi-
tion either to assume responsibility for what
goes in the reports or at least to indicate to us
whose responsibility it is to control the con-
tents of the reports. Once we are able to
isolate the area of responsibility in that
regard, we should then be able to find out
the reason for the omission of the resolution.

Having found that out, it would appear to
me that the work of this Committee in re-
spect of this particular matter is complete.
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The length of time that it takes to report the
Proceedings, or the impressions of any other
members of this House or other people as to
what took place or what did not take place
have, in my opinion, absolutely no relevancy
whatsoever to the question that is before us,
which is absolutely and clearly defined by the
terms of reference that have been circulated
here this morning.

If we are talking about suggestions for the
steering committee, it would seem to me that
the first suggestion would be to arrange a
meeting where we examine the Chairman of
the Transport and Communications Commit-
tee, and if at the end of that meeting there
appears to be any loose ends that have to be
covered through any other proceedings, we
might then proceed, but I would certainly not
consider it relevant to have any other wit-
nesses at the first meeting until after we have
heard from the Chairman.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Skoberg?

Mr. Skoberg: Mr. Chairman, I think it is
very clear and I can not understand the posi-
tion taken by some of the members that we
should not ask for, say, the House Leader to
be present. It says:

...to determine the reason for the
omission.
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and if you read what Mr. McGrath said on
page 3587 of Hansard of December 6th, there
is an indication there that this may be the
real reason why it never appeared in so far
as the second report is concerned. I am of the
opinion that the Chairman’s position is very
clear as recorded in the Transport and Com-
munication’s Minutes, and I have no hesita-
tion in saying that his position is absolutely
clear and there is nothing wrong with his
position in this regard. We examine the evi-
dence that we see before us.

As far as suggesting that we have the
Chairman of the Transport and Communica-
tions Committee as a first witness only is
concerned, I believe this really has nothing to
do with it because very clearly before us in
print is the position he has taken and the
action that was taken in that Committee.
However, what is not clear—nor is it in
print—is the action that was taken by the
House Leader. I believe this is a more impor-
tant witness to have before this Committee
than the Chairman of the Transport Commit-
tee in this particular situation.
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I do appreciate the position you have tak-
en, Mr. Chairman, in asking for suggestions
from the Committee about who should be
called. I think it is a remarkable position for
you to take, and to criticize the suggestions
that are being made really is a disservice to
this Committee at this particular time.

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, I would just
like to comment briefly on the question of
relevancy regarding the suggestions I made. I
think it is very relevant that the House Lead-
er be called to give evidence before the Com-
mittee. For example, I think you will agree,
Mr. Chairman—certainly Dr. Ollivier will
agree—that the procedure was most unusual
for a Committee Report to be tabled in the
House and for concurrence; there was no con-
currence moved in the Report which is the
normal procedure. I would like to know why
concurrence was not moved in the Report,
and surely the House Leader would have
something to do with this.

Regarding my suggestion on the printing of
the evidence that certainly idis relevant
because how could I examine the resolution
which I moved and which was passed by the
Committee until I had a chance to examine a
transcript of the evidence? My suggestion is
that there was a delay in the printing of the
evidence, what seemed to me to be an unusu-
al delay. I want to find out the reason for this
delay in the printing of the Evidence, espe-
cially when the evidence contained certain
contentious issues.

The Chairman: I will let Mr. McGrath
know right away the answer to this, but I
think it would be relevant for us to have the
evidence of the delay it takes for those people
to print all the Minutes of Proceedings of all
the committees of the House, but I do not see
any... Yes, Mr. Southam?

Mr. Southam: I think we should try to keep
within the terms of this reference or we are
going to be here on this one thing until June
if we are going to let all these little side
issues come into the thing. We have the com-
plainant here so he should have worded his
motion a little bit differently if he wanted to
go into all these things.

The Chairman: We are still on suggestions
from the hon. members and those will be
scrutinized by the steering committee. Yes,
Mr. Richard?

Mr. Richard: There is only one thing, Mr.
Chairman, and that is to remind Mr. McGrath
that it is not correct to say that when the



Chairman of a Committee presents a report to
the House he asks for concurrence. That does
not happen in half of the cases. But that is
just:o.

Mr. McGrath: Do you mean it is not usual
to ask for concurrence in the Committee
Report?

Mr. Richard: Not a report that is going to
raise... You know very well if you have
been chairman that chairmen have the privi-
lege of moving concurrence. They ask their
Committees for direction usually; I did any-
way. When it was felt that moving concur-
rence would give rise to a debate and the
Committee was of the opinion that this was
not the time because they had further reports
to put in later, they moved concurrence at the
appropriate time when it was felt that it was
going to be discussed and it should be.

Mr. McGrath: But when the Report con-
tains a recommendation for the Committee to
do certain things, surely then the committee
chairman must ask for concurrence of the
House because, in effect, he must ask for
permission of the House for the committee to
do what is incorporated in the Report.

Mr. Richard: Well, you have many
instances, Mr. McGrath. The Chairman for
example, wanted to sit in the afternoon and
they did not move concurrence because they
knew that would give rise to a debate and
they waited for an opportune time to do it.
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The Chairman: This is a very interesting
point that could be discussed later on, but
I believe it is not quite relevant to the kind of
suggestions I would like to hear from hon.
member as to...

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, I think Mr.
Jerome’s suggestion is extremely sound. If we
hear from the Chairman of the Committee in
question first, it might well be that the whole
matter and the terms of reference will be
cleared up without the necessity for calling
any further witnesses.

There are some things that concern me,
naturally, about this matter, but it would
appear to me that if there is a simple expla-
nation for it the Chairman can come forward
and give it, and then the Committee can file
its report. If, after hearing his evidence, we
decide that the matter should be broadened
or pursued further, surely it is open to the
Committee to make suggestions to the Chair
that this be done.
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For instance, it may be that if we call the
government House Leader to explain his
remarks in Hansard, we might also want to
call Mr. McGrath who evidently pressed the
Committee Chairman to put a motion before
the Committee that was not seconded, accord-
ing to my reading of the exhibit, and it would
appear to me that we should hear from the
Committee Chairman first.

Mr. McGrath: A motion in Committee does
not have to be seconded, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Hogarth: All these things can come out
during the discourse in this Committee;
whether it does or does not I do not think we
should argue today. It can all come out dur-
ing the discourse with respect to the activities
in question.

The Chairman: Mr. Skoberg?

Mr. Skoberg: Mr. Chairman, I would like to
move at this time that the suggestions made
by the members of this Committee be
referred to the steering committee for their
recommendation for a future meeting.

Motion agreed to.

The Chairman:
suggestions?

Are there any other

Mr. McGrath: I have one suggestion, Mr.
Chairman. The outcome of this examination
may have a bearing on the work of the Com-
mittee on Transport and Communications.
This Committee met this morning and decid-
ed that it was going to begin its tour of the
Atlantic Provinces on February 16 and I
would suggest to you, Mr. Chairman, that the
steering committee bear this in mind in lay-
ing down its schedule of meetings for this
Committee.

The Chairman: We will discuss the matter
with the steering committee. I think you have
raised a very appropriate question. If we are
to hear some witnesses other than Mr. Blouin
then I believe we do not need to have Mr.
Blouin here while we hear the other wit-
nesses. He can give evidence and later on
have a look at the Minutes of Proceedings. If,
as was requested, the steering committee
decides to hear Mr. Normand who was the
Clerk of this Committee, then we may have a
meeting next week. Then the steering com-
mittee will decide whether the Leader of the
House should appear before us and if so this
could be next week.
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When Mr. Blouin is back here about Febru-
ary 10 we may dispose of the whole matter
between February 10 and February 15. In my
view it is not a very complicated one because
the only thing we have as terms of reference,
I just remind hon. members, is the reason for
the omission of the resolution adopted on
November 28. It is simply this. We must
know all the relevant facts, but I would
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remind hon. members that when we start our
deliberations we will have to refer to these
terms of reference and stick to them.

Mr. Sullivan: I move we adjourn then, Mr.
Chairman, if it is in order.

The Chairman: Committee adjourned?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

TuUESDAY, December 10, 1968.

Ordered,—That the Second Report of the Standing Committee on Trans-
port and Communications be referred to the Standing Committee on Privileges
and Elections to determine the reason for the omission of the resolution
adopted by the Committee on November 28th, from the Second Report of
the Committee presented to the House on November 29th, and which reads
as follows:

Resolved,—That the Canadian Transport Commission be requested to
postpone the implementation of its decision to abandon railway service in
Newfoundland until such a time as the Committee travel to Newfoundland
to study the transportation problems of the Atlantic Provinces.

ATTEST:
ALISTAIR FRASER

The Clerk of the House of Commons.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, January 30, 1969.

(4)

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met this day at 11.09
a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Ovide Laflamme, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Forest, Fortin, Goode, Hogarth, Jerome, La-
flamme, Lundrigan, MacGuigan, McGrath, Murphy, Nesbitt, Richard, Sullivan,
Trudel, Weatherhead, Woolliams—(16).

Also present: Messrs. Bell, Carter, Marceau, Pilon, Prud’homme.

Witnesses: Mr. Antonio Plouffe, Chief of Committees and Private Legisla-
tion Branch; Mr. Robert Normand, Clerk of the Standing Committee on Trans-
port and Communications.

The Chairman read a memorandum addressed to him by the Chief of the
Committees and Private Legislation Branch on the delays in the printing of
Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence, in particular, Issues Nos. 6, 7, 8 and 9
of the Standing Committee on Transport and Communications.

On a motion by Mr. Richard, the Committee agreed to table as Exhibit IV
the memorandum dated January 29, 1969 from the Chief of Committees and
Private Legislation Branch “Delay—Printing of Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence”.

The questioning of the Chief of Committees and Private Legislation Branch
being completed, the Committee then questioned Mr. Normand on the Minutes
of Proceedings and the Second Report to the House of the Standing Committee
on Transport and Communications.

Moved by Mr. Jerome at 12.27 p.m. and
Agreed,—That the Committee adjourn to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
lerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Thursday, January 30, 1969.
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The Chairman: Gentlemen, I see that we
have a quorum.

Among the suggestions that were made at
the last meeting—we had a steering commit-
tee meeting last Tuesday—I think first among
the questions raised there is one that could be
disposed of regarding the matter raised by
Mr. McGrath concerning what he called the
unusual delay in the printing of the Minutes
of the Transportation and Communications
Committee.

We have here Mr. Plouffe who is Chief
Clerk of Committees for the printing of the
Minutes. I would first like to read the memo-
randum that was prepared by his staff and
signed by Mr. Plouffe which simply reads as
follows:

e 1110

I refer to the proceedings of your Com-
mittee at the meeting of Thursday, Janu-
ary 23rd, in the course of which Mr.
McGrath mentioned that the delay in the
printing of minutes of proceedings and
evidence of the Standing Committee on
Transport and Communications was
“unusual”.

I have had a check made from my
printing register for all committees at
this session and on the list hereunder you
will see the number of days which elapse
between the date of the meeting and the
printing of each issue for five (5)
committees:

English

PO FACTOUDIE o'« 5« 2 v o osihe .96 6.6 12.3
Indian Affairs and Northern De-
VEIDPIMERbID SEOERIEIN. < o« 5 Fis s me b 11
National Resources and Public
Y TR s = b A aiade sas oy, & 3ar opa s 7
Transport and Communications .. 8
Health, Welfare and Social Affairs 6

29

The information relating to the French
edition is as follows:

French
Plublic T ACCOMMME  stiws fiisios o5 o 00l 34
Indian Affairs and Northern De-
VelopIENtey kil ablae, de b iore i 24.5
National Resources and Public
Works Sactaf . o, JaBnt Sl e 19
Transport and Communications .. 13
Health, Welfare and Social Affairs 22

Mr. McGrath, after having looked at this
report, if you have or anyone has any rele-
vant questions to ask of Mr. Plouffe who is in
charge of this Committee. ..

Mr. McGrath: I would just like to ask one
question.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. McGrath.

Mr. McGrath: I would like to ask him how
long it took to print each set of evidence of
the Transport and Communications Commit-
tee? Can you find that out for us?

Mr. Antonio Plouffe (Chief, Commitiee and
Private Legislation Branch): Mr. Chairman, I
have this information. Concerning Issue No. 6
of Transport, the date of the meeting was
November 28, 1968. It was sent to the Print-
ing Bureau on December 9, 1968, and it was
received on December 13, 1968.

Mr. McGrath: May I interrupt you here?
Does that not seem to be a bit of a delay in
getting the evidence to the printer, from
November 28 to December 9? Did you say
that it did not go to the printer until Decem-
ber 9?

Mr. Plouffe: That is correct, sir.

Mr. McGrath: All right. Will you just pro-
ceed with the others and then we can make
comparisons.

Mr. Plouffe: The reasons for all delays can-
not be all attributed to the Committee
Reporting services. This service is a related
service to our branch and I am informed that
it varies from one committee to another
because they run into some difficulties. As
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you know, all evidence is taped and some-
times they have difficulty in listening to the
questions and answers; it is not always very
clear. Another reason would be the interpre-
tation. It has to be revised and integrated.

Mr. McGrath: Well, could we perhaps get
on with this and could you tell us how long it
took to have Issues No. 7 and No. 8 printed?

Mr. Plouffe: For Issue No. 7. The meeting
of December 3, 1968 was sent on December
11, 1968 and received on December 13, 1968.
For Issue No. 8, the meeting of December 6,
1968 was sent on December 11, and received
on December 13, 1968. For Issue No. 9, the
meeting of December 9, 1968 was sent on
December 13, 1968 and received on December
13, 1968.
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The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Nesbitt?

Mr. Nesbitt: Could Mr. Plouffe give us any
indication—I know perhaps it is not his direct
responsibility—why on some occasions the
tapes were sent to him the day that they were
produced, as in the last case mentioned, and
other days there was a delay of 12 days in
receiving the printing?

Mr. Plouffe: As I stated before, from one
meeting to another the Reporting services
who transcribe the tapes do not have the
same problems. Apparently at the last three
meetings everything went fine. There might
have been less French spoken and, therefore,
less translation and revision. The copy went
to the Printing Bureau earlier and it came
back earlier.

Mr. Nesbitt: I think there is one thing per-
haps some of the members are a little hazy
on. When you at the Printing Bureau receive
things for printing, are they in typewritten
form or do you receive the tapes and then
take the material off the tapes?

Mr. Plouffe: Sir, all proceedings are taped
downstairs at the Reporting services. The
tapes are transcribed and the evidence is in
typewritten form; then it is revised and sent
to the Bureau in typewritten form by my
staff.

Mr. Nesbitt: Who does the revising?

Mr. Plouffe: The Reporting Services have a
staff of editors and they do the editing.

[Interpretation]
The Chairman: Mr. Fortin.
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Mr. Fortint When our witness spoke of
translation, he inferred that when there are
few French-speaking members who speak
during Committee meetings, the transcription
goes faster. Does he mean that this is so
because there are too few translators from
French into English and from English into
French?

Mr. Plouffe: Mr. Chairman, under the cir-
cumstances, there is no doubt that since we
have interpretation there have been personnel
problems. I am told that there have been
more translators and interpreters hired and
that more will be hired, in order to speed up
the preparation and the printing of the text.

All these personnel, these equipment, print-
ing workload and accommodation problems
for personnel are now under review by the
officials of the House including, I suppose, the
Speaker. I am under the impression that
everything possible is being done to obtain
satisfactory results.

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Chairman, I do not wish to
inflict any injury on our witness and throw
blame on his work, but I am highly interested
in this subject and this may be why this
impression is mistaken, if such is the case.
Since when has the study been undertaken
concerning the revision of the translation and
reporting services staff and personnel?

Mr. Plouffe: I cannot give you a precise
date but these matters that I have outlined
for you have been under study since quite
some time and are under thorough considera-
tion since the adoption on December 20, of
the new Standing Orders.

Mr. Fortin: Thank you.

Mr. Trudel: Mr. Chairman, willi Mr.
Plouffe’s memorandum, that you read to us a
while ago, be included among the minutes of
today’s proceedings?

[English]

The Chairman: Do you think it appropriate
that we have this memorandum print-
ed as an Appendix to today’s Proceedings?
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Mr. Hogarth: We have Exhibits 1, 2 and 3.
Could this not be Exhibit 4?

[Interpretation]

The Chairman: The members of the Com-
mittee must put forward a motion.
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Mr. Forest: Mr. Chairman, I have a ques-
tion. The figures you have given indicate
that it takes less time for the transcription
of the proceedings of the Committee on
Transport and Communications. I think you
said eight and a half or nine and a half days.
Is this an average calculated on the basis of
past experience?

Mr. Plouffe: It is a fairly accurate average
that might vary by a day, more or less, but
it is rather accurate.

[English]

The Chairman: I believe Mr. Plouffe has
prepared the time taken to print minutes of
many committees so that we can have a
notion of the time it takes to have the print-
ings. I believe that after having had this
memorandum we can excuse Mr. Plouffe.

I do not think we are out of our jurisdic-
tion if we want to inquire into the kind of
work that has to be done at the printing office
since we have the answer to the question
raised by Mr. McGrath, but if there are no
other relevant questions...

Mr. Woolliams: I would like to ask a ques-
tion. With reference to the Transport and
Communications Committee, were all the pro-
ceedings taken by tape or was there a short-
hand reporter there?

Mr. Plouffe: As you know, on November
28, the House did not sit. I am subject to
correction, but at the meeting of November
28 I believe there were shorthand reporters,
that is, those shorthand reporters who work
on the floor of the House. They were as-
signed to committees. All the other meet-
ings were taped.

Mr. Woolliams: Do I take it that on No-
vember 28, the evidence was not only taped
but recorded by shorthand reporters?

Mr. Plouffe: I believe, it was not taped.

Mr. Woolliams: Well then, really the pro-
ceedings did not come from a tape. It came
from a shorthand reporter.

Mr. Plouffe: As I say, subject to a check,
but that is my impression.

Mr. Woolliams: I wonder if you could check
on that. It seems like a very simple thing. I
think we are spending a little time. I do not
know just why we are dealing with that un-
less there is something in the proceedings
that has been left out. That is the only thing
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I am concerned about and once it is covered,
that ends it. But if it was taken by shorthand
then surely all we have to do is ask the
shorthand reporter if that is a proper state-
ment of the evidence taken at the Commit-
tee on November 28, and if it was not taken
by shorthand, then we should be able, if any-
body has any question about anything being
left out, to have the tape played.

The Chairman: Mr. Woolliams, that could
be a very interesting matter, but I do think at
this time that we should consider just the
simple question of asking if it was incorrectly
reported or not. If there is anyone who thinks
or believes that something was said that is
not in the report, then we can perhaps in-
quire. But we could say this of any report
that could be made.

Mr. Plouffe: I must say I am now informed
that all four meetings were taped.

Mr. Woolliams: Is the
existence?

The Chairman: This will be checked.

tape still in

Mr. Woolliams: Have you any objections if
anybody on this Committee wanted to have
the tape played to have that tape played, if
they wanted to go in privately and hear it to
make certain whether it is correctly recorded
or not. Anybody can make an error. Some-
times even the most able people in the Han-
sard reporters can make an error. And if
somebody has any suggestions that something
was left out, Mr. Chairman, would they have
the privilege and the right to go in and hear
the tape played? And then they could check
the report of November 28 which is No. 6, so
there would not be any problem in that
regard.
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The Chairman: Yes, I believe such, but if
there is any member who believes that as a
member of this Committee he was incorrectly
reported in the proceedings, then he could
raise the matter. But on general grounds like
this, I believe that we are quite far from our
jurisdiction and the terms of reference in
which we have to operate right now.

Mr. Woolliams: Well, of course, the terms
of reference, with the greatest respect, Mr.
Chairman, are these. The terms of reference
are clear, and the fact is if anybody has any
suggestion, and I have not, because I was not
on the Committee so I do not know what took
place, but there must be some reason for this
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line of questioning. And with the greatest res-
pect, if someone does feel that way, all I am
asking is could they go in and hear the tape?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, Mr. McGrath
was present at the meeting on November 28,
as appears in Exhibit 2, and I was just won-
dering if he has any observations as to
whether or not, so far as he is concerned, to
his memory there was anything left out that
we should perhaps have included if there
were mistakes made.

Mr. McGrath: No. That is not the evidence
as far as I can see.

The Chairman: Mr.

through?

Hogarth, are you

Mr. Hogarth: Yes, I am through. I am just
asking Mr. McGrath. ..

Mr. McGrath: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have
no comments to make. The evidence was
accurate as far as I am concerned. My ques-
tioning was merely to see if there was any
reason for the delay in printing the evidence.
I have heard from Mr. Plouffe, and that is all.

[Interprétation]

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr.
Plouffe. Mr. Fortin?

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Chairman, I would like to
know what has been decided, with regard
with Mr. Woolliams’ suggestion, because the
interpretation is a little slow?

The Chairman: Mr. Woolliams made a
suggestion that if any Member sitting on the
Committee on Transport and Communications
considers that he has been incorrectly report-
ed, he would be able to listen to the tape. But
no member has complained of having been
incorrectly quoted in the report of the Com-
mittee on Transport and Communications. If
someone brings up the matter or considers
that he was incorrectly quoted, he will then
be able to listen to the taped proceedings.
But, no one has raised the question.

[English]

We have here Mr. Robert Normand, who is
the Clerk of the Transport and Communica-
tions Committee. I would invite Mr. Nor-
mand who is here, to receive the relevant
questions that you would ask of him.

Mr. Nesbitt: Perhaps, to save a bit of time,
Mr. Normand could tell us first of all, did he
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prepare a draft report, a draft of the second
report of the Committee for eventual
submission?

Mr. Robert Normand (Clerk, Transport and
Communications Committee): Yes, Mr. Chair-
man, I prepared a draft.

Mr. Nesbitt: At whose request did you pre-
pare the draft?

Mr. Normand: I prepared the draft accord-
ing to the instructions received from the
Committee at the meeting held on November
28.

Mr. Nesbitt: How were these instructions
given to you, Mr. Normand?

Mr. Normand: The Subcommittee on Agen-
da and Procedure recommended—may I read
this Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Nesbiti: That would be better.

Mr. Normand:

The Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure of the Standing Committee on
Transport and Communications met at 11
o’clock this morning. The Chairman, Mr.
Blouin, presided.

I will dispense with the members.
Your Committee agreed unanimously to
the following decisions and recommend-
ations.

The first four points dealt with agenda.

5. That the Committee report to the
House asking that the scope of the Order
of Reference dated October 16, 1968, be
enlarged authorizing the Committee to
study:

(a) Transportation problems of the
Atlantic Provinces.

(b) Claims of the Great Slave Railway
Company against the Canadian National
Railway Company.
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This report of the steering committee was
approved, and I prepared the second report
according to this.

Mr. Nesbitt: Did you prepare the report
automatically, or were there any specific
instructions from the Chairman or the mem-
bers of the Committee to draft it?

Mr.
instructions,

Normand:
Mr.

There were no special
Nesbitt. I prepared this
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according to the
Committee.

Mr. Nesbitt: After you prepared this draft
report, to whom did you submit the report?

instructions from the

Mr. Normand: I put this in a file, and I
deposited this on Mr. Blouin’s desk.

Mr. Nesbitt: To the best of your memory,
what took place after that as far as the report
is concerned? Was it brought before any
group of members, as far as you can recall?
What happened to it then?

Mr. Normand: I would like to be nailed
down a little tighter, Mr. Nesbitt. This ques-
tion implicates a few things. If you mean this

report was studied by the steering committee,
it was.

Mr. Nesbiti: It was, with those two recom-
mendations in it.

Mr. Normand: That is right.

Mr. Nesbiti: Can you recall the date when
this took place?

Mr. Normand: Yes, sir. On November 26.
That is correct, November 26. The steering
committee held its meeting on November 26,

and the report was concurred in on Novem-
ber 28.

Mr. Nesbitt: I just want to take one step at
a time. Who was present at the Steering Com-
mittee on that occasion?

The Chairman: On the Steering Committee
on the 26.

Mr. Normand: Mr. Blouin, Mr. Mahoney,

Mr. Schreyer, Mr. Serré and Mr. Thomas
from Moncton.

Mr. Nesbitt: I see.
Mr. Normand: A total of five.

Mr. Nesbitt: And then you say after that
the report was submitted to the Standing
Committee on Transport. When was this sub-
mitted to that Committee?

Mr. Normand: November 28 sir.

Mr. Nesbitt: November 28. Was the report
prepared originally by yourself, and then,
having been, as you say, approved by the
Steering Committee, was it discussed by the
Standing Committee on Transport?

Mr. Normand: I prepared the second report
to the House following the meeting which was
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held on November 28 and then I submitted
the whole thing to Mr. Blouin. It was deposit-
ed on his desk for his signature and tabled in
the House on December 3.

Mr. Nesbitt: There is some confusion as far
as I am concerned; perhaps it is my misun-
derstanding of it. Originally you prepared a
draft second report of the Committee which
you automatically would do as secretary of
the Committee. That was submitted first of all
to Mr. Blouin, the Chairman. Then on
November 26, as I recall you saying, this was
examined by the Steering Committee of
which certain members were present, as you
have told us.

Mr. Normand: No, that is not right sir. May
I please go through this again. On November
26 the Steering Committee held a meeting
and recommended to the Standing Committee
on Transport and Communications the follow-
ing decisions and recommendations. In its
report the four first items were naturally just
agenda for forthcoming meetings. Item No. 5
was read as follows:
That the Committee report to the House
asking that the scope of the order of ref-
erence dated October 16, 1968 be enlarged
authorizing the Committee to study...

And here we have the two points.

(a) Transportation problems of the Atlan-
tic Provinces.

and (b) the Great Slave affair.
Now, this report of the Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure was typed and then I
submitted it to the Committee on Transport
and Communications which was held on
November 28 two days later.

Mr. Nesbiti: Yes.

Mr. Normand: And it was approved. Fol-
lowing this I prepared the second report to
the House exactly as the report of the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure read.

Mr. Nesbiti: And that report was approved
at the commencement of the meeting on
November 28?

Mr. Normand: Well, the report of the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure was
approved, yes that is right.

Mr. Nesbitt: At the commencement of the
meeting of the Committee on the 28?

Mr. Normand: That is right.
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Mr. Nesbitt: Then at the conclusion of the
Committee meeting on that day you then
drafted a report for the Chairman, Mr.
Blouin?

Mr. Normand: That is right.

Mr. Nesbitt: Did you discuss the contents of
the report with Mr. Blouin?

Mr. Normand: No, sir. I prepared the
report according to instructions that I
received at the Committee and I put this on
his desk for his signature.

The Chairman: Would you refer—I am sor-
ry, Mr. Nesbitt.

Mr. Nesbitt: It is all right, certainly, Mr.
Chairman.

The Chairman: I would just like you to
refer to the kind of instructions that you
received from the Standing Committee. You
said that you received instructions from the
Committee to prepare this report. Could you
read it?

Mr. Normand: Mr. Chairman, if I may go
through this on page. ..

The Chairman: Simply refer to the page.

Mr. Normand: Yes. On page 72, Issue No. 6,
right hand column. Maybe I should start with
the statement that was made—by Mr.
Douglas.

Mr. Douglas: That is what I was going
to ask. I understood you were going to
ask for an order of the House to permit
us to deal with these claims.

We were talking about claims at this time.

The Chairman: Yes, we are. Next
Tuesday a report will be presented to the
House.

Following this Mr. Nesbitt:

Mr., Nesbitt: I presume, then, that
between now and Tuesday, Mr. Chair-
man; the first report of this Committee
will be prepared for submission to the
House and that it will contain a request
to have a hearing on the claims against
the CNR concerning the Great Slave
Lake Railway and also a request that the
Committee, at some date agreed by the
House, visit the Atlantic Provinces?
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Now the Chairman:

The Chairman: That is correct. That
report will be presented to the House on
Tuesday. Is that agreed?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Hogarth.

Mr. Hogarth: I notice on page 108 of the
same volume of the proceedings of the Com-
mittee on November 28 that the resolution
with which we are concerned in these pro-
ceedings was moved by Mr. McGrath. On
page 109 it was voted on by the Committee.
Just for the record that resolution was:

That the Canadian Transport Commission
be requested to postpone the implementa-
tion of its decision to abandon railway
service in Newfoundland until such a
time as the Committee travel to New-
foundland to study the transportation
problems of the Atlantic Provinces.

Was there ever a resolution of the Committee
that that be reported to the House?

Mr. Normand: I never had any precise
instruction from the Committee; that is to
say, I did not receive any precise resolution
for the Committee to report this resolution to
the House.

Mr. Hogarth: When resolutions are passed
in Committee, is it the normal procedure
when they have further resolutions that such
resolutions be reported to the House if they
want them included in any report?

The Chairman: I am just asking myself,
Mr. Hogarth, if this question could be asked
of the witness.

Mr. Hogarth: I will withdraw the question,
because I appreciate that might have legal
implications.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Woolliams.

Mr. Woolliams: I just want to bring this to
your attention, and I think I can come to
grips with this problem very quickly so we
can expedite this matter. I do not see any
reason to play around the edges. On Votes
and Proceedings of the House of Commons of
Canada No. 56 on December 3, 1968 at 2.30
o’clock p.m. it says:

Mr. Blouin, from the Standing Commit-
tee on Transport and Communications,
presented the Second Report of the said
Committee, which was read as follows:



January 30, 1969

Your Committee recommends that its
Order of Reference be enlarged allowing
it to consider the following:

I am not going to worry about anything but
the thing we are here concerned with.

1. The problems of transportation in
the Atlantic Provinces.

I suggest to you, Mr. Witness, that the prob-
lems in reference to transportation in the
Atlantic Provinces certainly are connected
with this resolution which my friend Mr.
Hogarth has already read in, which in brief
says:
That the Canadian Transport Commission
be requested to postpone the implementa-
tion of its decision to abandon railway
service in Newfoundland until such a
time as the Committee travel to New-
foundland to study the transportation...

Was this resolution and its recommendations
left out, in your opinion, in the Second
Report which was filed and became part of
the record of the House of Commons?

Mr. Normand: No.

Mr. Woolliams: All right. Would you now
read from the Second Report where the reso-
lution is in that report.

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, I think the
witness is not responding to the question,
because you see the report was obviously left
out. The resolution was obviously left out of
the Report and I think my friend wants to
know why. Is that correct?

Mr. Woolliams: Yes. First of all I want to
know if it was left out. I think it is correct
the answer would be “yes”; and secondly, if
it was left out, which is very good and I
appreciate Mr. Hogarth who has come to very
serious grips with the problem, why it was
left out?

The Chairman: This is the matter, but you
can draw your own conclusion, Mr. Wool-
liams. First, I would say—
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Mr. Woolliams: I am asking if he knows.
We can draw inferences as long as we like,
but if this witness said it was left out because
the Steering Committee wanted it left out, or
because the Steering Committee did not meet
and they wanted it in but the Chairman left it
out, or somebody in the Committee said it
should be left out, I want to find out that
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evidence. If the answer is that it was suggest-
ed by the Steering Committee and the Steer-
ing Committee was composed of members of
all parties, I think then we have come to
grips with the matter. But here is what the
member said, and this is why the Speaker
ruled. Mr. James McGrath said this:
My question of privilege is based on the
fact that the resolution adopted by the
committee on November 28 was, in my
view, deliberately omitted from its report
to the house on November 29; that it
constitutes an important part of the com-
mittee’s recommendation to visit the
Atlantic provinces, and thereby infringes
upon the rights and privileges of myself
and the other members of that committee
who by majority vote moved its adoption.

That is the reason I have asked the question.
Now I would like to re-state that question.
Was it left out in the second report?

Mr. Normand: I did not receive any
instructions from the Committee to report the
resolution to the House.

Mr. Woolliams: And is that the reason it
was left out?

Mr. Normand: It was not left out; I simply
did not receive any instructions to report it
in.

Mr. Woolliams:
instructions?

Who gave you those

Mr. Normand: Nobody—I did not receive
any instructions from the Committee to
report this resolution to the House.

Mr. Woolliams: Is it not a fact, with our
knowledge of committee workings, that gen-
tlemen in your capacity who hold such jobs—
and you do an excellent job—generally pre-
pare the report and then the report is exam-
ined by the steering committee? Actually, the
hard work of drafting is done by yourself.

Mr. Normand: It has been studied by the
steering committee, Mr. Woolliams.

Mr. Woolliams: All right but before you
drafted the report did the steering committee
make suggestions to you, or did you just draft
a report without any instructions whatsoever?

Mr. Normand: I drafted the report accord-
ing to the instructions received from the
Committee on November 28.

Mr. Woolliams:
instructions?

And what were those
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An hon. Member: He has already referred
to them.

Mr. Woolliams: Now I want to hear this.

The Chairman: This is the precise point. I
do not mind if the witness repeats what he
has already said.

Mr. Jerome: This is the third time we have
been over it.

Mr. Woolliams: All right. Where are those
instructions found, and what were they?

Mr, Normand: Page 72, right-hand column,
starting with the Chairman:
Yes, we are. Next Tuesday a report will
be presented to the House.

Then Mr. Nesbitt says:

I presume, then, that between now and
Tuesday, Mr. Chairman; the first report
of this Committee will be prepared for
submission to the House and that it will
contain a request to have a hearing on
the claims against the CNR concerning
the Great Slave Lake Railway and also a
request that the Committee, at some date
agreed by the House, visit the Atlantic
Provinces?

The Chairman: That is correct. That
report will be presented to the House on
Tuesday. Is that agreed?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

Mr. Woolliams: All right. Now you have
established that and I thank you very much.

This motion that we are talking about that
was omitted does deal with transportation of
the Atlantic Provinces, does it not?

Mr. Normand: Yes, sir.

Mr. Woolliams: And that resolution was
moved subsequent to those proceedings that
you have read from on page 72, was it not?

Mr. Normand: Three hours later, yes.

Mr. Woolliams: That is right. And you
would agree with me, I am sure, that the
resolution in question does concern the prob-
lems of transportation in the Atlantic Prov-
inces—because Newfoundland is a part of the
Atlantic Provinces and there is no doubt
about it that when we are dealing with trans-
portation the railways are an important part
of transportation for Newfoundland.

The Chairman: Mr. Woolliams, I have no
objection to your asking any relevant ques-
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tions of the witness but I do not think you
should argue the subject itself with him.
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Mr. Woolliams: I am not being argumenta-
tive; I am asking. This is my question: Do
you consider the resolution requesting that
the Committee visit Newfoundland before
there is any change in transportation in so far
as the railways are concerned a part of the
problems of transportation of the Atlantic
Provinces.

Mr. Normand: The resolution is worded in
such a way, yes, sir.

Mr. Woolliams: Right. So that the instrue-
tions you read from on page 72 really
instructed this Committee to deal with the
Atlantic Provinces’ problem as to transporta-
tion, and as this resolution is dealing directly
with transportation then I would say that
your instructions were such that it should
have been included in that report. Is that not
correct?

The Chairman: I am not going to allow
such questions to be asked of the witness. It
is part of our duty to make this decision, Mr.
Woolliams, not the Clerk.

Mr. Woolliams: Well I am asking his opin-
ion. He drafted the report.

The Chairman: I will not allow these ques-
tions. We are not here to ask of this witness
any questions of opinion.

Mr. Woolliams: Well, let me put it this
way. He is an expert witness but let me put it
this way—and if you rule me out of order...

Mr. Hogarth: Wait a minute.

The Chairman: No, Mr. Woolliams. You can
rephrase your questions but I will not allow
you to ask of the witness any questions re-
garding his own opinion. He is not here for
that reason.

Mr. Woolliams: Well having drafted the
report to assist the Committee did you consid-
er in drafting it that that resolution dealt
with the problem of transportation in the
Atlantic Provinces?

Mr. Normand: I realized that this resolution
deals with problems of the Atlantic Provinces
but, furthermore, I also realized that I did
not receive any instructions to report it to the
House from the Committee.
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Mr. Woolliams: But your instructions did
say that the Committee’s second report should
include the problems of transportation in the
Atlantic Provinces, and the stopping of rail-
roads or a decision in that regard would be a
matter dealing with the Atlantic Provinces. In
drafting the report did you take that into
consideration?

Mr. Normand: I only acted upon instruc-
tions received from the Committee, Mr. Chair-
man, which is clearly defined in what I read
a while ago.

Mr. Woolliams: I take it then that the reso-
lution, as far as you are concerned was not
reported because you did not feel it was part
of your instructions.

The Chairman: I am not going to allow
these questions.

Mr. Woolliams: Well, good gracious, that is
the whole point.

The Chairman: Mr. Woolliams, the witness
is not here to express his own feelings about
what should be done or not. On many occa-
sions Mr. Normand has answered very pre-
cisely to precise questions you asked, but I
would think that you personally believe too
that he is not here to give his own opinion.

Mr. Woolliams: Well, may I speak on a
point of order?

It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that we
have a resolution which instructed the Com-
mittee—found on page 72, and we have
another resolution, on the same date of
November 28—and of course it is very broad
in its sense: the problems of transportation in
the Atlantic Provinces. Now the problem
meeting the Committee at that moment, from
reading the reports very carefully, was not
the question of ships and harbours—not even
the question of busses; the whole problem
was that the Canadian Transport Commission
be requested to postpone the implementation
of a decision to abandon railway service.
There was a suggestion, and it may have
gone as far as an order, that the railway
service in Newfoundland be abandoned. Now
what surely the Committee passed, and it was
approved by the majority of the Committee
at that time, was that before that decision be
made, affecting the transportation in the
Atlantic Provinces, that the Committee visit
Newfoundland. Now if that is not important
and if that is not in the terms of reference in
reference to Votes and Proceedings, then I do
not know why we are sitting here—we are
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wasting our time. I am merely asking the
witness, with the greatest respect—and I
mean this, sir. He drafted the Committee
report. It is my experience over the years
that those gentlemen who do that do an
excellent job. Sometimes we may not agree
with it—we may want to delete something or
add something. I am merely asking him if, in
his instructions he received on page 72, he
considered that resolution a problem of the
transportation in the Atlantic Provinces; if he
did, that was part of his instructions, there-
fore why was the resolution left out? That is
all I am asking him. Surely that is a relevant
question, surely that is necessary so that we
here can come to a proper decision on reason-
able evidence as reasonable men.

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, is my under-
standing correct, that this is a point of order?

The Chairman: No, no.
Mr. Hogarth: He made it a point of order.

The Chairman: I am going to allow the
question as rephrased.
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Mr. Woolliams: I appreciate that, Mr.
Chairman, and before he answers I want to
say that you are being most fair and
courteous.

Witness, you have heard the question. Can
you tell us in Committee then why the reso-
lution was omitted from the report when I
have suggested it is part of the problems of
transportation of the Atlantic Provinces? Can
you give us the answer to that?

Mr. Normand: Mr. Chairman, I can only
state that I did not receive any instruction
from the Committee to report it in the
House?

Mr. Woolliams: Did you consider it part of
the Atlantic transportation problem in pre-
paring the draft of the report?

Mr. Normand: Well, I had to because it was
in the minutes, although I also considered
that I did not receive any instructions to
report it in.

Mr. Woolliams: Now this may not be a
proper question for you to answer, but in
preparing your report—there are motions
adopted and passed by every committee and,
of course, they are important parts of the
proceedings—do you consider an instruction
or a motion carrying instructions important
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enough to include in a report when you are
drafting it? Is that your general practice?

The Chairman: Mr. Woolliams, this might
be a matter of law but I think, as in a council
of war or committee, they speak by resolu-
tion. However, as Clerk of this Committee
you must realize, I believe, that he has to
follow the instructions he receives from this
very Committee—and the only instructions
that can be given to a Clerk is by a
resolution.

Mr. Woolliams: With the greatest respect,
Mr. Chairman, the instructions were given
before the Committee heard the evidence.
Then, after the evidence—may I finish, Mr.
Hogarth, and then I am prepared to listen to
you.

Mr. Hogarth: I do hope you do.

Mr. Woolliams: I am not finished. I have
never been sarcastic with you, and I do not
intend to start this morning.

Mr. Hogarth: That is fine.

Mr. Woolliams: I would appreciate your
giving me the kind of hearing that I intend to
give you.

Mr. Hogarth: I was merely going to...

Mr. Woolliams: I am now going to speak on
a point of order. Here we have instructions,
and again I say they are very clear—“Request
that the Committee, at some date agreed by
the House, visit the Atlantic Provinces”.
Subsequent to page 72, some hour or half an
hour later, a resolution was passed dealing
with the very instructions and yet it was not
included in the report. It was not included,
with the greatest respect to the witness, in
the draft report. He said he followed instruc-
tions. If the abandonment of the railways in
Newfoundland is not a problem of the Atlan-
tic Provinces then nothing is a problem.

I submit that it is certainly a part of the
instructions. If it is not, then I am at loss to
understand.

The Chairman: Order, please.

Mr. Woolliams, you are indicating to the
witness that he should have considered the
importance of the problem. The testimony he
has already given before us has given no
indication whatsoever relative to the impor-
tance of the relevant facts that could have
been put in some further resolutions passed.
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The Clerk has simply stated that he
received instructions to prepare a draft report
that was submitted to the Chairman for
tabling in the House. This is what he says.

I do not think it is appropriate to ask of
him any questions relative to judging the
importance or the non-importance of such
other matters as could have been discussed
later on.

Mr. Woolliams: Perhaps I could add it in
my next question. I take it it was left out of
the report because you did not feel you were
instructed either by the instructions given at
page 72 or later, or at any time, that it
should be included in the report? Is that your
evidence?

Mr. Normand: The resolution in question
was not put in the report for the reason I
have stated previously and which I will
repeat now, that I did not receive any pre-
cise definite instructions from the Committee
to report this resolution to the House, or to
include it, for that matter, in the second
report.

Mr. Woolliams: Were you present when
your draft report was considered by the
Chairman or when the steering committee
considered it?

Mr. Normand: Yes.
e 1155

Mr. Woolliams: Did anyone on the steering
committee suggest that the resolution we are
dealing with be omitted or be included in
your report?

Mr. Normand: The sub-committee had its
meeting prior to November 28.

Mr. Woolliams: In other words then, the
instructions relative to the report were given
before the full evidence was heard on
November 28? Yet the report really covered
all the evidence of November 28, did it not?

Mr. Hogarth: How could it?

The Chairman: This is a matter for judg-
ment; it is not a matter of fact.

Mr. Woolliams: Was there any other
report? Your instructions are given at page
72, and considerable evidence was given after
that. Was there any other report that dealt
with this resolution, that you know of?

The Chairman: Which one?
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Mr. Woolliams: The resolution in reference
to the Transportation Committee’s visiting the
Atlantic Provinces before they abandoned the
railways in that Province?

Mr. Normand: I am sorry, sir; I fail to
understand your question.

Mr. Woolliams: All right; I will put it very
clearly. Your instructions in reference to your
report were given to you, or can be found, at
page 72. The resolution dealing with the
abandonment of the railways in Newfound-
land is to be found on page 108, which is
subsequent to the instructions we are talking
about.

Mr. Normand: That is right, yes, sir.

Mr. Woolliams: Was this motion in question
on page 108 included in a third report, or in
any other report, subsequent to the second
report?

Mr, Normand: No, sir.

Mr. Hogarth: Has there been any other
report?

Mr. Woolliams: Was all the evidence that
was given after page 72, and any instructions,
ignored by you when you drafted the report
on the date of November 28?

The Chairman: I do not believe it is fair
Mr. Woolliams, to use the word “ignored”.

Mr. Woolliams: Well, omitted; not looked
at, or not used?

The Chairman: He is not there to judge.

Mr., Woolliams: I am merely asking this:
Did you use any of the evidence before the
Committee given on November 28 after the
instructions were laid down at page 72 of No.
6 of the Transport and Communications Com-
mittee? There are 108 pages of evidence. That
means that 36 pages of evidence and motions
and proceedings were recorded after the
instructions found on page 72. Was any of the
evidence contained in those 36 pages, includ-
ing the motion, used in drafting a report?

Mr. Normand: Mr. Chairman, I wish to
submit, very humbly, that for the Clerk of
the Committee to act he needs a motion. And
in preparing my second report to the House I
acted upon a motion of the Standing Commit-
tee on Transport and Communications which
is found in the Minutes of Proceedings and
backed up on page 72; but I did not receive
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any instructions to report anything else to the
House.

Mr. Woolliams: I read again from 72,
also a request that the Committee, at
some date agreed by the House, visit the
Atlantic Provinces.

When one looks at the motion that we
passed, or adopted, by the Committee at page
108, it deals with the very thing that the
instructions dealt with, but it merely says
that we do not abandon railways until the
Committee visits Newfoundland.

When there is a request that the Committee
at some date agree to visit the Provinces and
one reads that together with the further
instruction in the motion on page 108, that the
Committee should visit before the railways
are abandoned, that, to me, should surely be
part of the instructions.

I come now to my next question: Did any
one on the steering committee, or any mem-
ber of this Committee, before the report was
filed in the House of Commons, ever suggest
that that motion on page 108 of the proceed-
ings on November 28 be made part of that
report?

Mr. Normand: No, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Woolliams: Did anyone suggest to you
that it be left out of the report?

Mr. Normand: Again, no, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Woolliams: How many people consid-
ered your report before it became part of the
proceedings of the House of Commons?

e 1200
Mr. Normand: The report. ..
An hon. Member: How does he know?

Mr. Woolliams:
steering committee.
How many are members of this Committee?

Because he was at the

Mr. Hogarth: In his presence?

The Chairman: He cannot answer these
questions. He said that he prepared the draft
report and put it on Mr. Blouin’s desk.

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, on a point
of order?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Lundrigan: Should not the witness
indicate that he cannot answer the question.
This, to me, would be the proper ...
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The Chairman: Well, I must ...

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, may I finish
my point of order?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Lundrigan: I think there has been
ample evidence here this morning of a bit of
coaching on the part of a number of hon.
members—and I would even say the Chair—
as to the evidence being submitted by the
witness. I think it is quite obvious that if the
witness cannot answer the question, if he
does not have the evidence to support his
position, that he should then be allowed to
make that statement.

The Chairman: The witness is here but he
is not here to answer any questions that are
not judged to be relevant questions by the
Chairman. This is my duty and I intend to
continue on this ground.

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate
your responsibility in that regard and I think
it is quite proper to rule a question out of
order, but to indicate to the witness that per-
haps he does not have the evidence to answer
the question—which was indicated a moment
ago—I do not think is ruling the question as
the Chair should. Nobody is disputing your
ruling as to whether the question is in order.
I think that is the responsibility of the Chair.

The Chairman: If the questions which are
ruled out of order could be rephrased in such
a way that the witness could answer them, I
will allow them.

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, I think it
should be ruled that question is not in order
and that it should be rephrased, rather than
ruling that the witness does not have the
evidence to answer the question. That is my
point of order.

Mr. Woolliams: Did Mr. Macdonald, Presi-
dent of the Queen’s Privy Council for Cana-
da, every suggest ...

Mr. MacGuigan: On this same point of
order, I think it is quite clear when you rule
the witness does not have the evidence on
which to answer the question that in effect
you are ruling the question is out of order. I
think that is the answer to the hon. member’s
question. You are making such a ruling. You
may not be using that exact formula, but that
is the effect of it.

Mr. Lundrigan: My point of order was
directed to the Chairman and I accept the
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Chairman’s decision. If we have a second
chairman with us, then I think this should be
indicated to the group.

Mr. Richard: Anybody is allowed to speak
here.

Mr. MacGuigan: Mr. Chairman, I think we
are all entitled to make submissions to the
Chair, not just members of the opposition
party.

An hon. Member: Go ahead and make your
submission.

Mr. Woolliams: I am sorry that we have
had this interruption. I will preface my ques-
tion this way. On page 3587 of Hansard Mr.
Macdonald (Rosedale) said:

I have not studied this; I am advised
the resolution was passed but that it was
out of order.

Did Mr. Macdonald or any member of this
Committee or of the House of Commons ever
suggest in your presence at any time when
this report was under consideration by the
Steering Committee or the Chairman that the
resolution be left out because it was out of
order?

Mr. Normand: No, sir.

Mr, Sullivan: I am sure that is the answer.
We do not have to go on for another half an
hour.

Mr. Woolliams: Mr. Chairman, if my good
friends came here to block the evidence, to
cover up everything and sweep it under the
carpet, it is obvious by the interruptions that
they have made this morning that they are
not really interested in finding out what is
going on.

The Chairman: I rely on the goodwill of all
the members of this Committee to confine
their remarks to the facts and the evidence
which has already been given. I do not think
it would be worthwhile for any one of us to
enter into an argument. Mr. Woolliams has
asked questions of the witness and the
witness has answered. If there are other rele-
vant facts, let us go on.

Mr. Woolliams: Yes, but with the greatest
of respect, Mr. Chairman—and you have not
done it—when I am asking questions the hon.
members across the way who belong to the
Liberal Party in the government are saying,
“We have had that answer, we know the
answer”. That was the first time I put the
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question in reference to Mr. Macdonald and
the first time I put the question in reference
to the Steering Committee, and then we have
these remarks to the effect that the questions
were asked previously and they were not
relevant to the issue. In my opinion they are
relevant. I am going to abide by your ruling.
I may not agree with your ruling; that is my
privilege. I have my rights in this Committee.
I came here with a certain degree of respon-
sibility. They may have come here with a
certain degree of responsibility and instruc-
tions, but I am merely asking this witness
sir, with the greatest respect, certain ques-
tions to find out why a motion did not become
part of a report in the House of Commons.
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Mr. Hogarth: I have listened to this—
Mr. Woolliams: Well, of course—
The Chairman: Order, please.

Mr. Woolliams: Mr. Hogarth is not interest-
ed in the evidence.

Mr. Hogarth:
evidence.

I am fascinated by the

Mr. Woolliams: He is interested in keeping
the facts under the table.

The Chairman: Order, please.

Mr. Hogarth: I am fascinated by the evi-
dence. However, I might say that this witness
has explained with abundant clarity why that
resolution was not included in the report. I
do not see why we have to go on.

Mr. Woolliams: Mr. Hogarth has said it is
abundantly clear. With the greatest respect, I
think it is abundantly not clear, and I have a
right to my opinion. He has a right to his
opinion.

The Chairman: If you have any other ques-
tions, Mr. Woolliams—

Mr. Woolliams: I have other questions but
when I am putting them I do not need these
kinds of interruptions or these kinds of
suggestions from the hon. member, Mr.
Hogarth.

Mr. Sullivan: Mr. Chairman, I would just
like to add that as this question has been
answered once we should not go over it four
or five times. I am suggesting, with respect,
that the last member has gone over every-
thing that Mr. Nesbitt went over, and then he
has done so two or three more times. I do not
think this should be a platform. We are here
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to make a finding, not to listen to a witness
being abused.

Mr. Woolliams: With the greatest respect,
on the point of order, I have not abused this
witness. I respect this witness. I respect his
word. I suggest with the greatest respect,
that Mr. Nesbitt did not ask any of the ques-
tions I have asked.

The Chairman: I do not see any point of
order in this. We will not go any further. Mr.
Woolliams, do you have any other questions
to ask the witness?

Mr. Woolliams: I want to proceed. When
the report went to the Steering Committee,
after you drafted it, was there any discussion
by anybody at the Steering Committee level
in reference to the motion that was passed by
this Committee and which is found on page
108?

Mr. Normand: Mr. Chairman, this report
was not referred to the Steering Committee.

Mr. Woolliams: That ends it. Was it
referred to the Chairman of this Committee?

Mr. Normand: It was put on his desk.

Mr. Woolliams: Right. Did you have any
discussion with him in reference to the report
after you put it on his desk?

Mr. Normand: Let us just say that he did
not call me.

Mr. Woolliams: Right. Thank you very
much. I do not want any more answers.

Mr. Jerome: Witness, may I just ask you
one or two questions. You have already told
us in your evidence this morning that you
drafted this report on the basis of instructions
that have been made public. Was the report
that was ultimately tabled in the House of
Commons in the form in which you prepared
the draft, or to your knowledge were any
substantial changes made in it in the
interval?

Mr. Normand: It was made exactly as I
prepared it, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Jerome: Thank you. That is the only
question I have.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortin.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I
have only a few questions to ask. Can the
witness tell us if, normally, the instructions
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given to him by the Committee are in writing
or oral?

Mr. Normand: The instructions given to the
Clerk of the Committee are given through
resolutions. And the Clerk is bound by the
resolutions that are adopted during the
meeting.

Mr. Fortin: Is it the same case as far as the
Subcommittee is concerned?

Mr. Normand: It is exactly the same thing,
Mr. Chairman. The report of the Subcommit-
tee is drafted according to the instructions of
the Subcommittee and then submitted to the
Committee.

Mr. Fortin: When a Committee holds a
meeting, is everything that is said published
in the public report?

Mr. Normand: That depends. Are you talk-
ing about the subcommittee or the Committee
meeting?

Mr, Fortin: My question deals with both the
subcommittee and for the whole Committee.

Mr. Normand: Mr. Chairman, for the sub-
committee, nothing is taped. But on the other
hand, the meeting of the Committee itself is
taped.

Mr. Fortin: When you have to have a
report adopted, and when the Subcommittee
does not sit, who adopts it?

Mr. Normand: Would you please rephrase
the question?

Mr. Fortin: Suppose that as Clerk, you
have to prepare the report of the Committee
you have to submit it afterwards to the Sub-
committee to have it adopted, and the Sub-
committee does not sit, who adopts the
report?

Mr. Normand: If you are speaking of the
Subcommittee, on Agenda and Procedure, the
report it makes, if it makes one, has to be
adopted by the Committee. If it is not submit-
ted to the meeting,...
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Mr. Fortin: Had the report tabled on Mr.
Blouin’s desk been adopted beforehand?

Mr. Normand: At the Committee meeting,
I prepared the report according to the in-
structions given to me during the meeting
of the Committee held on the 28th of No-
vember.
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The Chairman:
Committee.

The meeting of the

Mr. Normand: Yes, during the Committee
meeting of November 28.

Mr. Fortin: Would you tell me, Mr. witness,
if I take a practical example what happens?
In the record of the 6th of December proceed-
ings No. 8, it says:

Resolved—That nomination be closed.

It states:

The vote on a show of hands resulted in
a tie.

It seems that a vote had been taken. Then
you explained who voted for and who voted
against. The result is 9 to 9. Then, you
concluded:

After discussion, no decision having been
reached on the main motion and nine
members having walked out. ..

You took notes of the Committee’s proceed-
ings, you are the Committee clerk and you
report the facts as they occur. Tell me what
becomes of these notes you have just taken?

Mr. Normand: As far as the 6th of Novem-
ber session is concerned, which is in the No. 8
issue of the Proceedings, when we selected
the Chairman of the Committee of Transport
and Communications, the report was drawn
up and when the nine members withdrew the
meeting was adjourned.

Mr. Fortin: In your experience then does
the resolution carry when there is a tied
vote? I know it is not that important.

Mr, Normand: It does not carry, Mr. Fortin.

Mr. Fortin: So the motion is dropped and
the committee goes on with its proceedings?

Mr., Normand: No, it adjourns.
Mr. Fortin: It adjourns?
Mr. Normand: Yes.

Mr, Fortin: So you send the whole thing for
adoption and printing.

Mr. Normand: Exactly, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Fortin: In other words, it is not you
who sends this report for printing of
translation?

Mr. Normand: I only report what happens
at the meeting.
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Mr. Fortin: Do you send the work to Mr.
Plouffe’s department?

Mr. Normand:
printers’?

Mr. Fortin: Yes.

Mr. Normand: I do all the preliminary
work. I prepare the envelopes and prelimi-
nary pages and then wait for the evidence to
be sent along. When I get the record of the
evidence I send everything to the printers’.

Mr. Fortin: In other words, does the Chair-
man of the Committee before presenting his
report to the House, does he say that the
report is correct and accurate, or does he
comment on it, or does he take the report and
table it in the House without consulting you?

Do you mean to the

The Chairman: Could you be more precise,
Mr. Fortin. You may ask whether after hav-
ing prepared the report, the Chairman made
comments on that particular report rather
than going. ..

Mr. Fortin: I think we are dealing with an
exception. And I want to establish what hap-
pens normally, so that I can decide whether
this in an exception to the rule or not?

The Chairman: Fine.

Mr. Fortin: After you have prepared your
report and submitted it to the Chairman of
the Committee, before he tables it in the
House or presents it to the House for adop-
tion, does he normally make any comment on
it to you?

Mr. Normand: Let us say that if everything
is all right, I hear no more about it. If there
is an error then the Chairman will get in
touch with me and tell me: “Such and such a
thing does not appear to be right.”
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Mr. Fortin: And in this particular case, you
feel everything was right?

Mr. Normand: Let us say that I got no
telephone call from the Chairman.

Mr. Trudel: Mr. Chairman, I want to clari-
fy one point only. I think three members
questioned the processing of the report pre-
pared by the witness. One said that the report
was prepared and then submitted to the
Chairman, but there were no further meet-
ings. It was presented in its original form
with no corrections. Can the witness confirm
this?
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Mr. Normand: Right. I prepared the report,
put it on Mr. Blouin’s desk in the presence of
his secretary. And that was the last I heard of
it.

Mr. Trudel: There was no meeting to dis-
cuss the contents of the report. You submitted
it for signature only?

Mr. Normand: Right.
Mr. Trudel: Thank you.

[English]

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions to Mr. Normand?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: One question, Mr. Chairman.
After Mr. Blouin presented his report to the
House for adoption certain events took place
in the House concerning that report. Certain
members then made statements and raised a
question of privilege. Did Mr. Blouin get in
touch with you after that?

Mr. Normand: No, Mr. Chairman.

[English]

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, I have a
supplementary question. The witness has said
“Let us just say that I received no telephone
call from the Chairman” and again, a little
later, identically the same statement, “Let us
just say that I received no telephone call
from the Chairman”. Let me just ask, did the
witness receive any communications at all
from the Chairman, or was he in any way
involved in any discussions with the Chair-
man regarding his draft report which for-
mulated the second report which was accept-
ed by the House?

Mr. Normand: Mr. Chairman, I am sorry. I
must have misled the members while answer-
ing this question. I should have answered,
“no”, shortly—no phone calls, no communica-
tions whatsoever, nothing.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Chairman, I personally am
ready to hear Mr. Blouin.
[English]

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions that could be asked?

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, I have an-
other similar question. Did the witness in
any way contact the Chairman of the Com-
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mittee subsequent to the placing of the re-
port on the desk of the Chairman?

Mr. Normand: No, Mr. Chairman, I did not
try to reach Mr. Blouin.

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, I am not
sure who I could ask this question of but in
the event of an error in judgment which may
be made by a Clerk, is there any recourse to
members of the Committee or members of the
House of Commons concerning corrective
procedures which could be adopted?

The Chairman: Well, there is an obvious
recourse. After this very resolution was
passed at the end of the meeting on Novem-
ber 28, at the following meeting the Commit-
tee could have requested the Chairman to
table another report in the House.

Mr. Lundrigan: At the following meeting.
The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, I would like to
raise a question with this witness that I do
not think is on the record. Was the state of
the proceedings of this Committee such that
further reports were anticipated? I am refer-
ring to November 28; this was not a final
report, was it? Was the state of proceedings
such on November 28 that further reports
were going to be made from this Committee
to the House? Did you anticipate that? This
was not a final report, that is what I am
getting at.

Mr. Normand: Oh, no.

Mr. Hogarth: So further reports would be
anticipated after Novemver 28?

Mr. Normand: Well, if the Committee has
an Order of Reference in front of it, it can
submit further reports. . .

Mr. Hogarth: Yes.

Mr. Normand: ...but the state of affairs
after was that when the estimates were
recalled to the House, no Order of Reference
was before the Committee.

Mr. Hogarth: I appreciate that, but the
point I am making is that after November 28,
after the resolution of Mr. McGrath was
passed by the Committee, there were still
further reports contemplated from this Com-
mittee on the terms of reference it originally
had. Is that not so, or do you know?
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Mr. Normand: I cannot say at this stage,
Mr. Chairman. I do not know.

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, I suppose we
should determine whether we are finished
with this witness. It appears that we are.
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The Chairman: I was going to ask the
members if they had any other questions to
ask Mr. Normand.

Mr. Wooiliams: I just have one more ques-
tion. To follow up from what Mr. Hogarth
said, which is in line with what the witness
has said in reference to my question, as the
report was not referred to the standing com-
mittee and was not referred to the steering
committee, to the best of your knowledge,
having read the report that was finally filed
in the House of Commons, were there any
omissions from or additions to your original
draft?

Mr. Jerome: I asked him that and he said,
“noﬂ.

Mr. Normand: No omissions, sir.
Mr. Woolliams: Were there any additions?
Mr. Normand: No.

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, may I ask
the witness just one last question? Does he, in
fact, say that there was an error in judgment
as to the interpretation of instructions on the
final report?

The Chairman: This is a matter for us to
decide. I would allow you to ask the question
of Mr. Normand of whether he followed the
usual practice as Clerk of this Committee.
This question, I think, would be more precise
and more appropriate than asking him if he
made an error in judgment.

Mr. Lundrigan: I am asking, simply, Mr.
Chairman, if he would say that the instruc-
tions did indicate that he should have report-
ed the resolution.

Mr. Normand: I did not receive any
instructions from the Committee to report
this resolution to the House, Mr. Chairman—I
repeat again.

Mr. Lundrigan: Mr. Chairman, he does
answer my question by saying that there was
no error in judgment; he interprets this as
meaning that the instructions were not given.
That is what he is actually saying.
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[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: After the Clerk has his report
adopted and has it sent to the printer, does
he receive a copy from the printer for adop-
tion and to check whether it is consistent?

Mr. Normand: You mean if the printed
copy is adopted as such?

Mr, Fortin: Yes.
Mr. Normand: No, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Mr. Forest.

Mr, Forest: A brief preliminary question.
How long have you been Committee Clerk?

Mr. Normand: Nine to ten years.

Mr. Foresi: The Chairman said the question
would be in order. Did you follow the normal
procedure, as you do as a rule, in making the
report of the Committee proceedings?

Mr. Normand: I followed the usual proce-
dure, Mr. Chairman.

[English]
The Chairman: Mr. Nesbitt?

Mr. Nesbitt: One very brief final question.
Could the witness tell us or give us any
explanation as to why, after he drafted the
report under the instructions that he felt he
had, the draft report was not submitted? It
was only submitted to the Chairman and not
to the steering committee and not to the
standing committee.

The Chairman: In all fairness to the
witness, Mr. Nesbitt, if you refer again to
page 72 you will see that this draft report
was, in the end, in the hands of the Chairman
at the time and there were precise instruc-
tions, precisely related in the report—

Mr. Nesbitt: Perhaps you misunderstand
my question, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: I might, yes.

Mr. Nesbitt: On page 72 it is quite clear
there are certain specific instructions given
by the Committee to the Secretary to draw up
a report and then certain events took place
afterwards at the place of the meeting. After
the meeting, presumably, the Secretary of the
Committee drafted a report which, as he has
told us, he submitted to the Chairman, Mr.
Blouin. I am merely asking if, after he sub-
mitted his draft report to the Chairman, he
could give us any reason—maybe he cannot, I
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do not know—why that draft report was not
submitted to a meeting of the steering com-
mittee and then subsequently to a meeting of
the standing committee.

Mr. Normand: Mr. Chairman, I can only
say that the Chairman of the Committee
should be the one to answer this.

Mr. Woolliams: I think that is a good idea.
The Chairman: Mr. MacGuigan?

Mr, MacGuigan: Mr. Chairman, is it the
normal procedure for a report which has
already been approved by a steering commit-
tee and then by the committee to be further
submitted, beyond the Chairman, to the
steering committee?

Mr. Normand: Not that I know of, sir,
unless it is a crucial report—a very lengthy
report, for example on the crisis in Nigeria;
but aside from this, for routine reports, not
that I know of, sir. I am sorry—not that I
know of.

Mr. McGrath: Did you consider this par-
ticular report routine?

The Chairman: We all understood that it
was not routine.

e 1225
Thank you, Mr. Normand.

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, if we have
finished with this witness, there has been
some indication that there is a desire to hear
the Chairman, Mr. Blouin, which seems natu-
ral. I understand that Mr. Blouin is expected
back in Ottawa about February 10. I wonder
if members of this Committee might agree at
this time the Committee adjourn until such
time as Mr. Blouin arrives in Ottawa so that
he can be heard. Is that not a sensible way to
proceed?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Chairman, I agree with the
Member’s remarks. I think we have enough
facts on hand to question Mr. Blouin to the
best advantage.

[English]

The Chairman: Before I put this motion for
adjournment, Mr. Jerome, we have here Mr.
Ollivier. I realize that it is 12.30 p.m. There
were some suggestions made in the steering
committee on Tuesday that we call on Mr.
Ollivier, who is the legal adviser of the House
of Commons, if some members had any ques-
tions to ask of him about the usual rules and
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so on. Because of the time, it might be more
appropriate to adjourn and if, later on, we
decide to ask questions of Mr. Ollivier, then
we could advise the steering committee that
we would like to have him with us. I want to
thank him for having been here this morning.

Is this meeting adjourned? Yes, Mr.
MacGuigan.

Mr. MacGuigan: I just want to say that
while I am quite agreeable to adjournment, I
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do not want to be taken to agree to calling
Mr. Blouin. It seems to me that we now have
the evidence we need. We have found the
reason. The Clerk has testified that he pre-
pared the report; that the final report in the
House is the report he prepared; that he
received no instructions from anybody and I
believe we have the reason.

The Chairman: As there has been a motion
made, this meeting is adjourned.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE
TuEspAY, December 10, 1968.

Ordered,—That the Second Report of the Standing Committee on Trans-
port and Communications be referred to the Standing Committee on Privileges
and Elections to determine the reason for the omission of the resolution adopted
by the Committee on November 28th, from the Second Report of the Committee
presented to the House on November 29th, and which reads as follows:

Resolved,—That the Canadian Transport Commission be requested to post-
pone the implementation of its decision to abandon railway service in New-
foundland until such a time as the Committee travel to Newfoundland to study
the transportation problems of the Atlantic Provinces.

ATTEST:

ALISTAIR FRASER,
The Clerk of the House of Commons.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE
THURSDAY, February 13, 1969

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections has the honour to
present its

THIRD REPORT

Pursuant to its Order of Reference of Tuesday, December 10, 1968, your
Committee had the Second Report of the Standing Committee on Transport
and Communications under consideration, to determine the reason for the
omission from the Report of a certain resolution adopted by that Committee,
which Report was presented to the House on December 3, 1968.

This matter having been raised in the House as a question of privilege and
the Speaker having ruled that there was a prima facie case of privilege, it
remained for your Committee to decide:

1. If there was a question of privilege involved, and

2. The reason for the omission of the resolution referred to above.

Your Committee held four meetings and heard the following witnesses:
Mr. Antonio Plouffe, Chief of the Committees and Private Legislation
Branch;

Mr. Robert Normand, Clerk of the Standing Committee on Transport
and Communications;

Mr. Gustave Blouin, M.P., former Chairman of the Standing Com-
mittee on Transport and Communications;

Dr. Maurice Ollivier, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

Your Committee reports that the reason for the omission is that it was
never moved and concurred in that the said resolution adopted by the Standing
Committee on Transport and Communications be part of its Second Report.

An act which constitutes a breach of privilege being, inter alia, disrespect
to the House, disobedience to its orders, or interference with its procedure,
your Committee, in consequence of what has been said, is of the opinion that
there has been no breach of privilege.

A copy of the relevant Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence (Issues Nos.
3 to 5 inclusive) is tabled.

Respectfully submitted,

OVIDE LAFLAMME,
Chairman.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TuespAY, February 11, 1969.
(5)

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met this day at 4.05
p.m., the Chairman, Mr. Ovide Laflamme, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cafik, Deakon, Forest, Fortin, Hogarth, Jerome,
Laflamme, MacGuigan, McGrath, Murphy, Ritchie, Schreyer, Skoberg, Trudel,
Woolliams (15).

Also present: Messrs. Allmand, Deachman, Portelance.

Witnesses: Mr. Gustave Blouin, M.P.; Dr. P. M. Ollivier, Law Clerk and
Parliamentary Counsel.

The Committee questioned Mr. Blouin concerning the proceedings and the
Second Report to the House of the Standing Committee on Transport and Com-~
munications.

The Committee questioned the Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel con-
cerning legal aspects of its Order of Reference dated December 10, 1968.

Moved by Mr. Jerome and
Agreed—That this Committee report to the House of Common pursuant to

the terms of reference of the Order of the House dated, Tuesday, December 10,
1968, on the basis of evidence received to this date.

The amendment of Mr. McGrath to this motion—
That the resolution dealing with rail passenger in Newfoundland adopted
by the Standing Committee on Transport and Communications be in-
cluded in the Committee’s Second Report now before the House—
was ruled out of order by the Chair.

At 5.50 p.m., the meeting adjourned to the call of the Chair.

THURSDAY, February 13, 1969.
(6)

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met this day at 11.10
a.m., in camera, the Chairman, Mr. Ovide Laflamme, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cafik, Forest, Fortin, Goode, Hogarth, Jerome,

Laflamme, MacGuigan, Murphy, McGrath, Peddle, Skoberg, Sullivan, Trudel
(14).

The Committee considered a draft Third Report to the House and instructed
the Chairman to present it at this day’s sitting.

At 11.30 a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Tuesday, February 11, 1969

e 1604

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we now have a
quorum, and I think it would be appropriate
to start right away. Last week we heard the
Clerk of the Transport and Communications
Committee, Mr. Normand. At the last steering
committee meeting, as you know, it was
decided to hear Mr. Blouin who was at the
time the Chairman of the Transport and
Communications Committee. He was away for
the reasons you know, and we are really glad
to have him with us here this afternoon.

I must repeat what I have already said,
that Mr. Blouin requested earlier that he
appear before the Committee to answer any
questions you may wish to ask him. This
meeting is open and Mr. Blouin is here. We
are really glad to have you with us, Mr.
Blouin, and I hope you can answer any ques-
tions you be asked within the terms of refer-
ence of this Committee.
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[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin (Former chairman of Committee
on Transport and Communications): First of
all, I thank you Mr. Chairman, and I take
this opportunity to address my thanks to
some members of the Committee who sent me
best wishes during my two stays in hospital.

[English]
Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, could we just

hold off until we get our translation ear
pieces in order.

The Chairman: Yes.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Are they operating now?

I am sorry about this delay in coming to
give evidence before this Committee. As the
Chairman stated a few minutes ago, and as
you are all aware, this delay was caused by
my recent illness and I can do nothing about
it. I am here in flesh and bone and I am quite
ready to answer the questions that the mem-

bers of the Committee want to put. That is all,
sir.

[English]

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr.
Blouin. I should inform the members that Mr.
Blouin has had an opportunity of reading the
transcript of our earlier deliberations so he is
aware of what has been said prior to this. I
will allow any member who wants to do so to
ask a question. Mr. McGrath?

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, first of all I
want to welcome Mr. Blouin back. I am glad
to see that his health has been restored; he
looks considerably better than he did the last
time we saw him.

Mr. Blouin: Thank you.

Mr. McGrath: I say that sincerely. I am
glad to note that he has read the transcript of
the evidence, especially the evidence of our
last meeting, because it is certainly our wish
that this matter be brought to a conclusion as
quickly as possible. I know everybody is get-
ting a little impatient with it, and perhaps
this is due in no small way to the fact that
Mr. Blouin unfortunately was detained due to
illness, and obviously he is the chief witness.

My first question, Mr. Chairman—and I
would welcome any supplementaries to it—
has to do with Mr. Normand’s evidence.
When Mr. Normand, the Clerk of the Com-
mittee, laid the draft of the second report of
the Committee on Transport and Communica-
tions on your desk, did you read it?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I did read
it carefully.
[English]

Mr. McGrath: Did you read it before it was
presented to the House?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: Yes, I read it.
[English]

Mr. McGrath: Did you note the omission of
the resolution in question, more particularly
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the resolution dealing with the Newfoundland
rail transportation?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: In so far as' I know, there was
no omission not any change.

[English]

Mr. McGrath: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman; I
must raise a point of order. We are having
trouble with the simultaneous translation.

The Chairman: This one I have is working
very well; perhaps you could use some other
set.

Mr. McGrath: I seem to have it now.
Mr. Woolliams: It was off for a little while.

Mr. McGrath: Could I repeat the question,
and could Mr. Blouin repeat his answer, Mr.
Chairman? When he read the report did he
note the omission of my resolution passed by
the Committee on November 28 dealing with
rail passenger service in Newfoundland?
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[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: In so far as I know, Mr. Chair-
man, there was absolutely no omission if you
are referring to the second report. There was
no omission of any resolution in the second
report which was to be submitted in the
House, absolutely not.

[English]

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Blouin
said there was no omission, in his opinion, of
the second report. May I ask him what
became of the resolution passed in the Com-
mittee on November 28, presumably on which
the second report was based?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: You mean +to say the
resolution?

[English]

Mr. McGrath: The resolution that was

adopted by the Committee on November 28.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: So, this resolution, if I remem-
ber, did not appear in the second report that
was to be submitted to the House.

[English]

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Blouin, the second report
did contain a recommendation to study prob-
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lems of transportation in the Atlantic Prov-
inces. is that right?

Mr. Blouin: Yes.

Mr. McGrath: In your opinion, was not the
resolution I referred to related to the recom-
mendation of the Committee to study trans-
portation in the Atlantic Provinces? I will
repeat the resolution:

Resolved,—that the Canadian Transport
Commission be requested to postpone the
implementation of its decision to abandon
railway service in Newfoundland until
such a time as the Committee travel to
Newfoundland to study the transportation
problems of the Atlantic Provinces.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: This resolution, if I remember
correctly, was submitted at the very last
minute at the session of November 28th. In so
far as I know, none of the members of the
Committee on Transport and Communications
requested that this resolution be included in
the second report. We must remember that,
previously, two other resolutions were includ-
ed in the second report and were reported to
the House in the normal way.

[English]
Mr. McGrath: Why omit this resolution if
you included the other two resolutions?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: They were never omitted, there
was no change made whatsoever.

[English]
Mr. McGrath: If it was not included, surely
it must have been omitted.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Normally, this resolution would
have been discussed at subsequent sittings
and would have been presented in the normal
way to the House through the third report.
It’s as simple as that.

[English]
Mr. McGrath: Mr. Blouin, this resolution...

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, may I speak
on a point.of order. Surely the question as to
whether or not this resolution should or
should not have been contained in the second
report, is a question of parliamentary law, is
it not? Can we not get the advice of Dr.
Ollivier as to whether by parliamentary law
that should or should not have been included?

B
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Mr. McGrath: Mr. Hogarth, let me continue
with my line of questioning.

The Chairman: Order, please. A point of
order has been raised. This very point might
be part of our discussions later on, but I see
no objection to Mr. McGrath asking questions
of Mr. Blouin. Mr. Blouin can give the expla-
nations as he sees fit to give them. But I do
not see that there is any point of order right
now.

It is part of the evidence. He has been the
Chairman of this Committee. Mr. McGrath
has, I think, a right to question, and I think
Mr. Blouin should answer the questions.

Mr. McGrath: May I proceed then, Mr.
‘Chairman?

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. McGrath.

Mr. McGrath: Mr, Blouin, the resolution
dealt with a decision of the Canadian Trans-
port Commission, the implementation of
which was due to start, if my memory serves
me correctly, on December 6. Consequently
the resolution was of some urgency. In your
opinion, did you not feel that because of the
urgency of the resolution it should have been
reported to the House?
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[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Yes, I understood the impor-
tance of the resolution. Certainly, I did. If
there is anyone who is aware of transporta-
tion problems in the Atlantic Provinces, it is
certainly I, because I am a neighbour of the
Atlantic Provinces, and we have about the
same problems in transport and communica-
tions. But the Chairman doesn’t decide, on his
own, on putting a resolution into a report to
be tabled in the House. It must be submitted
to the Committee. And show me a case where
a member of the Committee requested that a
resolution of that nature be submitted to the
House in the second report.

[English]

Mr. McGrath: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I will do
that. The Committee passed the resolution by
a vote of six to five. In other words, they
adopted the resolution, which meant they
wanted it to be adopted by the Committee
and be recommended to the House. Surely
this must have been clearly implied in the
adoption of the resolution.

The Chairman: Mr. McGrath, I do not want
the...
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Mr. McGrath:
question.

Mr. Blouin raised the

The Chairman: I agree. I have realized
this; I did not interrupt you until you were
through, but I want to inform you that I do
not want you and the witness to go into an
argument about what will be the purpose of
our deliberations after we have heard the full
evidence.

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, I can come
precisely to my point. I want to know why
Mr. Blouin did not report my resolution to
the House.

The Chairman: This is a valid question.
[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: There was never any omission
in presenting this resolution in the second
report. As you know, Mr. Chairman, in order
to present a resolution, the Committee must
request that the resolution be submitted to
the House. And I might quote here what was
mentioned during this particular meeting of
November 23:

Mg. ScHREYER: Mr. Chairman, did you
assign a date for that last item?

Turz CHAIRMAN: Assign a date?

MR. ScHREYER: Did you assign a date?
Have you fixed a date for these claims to
be brought before the Committee?

TaE CHAIRMAN: No, we did not fix any
date. Everything depends on whether we
will be finished with the estimates.

Mr. Woolliams: Which page?

Mr. Blouin: Page 72, November 28 in the
report number 6.

Tae CeHairMAN: The Clerk points out
that we also have to wait the order of
the House.

Mr. Douglas, who was a member of the
Committee:

MR. DoucLAs: That is what I was going
to ask. I understood you were going to
ask for an order of the House to permit
us to deal with these claims.

Tue CeHAIRMAN: Yes, we are. Next
Tuesday a report will be presented to the
House.

MRr. NesBIiTT: I presume, then, that
between now and Tuesday, Mr. Chair-
man, the first report of this Committee
will be prepared for submission to the
House and that it will contain a request
to have a hearing on the claims against
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the CNR concerning the Great Slave
Lake Railway and also a request that the
Committee, at some date agreed by the
House, visit the Atlantic Provinces?

THE CHAIRMAN: That is correct. That
report will be presented to the House on
Tuesday. Is that agreed?

And all the members of the Committee
were in agreement. So there was never any
question of putting the resolution in the
second report.

[English]

Mr. McGrath: All right. Did you call a
meeting of the steering committee to consider
my resolution?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: No, that report was tabled in
the House the 3rd of December, and the next
day I was ill.

[English]

Mr. McGrath: We are talking about the
28th now; we are talking about the 28th, the
day the resolution was adopted. From the
time the resolution was adopted until the
report was tabled in the House, did you call a
meeting of the steering committee? If not,
why not?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: You mean to say between the
28th of November up to the 3rd of December?
Yes, I think there was a meeting of the steer-
ing committee.
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[English]

Mr. McGrath: I want to know what was the
date of the steering committee between the
time my resolution was passed on the 28th,
and the time the report was presented to the
House on the 3rd of December. I want to
know the time and place of the steering com-
mittee meeting and who was in attendance.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: I haven’t got the date with me.
Was it the same day? I know there were two
meetings of the steering committee but I
don’t have the exact date.

Mr. Fortin: One or two?

Mr. Blouin: I don’t know whether the Clerk
of the Committee has the date. All I know is
that there were two meetings of the Steering
Committee between those two meetings.
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[English]
Mr. McGrath: Is the Clerk of the Commit-
tee here? Could you check with him?

The Chairman: I will have that checked
right away, Mr. McGrath.

Mr. Woolliams:
mentary?

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Woolliams.

May I ask a supple-

Mr. Woolliams: Before I do that, may I just
digress for a moment. I particularly welcome
him back, and I am glad to see him in good
health. I think you and I suffered the same
ailment at some time and so I have complete
sympathy with you. I think one of the main
things is to avoid stress because that could
undo any progress you have made.

Mr. Blouin: Thank you very much.

Mr. Woolliams: Now I want to ask you just
a few questions which will be supplementary
to Mr. McGrath’s question. I am sorry I was
late. I was at the Conference.

While they are checking the date of the
steering committee—you say there were two
meetings—could you tell the Committee, and
I think this is important, whether there was
any member of the Progressive Conservative
Party at that steering committee, if there was
a notice of that meeting, and where the meet-
ing was held in reference to this particular
resolution passed by the Committee dealing
with railway transportation or transportation
in Newfoundland?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I remem-
ber very well that at those two meetings of
the subcommittee there were 5 members,
among whom there where Conservative Party
members. I do not remember the exact dates,
but those meetings took place in my office,
after notices had been distributed by the
Clerk of the Committee, as is normally done.

[English]

Mr. Woolliams: Were there any of our
party there at those meetings?
[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Yes, yes.

[English]

Mr. Woolliams: Who were those members?
[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: I remember Mr. Thomas

(Moncton). Mr. Nesbitt had been summoned
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but had himself replaced. I summoned him
myself twice. He apologized for not being
able to attend the Steering Committee meet-
ing. He had delegated Mr. Thomas (Moncton).

[English]
Mr. Woolliams: An I take it then that Mr.

Thomas and Mr. Blouin attended both those
meetings.

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: Yes, so far as I know.

[English]

Mr. Woolliams: And was the report read to
that steering or subcommittee? Was the whole
report given to them and read to them?

Mr. McGrath: The draft of the second
report.

Mr. Woolliams: Yes, the draft befre pre-
senting it to the House of Commons—at those
meetings.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: So far as I know, yes. The
reports were read and approved. But, I do
not know if those meetings took place before
the 28th of November, or after. I am not
quite sure.

[English]
Mr. McGrath: Before December 3 of course.

Mr. Woolliams: You go ahead and ask him
if you want. I do not mind. The thing is T just
wanted to follow that through.

I think I can clarify it very quickly. Mr.
McGrath’s statement is very simple. Was the
meeting before the 28th or after? If it was
before, well, of course you could not discuss
the resolution, and if it was after, was it
before the report was filed in the House of
Commons. That is important too.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: I think it was before the 28th
of November.

[English]

Mr. Woolliams: Then really after the reso-
lution was passed in reference to the New-
foundland railway—and that is in Volume 6
of November 28—there was no meeting of the
steering committee where they considered the
draft report or the final report that was filed
in the House of Commons?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: No, I do not think so.
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[English]
Mr. Cafik: A supplementary here, if I may?

Mr. Woolliams: If I could just follow this
one through, then I am through.

Mr. Cafik: All right.

Mr. Woolliams: Now we might as well fol-
low it through. Was the report ever submitted
to the whole Committee as a whole before it
was filed in the House of Commons—the
second report?
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Mr. Blouin: The second report? The second
report was presented to the steering commit-
tee, as far as I know.

Mr. Woolliams: But was it ever submitted
to the whole Committee as a whole, here, like
we are sitting today, for approval?

Mr. Blouin: For approval?—

[Interpretation]

Yes, I think so. On reading, you will see
here—This was submitted to the Committee
as a whole since Mr. Nesbitt replies, here.
Therefore, I presume—

[English]
Mr. Woolliams: What day was that, sir?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: The 28th of November.

[English]
Mr. Woolliams: November 28.

Mr. McGrath: Before the evidence was
taken on November 28?

Mr. Blouin: Yes.

Mr. Woolliams: So that that report then
was submitted to the whole Committee as a
whole before the evidence of November 28
was taken.

Mr. Blouin: What are you saying?

Mr. Woolliams: The draft report was sub-
mitted to the Committee as a whole prior to
the evidence of November 28, was it not?

Mr. Blouin: Yes.

Mr. Woolliams: Right. So that the report
then, although submitted to the Committee,
which did not contain the resolution we are
talking about was really submitted to this
Committee before it was even passed or
adopted by the Committee. Is that correct, or
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am I in error about that? You correct me if I
am wrong, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: No, Mr. Woolliams. What I
want to point out to you is that in the
Minutes of Proceedings there is a full report
of the steering committee meetings that were
held before the meeting of November 28.

Mr. Woolliams: I know but I am not deal-
ing with this now. I probably did not make
my point. Do you mind if I just speak to you,
Mr. Chairman, for a moment?

The Chairman: Yes, go ahead.

Mr. Woolliams: My point is this, that the
witness has said—and if he was in error he
could correct it certainly by his evidence—
but as I take it, they had a meeting of the
steering committee prior to the meeting of
November 28. Then I asked him if the report
as a whole that was finally filed—that is the
report we are dealing with in the House of
Commons and that is now before the House
of Commons—was ever submitted to the
Committee as a whole for consideration, and
he said yes, but it was submitted before tak-
ing the evidence of November 28. So the reso-
lution could not get into that report if the
report was—

The Chairman: Order.

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, I am going to
raise a point of order—

Mr. Woolliams: Well, let me just finish
speaking—just let me finish. I am not con-
cerned about that. Mr. Chairman, I just want
to say to my good friends here—I did not
come here, particularly when Mr. Blouin is a
good friend of mine, because my next ques-
tion is going to be quite serious—I did not
come here to prosecute him or persecute him.
He is a gentleman, he is a gocd Member of
Parliament and, as far as I know—I was not
on his Committee—I have always found him
a fair-minded chairman. So that there is no
reason for them to get exuberant about it. I
want to be polite and I am going to be a
gentleman. Now the thing that I would like to
ask him, in view of his answers to Mr.
McGrath, is this. We are not here to chastise
you, particularly after being a sick man, but
have you any objection, as the former Chair-
man of the Committee when this resolution
was passed and because of the difficulties that
seem to arise from the evidence, of it now
being included in the report in question? I
might bring to your attention why I make
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that suggestion—and I was not on the Com-
mittee, like my friends, and they no doubt
have this knowledge and I have not got it. I
came in later. At page 72, I am going to read
this part which you read, sir.

I presume, then, that between now and
Tuesday, Mr. Chairman; the first report
of this Committee will be prepared for
submission to the House and that it will
contain a request to have a hearing on the
claims against the CNR concerning the
Great Slave Lake Railway and also a
request that the Committee, at some date
agreed by the House, visit the Atlantic
Provinces?

Because the resolution that was omitted,
rightly or wrongly—and I am not dealing
with that point—dealt with the visitation to
the Atlantic Provinces so that no decision
would be made until the visit was over, have
you any objection to it now being included in
that report?

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, on a point of
order, this witness cannot be expected to
answer something that would be entirely up to
that other Committee.

The Chairman: If, Mr. Hogarth, you could
allow me to answer Mr. Woolliams, because I
precisely see the point.

The only objection, Mr. Woolliams, I have
to your question in this regard is the fact that
I do not think that it could be appropriate
that we could ask Mr. Blouin to speak on
behalf of the Transport and Communications
Committee as a whole because I realize that
the Committee itself should speak for this,
but not Mr. Blouin.

I am not going to rule your question out of
order but I remind you that whatever Mr.
Blouin could say on this is irrelevant to what
we have to do here.
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Mr. McGrath: But, with respect Mr. Chair-
man, it is within the terms of reference of
this Cmmittee to recommend that this reso-
lution be incorporated in the second report
which is still before the House. Is that not
correct?

Some hon. Members: No. no.

The Chairman: Just a minute. I would like
to see where it has been recommended, Mr.
McGrath.
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Mr. McGrath: I am asking the question. I
am not making the point. ..

The Chairman: If this Committée could
recmmend—but I must say that we...

Mr. McGrath: Yes. How do we dispose of it
otherwise?

The Chairman: Well, the only thing we
have to report back to the House is simply
the terms of reference for which we are here.

Mr. Woolliams: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if
I might answer what yu say? There might be
something to it. What I am trying to come to
is this. There is a complaint that this motion
was left out. There were instructions given to
the Committee on a report that apparently
was prepared before the resolution took
place.

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Woolliams: I have been here too long
in the House of Commons to be unfair to Mr.
Blouin or anybody else in the House of Com-
mons or anywhere else. I just want the facts.
I have talked to Mr. Blouin and I am quite
pleased with what he said in the evidence. I
am very happy with it. All I am saying is
this. There was a resolution that is very
important to Newfoundland. Surely nobody in
this Committee is going to be so partisan—I
am not—as to suggest, when it was so impor-
tant to the Province of Newfoundland, that
here was a resolution omitted because Mr.
Blouin said the report was considered before
the resolution was passed; that we could not
include it in some report betore the House of
Commons. I cannot believe any of the mem-
bers of the House of Commons would object to
such a thing if it was done because the report
was considered before all the evidence was
considered. That seems to be—I am not say-
ing this in the wrong sense—very irregular
and that seems to be the grievance of the
people where this resolution was left out. All
I understand the people of Newfoundland to
want is to get the resolution before the
House. What have they got to fear? If there is
nothing wrong with it why can we not correct
it?

The Chairman: Mr. Woolliams, the matter
of importance is not at issue. It is a matter of
sticking with the terms of reference. Mr. Ol-
livier may correct me, but I would suggest as
an answer to your question that if the mem-
bers of the Transport and Communications
Committee want this resolution to be reported
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to the House in a report, the only thing they
have to do is to meet and pass a resolution to
this effect and instruct the Chairman
accordingly.

Mr. Woolliams: Mr. Chairman, we are a
different committee but I am asking this
question. You heard what the Chairman said
and he is being most helpful. If this Commit-
tee is suggesting to the Committee on Trans-
port and Communications that either it be
included in the report that is now before the
House—and it could be amended—or includ-
ed in a third report, would you have any
objection to this resolution’s being included in
a report? Would you have any objection, as
the former Chairman of the Transport and
Communications Committee?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: Mr. Chairman. ..

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Chairman, on a point of
order.

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Fortin.

Mr. Fortin: Personally, I think it is beyond
our scope. Our terms of reference are clearly
indicated here and were set forth to us by
the Clerk of the House. I do not think that
we, as members of the Committee on Privi-
leges and Elections, can tell our colleagues of
the Committee of Transport and Communica-
tions to do this and do that, to have breakfast
in the morning and to dine either in the eve-
ning or at noon in order to live properly.

If we are going to conduct our discussions
on that level, Mr. Chairman, we might as
well go back to the constitutional conference
or to the House to discuss the Omnibus Bill
because we shall be wasting our time here.

[English]

Mr. Woolliams: I do not want to go back to
the constitutional conference. The Chairman
ruled that. ..

[Interpretation]
The Chairman: No, Mr. Woolliams, a point
of order has just been raised.

Insofar as I am concerned, the question put
by Mr. Woolliams is hypothetical, but instead
of discussing points of order of this nature
indefinitely, I would rather allow the question
and allow Mr. Blouin to answer. I know it is a
hypothetical question because that is not what
we are here to discuss, but if it can throw
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some light on the situation, then I can allow
the answer.
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[English]

Mr. Deakon: Mr. Chairman, I respectfully
submit that this question is completely irrele-
vant to this issue. The terms of reference
specifically state that this Committee is to
determine the reason for the omission of this
resolution from the report. There was an
accusation made in the House, which is on
page 3735 of Hansard dated December 10,
1968, in a statement made by Mr. James A.
McGrath, St. John’s East.

My question of privilege is based on
the fact that the resolution adopted by
the Committee on November 28 was, in
my view, deliberately omitted from its
report to the house...

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Deakon,
but I must ask the members to proceed in an
orderly way. There were questions of Mr.
Woolliams to Mr. Blouin which I consider
hypothetical but I suggested if Mr. Blouin
wanted to answer to clarify some points that
may be indirectly relevant it would be pref-
erable to allow the questions.

Mr. Woolliams: I wonder if you would
answer the question.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Mr. Chairman, upon my soul
and conscience, there has never been any
omission or change in the resolution which
Mr. Woolliams mentioned.

What happened was that this resolution
which he talks about was supposed to be dis-
cussed at subsequent meetings and was to be
the object of a specific request from the Com-
mittee of Transport and Communications for
submission to the House. If, as in the normal
course of events a member of the Committee
had made such a request this resolution
would have been submitted to the House along
with the third report, in accordance with nor-
mal procedure. This is more or less the reply
to the question.

The Chairman: And those are the reasons,
Mr. Blouin.

[English]

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, may I supple-
ment, please? During the course of the evi-
dence it was made abundantly clear that the
matter was of some urgency because the

T
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implementation of the decision referred to in
the resolution was to take place in fact on
December 6, 1968. There would be a gradual
phasing in of buses and phasing out of the
passenger trains to conclude in April of this
year. This made the matter of some urgency.
Also, at the conclusion of our meeting on
November 28, 1968—and the evidence will
indicate this—there was no suggestion that
this resolution would be considered at any
subsequent meeting. It was inferred quite
clearly that this resolution formed a part of
the second report which was considered at
the beginning of the evidence because it dealt
with the recommendation of the Committee to
study problems of transportation in the
Atlantic Provinces.

The Chairman: I realize, Mr. McGrath, that
you wanted to make your point. If you have
any questions to ask of Mr. Blouin I will
allow them but actually you are arguing.

Mr. McGrath: I am not arguing, Mr. Chair-
man, I am just stating facts as I see them.

The Chairman: They are valid points per-
haps but no one, including Mr. Blouin, has
ever questioned the importance of the matters
contained in the resolution that was passed at
the end of the meeting on November 28, but
again we are not here for that. We are here to
listen to the reasons why this resolution was
not submitted in the report tabled in the
House on December 3, 1968, and I really
believe, if I may say so to you members of
this Committee, that Mr. Blouin has already
answered the questions as to why he did not
include it.

Mr. Woolliams: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I
might continue. I could be very short if I did
not have so many interruptions.

Mr. Cafik: Mr. Chairman, on a point of
order, it seems that these questions are all in
the form of supplementaries and we have had
supplementaries now for well over half an
hour.

The Chairman: I am going to allow Mr.
Woolliams a few more questions and then I
will recognize you, Mr. Cafik.

Mr. Woolliams: Did you ever consider, Mr.
Blouin, that this resolution at any time was
out of order?

Mr. Blouin: No.
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Mr. Woolliams: Then when Mr. Macdonald,
the President of the Privy Council, on page
3587 said:

...I am advised the resolution was
passed but that it was out of order.

You never told the President of the Privy
Council it was out of order.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: I never even saw the leader of
the House, so I could not have...

[English]
Mr. Woolliams: I see. Then he said:
Under the circumstances I take it that

it is null and has no effect, but I have not
examined the question.

Do you take the position that the President of
the Privy Council takes?
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The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Woolliams,
I missed your question. Would you like to
repeat it?

Mr. Woolliams: My question is very simple:
that the President of the Privy Council takes
the position that the resolution was out of
order and, in fact, he says it was null and
void. Somebody has just heckled me, as I am
asking the question, and said, “It is out of
order”, meaning my question. I would say
this to you: we are trying to find out why it
was left out of the report. You have given us
one answer. I am not dissatisfied, but I am
prepared to probe just a little further as to
why it might have been left out, apart from
yourself. The fact is, the President of the
Privy Council says this resolution is out of
order and you said that you do not agree with
him. Did you ever tell him it was out of order
or give him any instructions in that regard?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: I did not say I was not in
agreement with him. I said I had never even
seen the leader of the House, so he could
certainly not have given me any instructions,
since I never saw him. He never attempted in
any way to influence me or to give me
instructions. I never even saw him.

[English]

Mr. Woolliams: Do you suggest today, as
former chairman of that Committee, that that
resolution was out of order?
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[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: No, because I had accepted this
motion as Chairman of the Committee, at the
very last minute of the meeting of November
28.

[English]
Mr. Woolliams: I am finished now.

The Chairman: Mr. Cafik?

Mr. Woolliams: I am sorry for taking so
much time but we had quite a few
interruptions.

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Cafik: Mr. Chairman and Mr. Blouin, I
have a number of questions here. First of all,
in order to get a couple of facts straight in
connection with the motion made by Mr.
McGrath, at the time Mr. McGrath made his
motion toward the end of this meeting on
transport did he ever make a motion to have
this motion included in the second report to
the House of Commons?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: No, not as I know of.

[English]

Mr. Cafik: Did he ever make a motion to
have it referred to the Steering Committee
for consideration to be included into the
second report to the House of Commons?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: No, not that I know of.

[English]

Mr. Cafik: In other words, there was noth-
ing unusual about his motion to indicate that
he wanted it in the second report to the
House of Commons?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: Absolutely not, that I know of.

[English]

Mr. Cafik: Now, may I ask a second ques-
tion? As chairman of that Committee, and
bearing in mind that the original terms of
reference given to the Committee by the
House of Commons were to study the revised
estimates of the Canadian Transport Commis-
sion, would you consider that the motion put
forward by Mr. McGrath—which was not
directly related to the estimates, in my per-
sonal view—was in order and dealing with the
matter before the Committee, or was it deal-
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ing with a matter that was not before the
Committee?

. Mr. McGrath: It was dealing with the
recommendations incorporated in the second
report which opened the proceedings of that
meeting.

Mr. Cafik: Excuse me.

The Chairman: Order, please.

Mr. Woolliams: On a point of order.
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Woolliams.

Mr. Woolliams: He has already answered
that he was of the opinion that the motion
was in order, so I am really at a loss to see
why you discredit your own friends.

Mr. Cafik: I am not discrediting. I am ask-
ing, in view of this, whether it is within the
terms of reference.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: Mr. Chairman, if I may reply, I
repeat what I stated to Mr. Woolliams. At the
end of the meeting of the Committee on
Transport and Communications on the 28th of
November, 1968, I accepted the resolution
submitted by Mr. McGrath. It was put to the
vote and was approved. That resolution was
thus properly in order. Only what happened
is that no one in the Committee requested
that it be put in the second report to the
House because there were already two other
resolutions which preceded that one. So that
is why it was never submitted to the House.
And normally, after a subsequent meeting,
that resolution would have been submitted to
the House in the third report. It is as simple
as that.
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[English]

The Chairman: Just before you continue,
Mr. Cafik, I want to clarify a point that was
raised earlier by Mr. McGrath and Mr. Wool-
liams concerning the precise dates of the Sub-
committee meetings that were held. Mr.
MecGrath, if you look at issue No. 7 of the
Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence you will
see that there was, in fact, a meeting of the
Transport and Communications Steering

Committee at 1.30 p.m. on November 28; that
is a few minutes after your motion was
passed by the committee and the report
says—I think you have the minutes and can
look at them—that the members present were
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Messrs. Allmand, Blouin, Nesbitt, Serré and
Skoberg. I do not want to read what was
decided in the report; this refers, at the bot-
tom of the page, to the meeting of the Steer-
ing Committee held on December 3 where the
members present were Messrs. Allmand, Ben-
jamin, Blouin, Carter, Corbin—no, I am sor-
ry, this was the full Committee. This is the
answer to the questions you have asked. I do
not know precisely the time of the Subcom-
mittee meeting that was held after this meet-
ing. I am sorry, Mr. Cafik, but I wanted to
clarify that point.

Mr. Cafik: Yes. The reason that prompted
me to ask the last question about the legality
of the motion put forward by Mr. McGrath is
that it strikes me—and I am not a member of
that Committee—that the actual resolution in
the second report to the House of Commons
was a resolution asking that the scope of the
Committee be expanded to allow it to look
into the problems and to study the problems
of the Atlantic Provinces and so on. It seems
to me that your resolution was to act as
though the Committee had already expanded
its sphere of activity.

Mr. McGrath: On a point of order, Mr.
Chairman. The member of the Committee is
giving an opinion and I submit that that is
out of order. He is supposed to direct his
questions to the Chair or to the witness and
not give opinions to the Committee.

Mr. Cafik: Yes.

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Cafik. Gen-
tlemen, as Chairman, I would like to have
you in my confidence for a few minutes. I do
not think we should spend time on points like
that. I would remind hon. members that the
opinions you have, personally, after you have
read the evidence, will be part of the report
we will be making. I think we should ask Mr.
Blouin, precisely, for relevant facts related to
the terms of reference, that is to say, the
reason for the omission. This was asked a few
minutes ago and I would ask Mr. Cafik and
all hon. members to please try to avoid ask-
ing the witness his opinion on any subject.
We have our own opinions; we can make all
the suggestions we wish to make.

Mr. Cafik: No, but the point I was trying to
bring out, and I am not trying to express my
own personal view, is whether the Committee
felt it was necessary then to expand its terms
of reference in order to look into these other
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larger areas that are contained in your second
report?

The Chairman: This, again, is up to the
members of the Transport and Communica-
tions Committee to decide.

.Mr. McGrath: With great respect, Mr.
Chairman, the hon. member has not even
read the second report; otherwise he would
not put that question. The second report
recommends that the Committee study the
problems of transportation in the Atlantic
Provinces. My resolution was related to it.

Mr. Cafik: Excuse me. On a point of order.
The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Cafik: That resolution asks that the
terms of reference be enlarged.

An hon. Member: Read it for him; he can-
not read.

Mr. Cafik: All right, I will read it.

That the Committee report to the House
asking that the scope of the Order of
Reference dated October 16, 1968, be
enlarged authorizing the Committee to
study:
(a) Transportation problems of the Atlan-
tic Provinces.
(b) Claims of the Great Slave Railway
Company against the Canadian National
Railway Company.
Now, if you already had terms of reference
to do that, why would the second report have
asked for those terms of reference?

[Interpretation]
Mr. Blouin: Mr. Chairman, may I reply?
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The Chairman: Certainly.

Mr. Blouin: I think that what Mr. Cafik
says is true. There was a request to extend
the terms of reference of the Committee so
that it could go and study the problems in the
Atlantic Provinces. Very well. But Mr.
MecGrath’s resolution has nothing to do direct-
ly with the other resolution submitted previ-
ously. It was another resolution which was
entirely separate. It was a third resolution.

[English]

The Chairman: Are you through, Mr.
Cafik? Do you have some other questions?

Mr. Cafik: Just a moment, Mr. Chairman.
29207—2
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. Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, may I just
say one thing to resolve this matter? Would
the Committee give consideration to reporting
to the House recommending that this resolu-
tion be incorporated in the second report?
That would resolve it very simply.

Mr. Woolliams: Yes, what is wrong with
that?

Mr. McGrath: Why do you want to keep
this resolution out of the House?

The Chairman: Order, please.

Mr. Hogarth: I can see the Transport Com-
mittee considering that such a resolution be
made but we are not on the Transport Com-
mittee, and I honestly do not quite know
what the resolution, in substance, is all about.
It might be perfectly valid that it go before
the House—I do not know—but if I were on
the Transport Committee I would certainly
consider it.

Mr. Woolliams: Mr. Chairman, I just want
to say this: It does seem to me—and I am
going to speak on behalf of the Whip—that
here he is being examined; this was left out
of the report; we are sent here to find out,
but there is a very practical suggestion. I do
not like playing funny games. I did not come
here to play funny games and the only reason
we are here really is to find out why it was
left out; really why we are here is to get it in
a report and get it before the House of
Commons.

Why can we not be like gentlemen and
Canadians and work for the Crown the same
as the rest of the nine provinces? We can rise
right now and forget about it and say to the
other Committee, why not be big about it and
say, “we have left it out, maybe it was an
accident, the way things worked out, or an
omission. Put it in before the House of Com-
mons so Newfoundland’s transportation sys-
tem is protected.” That is all I am interested
in.

Mr. Blouin and I are good friends and he
knows that, and his wife is a good friend of
mine and I am not going to sit on this Com-
mittee, by any means, and see him chastised
by either the friends over here or friends
there. The mistake that was made was not his
fault. All we want is action and that is what
the row is about. These gentlemen here,
including Mr. Hogarth—he is talking about
the rules of Parliament as if he has been here
since Confederation. I would say to him,
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everybody gains experience; some ‘take longer
than others and he is no exception.

An hon, Member: Some never learn.

Mr. McGrath: The second report is still
before the House, Mr. Chairman, so my reso-
lution is. ..

The Chairman: I really... Yes, Mr.
Deachman?

Mr. Deachman: In lieu of what has just
been said by Mr. Woolliams, will Mr.

McGrath retract his statement of December
10 regarding this being a deliberate omission?

The Chairman: I am really sorry, gentle-
men, but I must inform you again that we
have to continue our deliberations according
to the rules, and I suggest to you that we are
bound by the terms of reference that were
referred to us by the House of Commons.

Mr. McGrath: Why do you not put the
suggestion I made?

The Chairman: I beg your pardon?

Mr. McGrath: Why do you not put the
suggestion I made to the Committee and
resolve it once and for all?

Mr. Jerome: Because you fellows were
instructed to keep the resolution out of the
House.

An hon, Member: No, I am sorry. ..
An hon, Member: Mr. Chairman, I...
The Chairman: Order, please!

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if
members might be able to agree at this stage
that we have finished with the witness. I
think that that would be a positive step.

An hon. Member: No, I would...

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Jerome, but
I have a list of hon. members who indicated
to me that they wanted to ask questions of
Mr. Blouin.

Mr. Jerome: I simply wanted to suggest at
this time, Mr. Chairman, that it seemed even
those who were most actively engaged in
questioning the witness—and I believe their
questions were not only active but quite
proper—covered the field very thoroughly in
their questions of the Clerk, initially, and of
Mr. Blouin today.
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As a result of those questions it is clear to
me, at least, that we have arrived at the
answer to the question we were instructed to
determine and at this stage I suggest to
hon. members of the Committee that we have
now got the answer and I do not know what
more questioning will accomplish. I realize
that you, the Chairman, want to ensure that
everybody has a chance to speak, but in the
interests of expediting this enquiry it seems
to me that the reason has been clearly given.
Everybody understands it and repeating the
same questions over and over again is really
not going to benefit any of us.
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I would also remind the members of this
Committee, as I did earlier in the proceed-
ings, that there is now a Standing Committee
on Procedure and Organization and if mem-
bers of this Committee, as I think some of
them do, feel aggrieved by virtue of the fact
that something was left out—they feel
aggrieved; whether or not they place any
blame on an individual member of the House
they feel aggrieved—surely the proper thing
to do would be for this Committee to report
its reason, which is now plainly evident, to
the House which would complete the matter
before this Committee.

Then if it were necessary to take this mat-
ter further it could be put before the Stand-
ing Committee on Procedure and Organiza-
tion with the request that the procedure of
committee work which is going to become
increasingly important be reviewed by that
committee in the light of determining some
rules as to what should and what should not
be included in reports to the House from
standing committees and the manner in which
this should be done.

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, the honoura-
ble gentleman’s point is very well taken, but
he left out a very important part. He still has
not suggested how we are going to dispose of
this resolution. Is it to be left in limbo? I will
bring it to a head. I move a motion. I am
going to make a motion, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: I am sorry, but before you
make a motion I want to recognize other hon.
members who want to ask questions. They
have the same privileges that I have already
allotted to others, and at this time I recognize
Mr. Skoberg.
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Mr. Skoberg: Mr. Chairman, at the last
meeting of the Committee of Privileges and
Elections I attended it was suggested that
possibly the House Leader could be asked to
attend as a witness. I am just wondering
whether or not this was followed up by the
steering committee, particularly when you
read the statement that he made in the
House, and under the circumstances I take it
that it is null and has no effect. Mr, Mac-
donald said:

MR. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I have not
studied this; I am advised the resolution
was passed but that it was out of order.

Mr. Chairman, I would ask whether or not
the steering committee did take into consider-
ation this statement?

The Chairman: If I may answer this, I
would like first to tell hon. members that it
might have been logical for this Committee to
hear Mr. Macdonald if any of the witnesses
we have heard had either suggested or
intimated that Mr. Macdonald had anything
to do with the presentation of the report that
has been referred to us, but since both Mr.
Normand and Mr. Blouin say that at no time
did they have any communication with Mr.
Macdonald before this report was tabled in
the House, I really believe that at this time it
is quite useless for us to have Mr. Macdonald
because we cannot speak for what happened
after December 3. We can speak only on the
terms of reference and the reasons why this
motion was not included in the report tabled
in the House on December 3.

If you want a legal opinion, Mr. Ollivier is
here. I do not mind, if it is the wish of the
members of the Committee, our having Mr.
Macdonald here to give his own legal opinion,
but we have here the Parliamentary Counsel
of the House of Commons.

Mr. Skoberg: If I may add something, Mr.
Chairman, and then I will finish, there is no
question at all that Mr. Blouin believes that
the motion we have before us is quite in
order. That was the end, as far as I am
concerned, of Mr. Blouin. He has fulfilled his
obligation to this Committee here as far as a
witness is concerned but the statements of
Mr. Macdonald, as recorded on page 3587 in
Hansard on December 6. ..

The Chairman: What date?

Mr. Skoberg: December 6, 1968, page 3587,
is exactly the question that we have before us
29207—23

Privileges and Elections

59

at this particular time. He said that this was
not in order. Now, who told him it was not in
order and why did he say it in the House of
Commons? I believe he is the man who
should have the answer. ..

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Skoberg, but I still
repeat again, what does it have to do with the
reason why the motion presented by Mr.
McGrath was not included?

Mr. Skoberg: This is exactly the question
Mr. Macdonald should answer to this Com-
mittee and not Mr. Blouin.

The Chairman: I do not think it is in the
terms of reference that we have to deal with.

Mr. Skoberg: Did the steering committee
decide against having any witnesses other
than Mr. Blouin?

The Chairman: We did not decide against
having any witnesses but personally this is
the opinion I have and I really believe in
good faith that we must remain within the
terms of reference under which we have to
act; otherwise there is no use in having any
meeting. Mr. Normand and Mr. Blouin have
both given their evidence before us and since
neither Mr. Normand nor Mr. Blouin had
ever been in touch with Mr. Macdonald
before this report was tabled, I think it is
useless and outside our terms of reference to
have Mr. Macdonald give his legal opinion on
what he thinks about it. We are here for this.
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Mr. Woolliams: May I speak to this, Mr.
Chairman, before you make such a categori-
cal ruling. Mr. Macdonald says this:

MR. MacponaLD (Rosedale): I have not
studied this; I am advised. ..

Now we have the statement of Mr. Blouin. In
any kind of committee or any kind of board
or hearing if someone says “I am advised”
which would appear. . .Mr. Blouin said he did
not advise him.

An hon. Member: No.

Mr. Woolliams: I am not saying he did but
somebody has advised him and I want to
know who advised him, when he was advised
and what is this kind of advice that caused
the problems we have today.

MRr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I have not
studied this; I am advised. ..

The Chairman: Mr. Woolliams, I will allow
you to ask these questions of Mr. Ollivier, if
he wants to answer.
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. Mr. Woolliams: I want Mr. Macdonald here
and if you are ruling against me, then do you
know what we have done? We have just
wasted my time and the Committee’s time
and everybody’s time because there must be
something somebody is hiding. Why are you,
as Chairman, making a categorical ruling
before we have even made a submission?

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Woolliams.
I am not making any ruling. I would just like
to repeat what I have already said; that I
strongly believe that within the terms of ref-
erence we have to study and as Chairman of
this Committee, that with the reference made
by Mr. Skoberg to hear Mr. Macdonald we
will lose our time completely, because it is
completely out of order in a sense that what
Mr. Macdonald could have said on December
6, since neither Mr. Normand nor Mr. Blouin
had ever talked to him before the tabling of
this report, is completely irrelevant of the
terms of reference we have.

Mr, Woolliams: With the greatest respect, I
disagree with you.

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, I am prepared
to test this by putting a formal motion before
the Committee at this time that subject to any
further questions of Mr. Blouin, this Commit-
tee receive no further evidence because it has
already answered the question it set out to
answer and that it rise and report to the
House of Commons. I am prepared to put that
motion and have it tested.

Mr. McGrath: Report what?

Mr. Jerome: Report the answer that it has
received to the question, which is the reason
the motion was left out is because—the an-
swer given by the Chairman and the Clerk—
the Clerk in preparing the draft report did not
include the motion and the Chairman was not
of the opinion that it would be included.

Mr. McGrath: Is that a motion?
Mr. Jerome: Yes it is.

The Chairman: If there is a motion it has
to be put in writing, but while you make it I
would . ..

Mr. McGrath: If that is a motion I will
move an amendment, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Woolliams: We have no seconder yet.

An hon. Member: We do not need a

seconder.
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Mr. Hogarth: For those of us who have not
been here since Confederation, we learned
that at one of these meetings.

Mr. Allmand: Mr. Chairman, I have a sup-
plementary question.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Allmand?

Mr. Allmand: Just to clarify some things
with the Committee, I would like to...

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Allmand;
you are not a member of this Committee.

Mr. Allmand: No, and I...

The Chairman: Before I can hear you I
think it would be appropriate to hear some
other members that have requested ...

Mr. Allmand: It is very brief and it would
clarify a lot of things.

The Chairman: I am sorry, but...

Mr. Allmand: I am the one who told Mr.
Macdonald it was out of order.

The Chairman: However, I ask Mr. Fortin.

[Interpretation]
The Chairman: Mr. Fortin?

Mr. Fortin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I
have some questions to put to Mr. Blouin and
also to Mr. Ollivier, who, I think, will not
only enlight me, but also certain members of
this Committee.

Mr. Blouin, was the contentious resolution
presented or not?

Mr. Blouin:
“presented”?

What do you mean by
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Mr. Fortin: The one Mr. McGrath has spok-
en of.

Mr. Blouin: He submitted his motion to the
Committee and as Chairman of the Commit-
tee, I accepted it. It was put to the vote and
the motion was passed. The proceedings were
in order.

Mr. Fortin: Thus, you are saying two
things: the resolution was presented, and it
was adopted by the majority.

Mr. Blouin: Yes.

Mr. Fortin: And the resolution was in due
form.
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Mr. Blouin: Yes.

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Ollivier, in the proceedings
number 7, Tuesday, December 3, we read on
page 7T—4:

REPORT TO THE HOUSE
Tuesday, December 3, 1968.

The Standing Committee on Transport
and Communications has the honour to
present its

SECOND REPORT

And then it says:

Your Committee recommends that
Order of Reference be enlarged, etc.

its

Mr. Ollivier, from your experience, without
prejudicing the present debate, could you
explain to me how it is, first of all, that this
recommendation be there? Without necessari-
ly naming the author, where does it come
from? And, when it is presented, how does
one decide whether or not it is in accordance
with regulations, and how does one decide
whether it can be submitted to the House or
not? Is my question clear?

Dr. Ollivier (Law Clerk and Parliamentary
Counsel): Yes, your question is clear. I will
begin from the end. You asked me whether
the question was in order or not. I was con-
vinced that it was not in order, but I did not
go to the Committee to state that. As Mr.
Allmand, later on stated verbally to Mr. Mac-
donald, that I did not believe that this motion
was in accordance with regulations. On the
other hand, even if the motion were not in
order, it does not contravene the regulations
because of the fact that it was adopted by the
Committee and no one has objected to it.
That does not mean, however, that I am con-
vinced that it should have been in the second
report.

At the meeting of the 28th of November,
we considered the resolutions that had been
adopted on the 26th of November, I believe,
by the Steering Committee, and then they
were adopted. And after these resolutions
were adopted and sent back again to the
Steering Committee for drafting of the report,
another motion was adopted. But this other
motion did not go any further because no one
proposed that this resolution be sent to the
Steering Committee, that it be drafted in due
form and then submitted to the House.
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Mr. Fortin: Let us keep to that, Mr. Olli-
vier. If I refer to page 7-6 in the same pro-
ceedings report, I read as follows:

December 3, 1968—Mr. Warren Allmand,
—That the resolution passed at the meet-
ing of the Standing Committee on Trans-
port and Communications—

The said resolution read as follows: “be now
rescinded.” And I put the same question to
you as I did a minute ago, concerning this
resolution. What makes it acceptable and such
that the Chairman is obliged to submit it to
the House or not? Do you understand my
question?

Dr. Ollivier: Yes. The Chairman would be
obliged to submit to the House those reports
that were adopted. When a Committee has
ceased its sittings, a subcommittee is set up, a
Steering Committee which is to write down in
due form all the resolutions that had been
adopted and which the Committee intends to
have reported to the House. On November,
28th, there was a study of what the Steering
Committee had previously adopted, and these
two resolutions were reported to the House
in: The first report of the Subcommittee on
Agenda. 1t was those two paragraphs that the
Committee had to consider and report to the
House and everyone was in agreement.
Subsequently, at the very end of the sitting, a
new resolution was adopted that of Mr.
McGrath. I do not think it is important to
know whether that resolution was in order or
not. I am convinced it was not in order and I
said so to Mr. Macdonald and perhaps also to
Mr. McGrath.

As that resolution was adopted at the last
minute, it was not sent to the Steering Com-
mittee to be written up and to be reported.
No one proposed this. This does not mean
that it could not have been part of a subse-
quent report. But there was no need for it to
be included in the report of that particular
day.
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[English]

Mr., McGrath: According to that the whole
report is out of order.

The Chairman: Mr. McGrath, I still recog-
nize Mr. Fortin. He has some other questions.
[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: Thank you, Sir.

Mr. Ollivier, I am asking you a very clear

and specific question: In a Committee, do you
need to have a definite request for a resolu-
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tion to be submitted to the House through the
Chairman?

Dr. Ollivier: No, unless the Committee
decides that it must be part of the report.
Actually, there must be two motions: a
motion to adopt a recommendation of a regu-
lation, and another motion to propose that it
is included in the report to the House.

Mr. Fortin: Now let us deal with the con-
tentious point, Mr. Chairman. When I ask for
a vote, in Committee, is this a specific request
to have the subject of that vote submitted to
the House? In this specific case, the vote was
six against five. That is excellent, it comes to
the assistance of the transport industry in
Newfoundland. But this is not the problem.
According to parliamentary procedure, does
that vote not necessarily mean that it’s out-
come must be submitted to the House?

Dr. Ollivier: No, there are good many votes
taken in Committee that are not reported to
the House. You can adopt any number of
recommendations in a Committee and then
decide to form a Steering Committee entrust-
ed with preparing the report that will then be
approved. Thus, on November 28, resolutions
were adopted that had been adopted in previ-
ous sittings. Then it was said that these reso-
lutions must be part of the report, then this
was put to the vote and decided accordingly.
Thus, these resolutions were voted on twice.
The first time, when they were drafted, and
the second time, when it was decided that
they would appear in the report. Now, the
final resolution was adopted at the very last
minute, and I understand that the Steering
Committee met about half an hour later.

Mr. Fortin: My last question, Mr. Chair-
man, and it is for Mr. Blouin. At the very
outset, Mr. Blouin told you that two other
resolutions had been submitted at the same
meeting, which was proof of your good faith.
Would you please tell me exactly when you
were asked by the Committee to refer these
resolutions to the House?

The Chairman: Page 72.

Mr. Blouin: On page 72. Thank you for
your assistance, Mr. Chairman. If you refer to
page 72, Mr. Fortin, in volume 6, there is a
very explicit statement. Mr. Douglas, first of
all, states:

That is what I was going to ask. I under-
stood you were going to ask for an
order of the House to permit us to deal
with these claims.
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He dealt with the previous resolutions.

[English]
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Schreyer?

Mr. Schreyer: On a point of order, I would
like to have read to the Committee the exact
motion that was moved by Mr. McGrath and
which was voted on and passed.

The Chairman: It is at the end of the...
Mr. Schreyer: It is on page 100.
Dr. Ollivier: I have it here.

Mr. Schreyer: I would like to have it read
from the minutes.

Dr. Ollivier: Yes. It reads:

Resolved,—That the Canadian Trans-
port Commission be requested to post-
pone the implementation of its decision to
abandon railway service in Newfound-
land until such a time as the Committee
travel to Newfoundland to study the
transportation problems of the Atlantic
Provinces.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, has it oc-
curred to you that there is no reference at
all in that motion to the Committee making a
reference to the House of Commons. I know
what Mr. McGraths’ intentions are, but where
in this motion that was voted on is there any
reference to the Committee asking the House
for any kind of expansion of authority?

The Chairman: Mr. Schreyer, this is pre-
cisely the point that Mr. Fortin wanted to ask
Mr. Blouin about.

Mr. Schreyer: The reason I ask that, sir—
and I am still on this point of order—is that
if you look at the motion that Mr. McGrath
was going to move, which appears at page
107 of the Minutes of November 28, you will
see that the motion he intended to move, and
which he read to the Committee was never
put to a vote. It was quite a different motion

that was put to a vote.

Mr. Allmand:
appear in?

What column does that

Mr. Schreyer: It sppears in the right-hand
column on page 108. There you will see the
actual motion that was voted on and passed.
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This motion, of course, makes no reference to
the House of Commons. There is no require-
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ment by the Committee to include it in its
report to the House of Commons. There is
nothing there, and therefore I do not see
what the question of privilege is.

The Chairman: I agree.

Mr. Schreyer: On the other hand, if Mr.
McGrath had moved his first motion and it
had passed and had not been included in the
Committee report, I would say there was a
question of privilege. I therefore think it is
important that we note very clearly that it is
quite a different motion that was finally put
to a vote. There is nothing in the motion that
requires the Committee. ..

Mr. McGrath: If you read the report you
will see that it refers to transportation in the
Atlantic provinces.

The Chairman: Order,
finished, Mr. Schreyer?

please. Are you

Mr. Schreyer: I have read the minutes.
Mr. McGrath: Obviously you have not.

Mr. Schreyer: On a question of privilege,
Mr. Chairman, the hon. member says I have
not read the minutes. I was in the Committee
until November 28.

The Chairman: You raised this point, Mr.
Schreyer, and I think it might be wise, before
we make our report to the House, if we were
to first study this matter and decide if there
has been any breach of privilege and to
explain the reasons this resolution which was
presented by Mr. McGrath was not included
in the report. This is the very point we have
to decide. It might be part of our delibera-
tions within the next few minutes if we can
finish with the witnesses, and both Mr. Fortin
and Mr. Blouin have some questions to ask of
Dr. Ollivier.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: I had a question, and when I
was interrupted, the witness wanted to reply.
Can he now reply?

Mr. Blouin: I was going to say to Mr. For-
tin, Mr. Chairman, that it is clearly men-
tioned here, it was I who replied to the
Chairman of the Committee on Transport and
Communications as follows:

Yes, we are. Next Tuesday a report will
be presented to the House.

Then, Mr. Nesbitt, who was also on the Com-
mittee, said:
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I presume, then, that between now and
Tuesday, Mr. Chairman, the first report
of this Committee will be prepared for
submission to the House and that it will
contain a request to have a hearing on
the claims against the CNR concerning
the Great Slave Lake Railway and also a
request that the Committee, at some date
agreed by the House, visit the Atlantic
Provinces?

I replied:
That is correct. That report will be pre-

sented to the House on Tuesday. Is that
agreed?

The Committee was in agreement. Every-
one agreed, and I did as follows: I presented
those two resolutions in the second report to
the House of Commons.

Mr. Fortin: So, the resolution that does not
appear in the second report—and in my
opinion, it should not—is not there because
such a procedure was not followed in the
case of this resolution. Is that so?

Mr. Blouin: That is correct.
Mr. Fortin: Thank you, Mr. Blouin.

[English]
The Chairman: Gentlemen, does anyone

have any further questions to ask? Mr.
Hogarth.

Mr. Hogarth: I have a question. Mr. Blouin,
I will be very brief. As you probably do not
know except by reference to the evidence, the
Committee met again on Friday, December 6,
which was apparently the day before that you
had been removed from the Committee by
reason of your illness. Is that correct?

Mr. Blouin: That is correct, yes.

Mr. Hogarth: Has any other reason been
given to you why you were taken off that
Committee?

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: No, never. I left hurriedly
because I had a haemorrhage. I was very
concerned and I went to see my physician
who put me in the hospital. And I advised the
whip’s office that I would be absent. There
was absolutely no other reason beside the
illness itself.

[English]
Mr. Hogarth: It was substantially at your

request then that you be removed because of
your illness. Is that correct?
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Mr, Blouin: That is correct.

Mr. Hogarth: I am referring to page 151 of
the Minutes of December 6 of the Transport
and Communications Committee, and this is
what was said by one of the hon. members
there:

—Now how can we proceed when your
government fired the Chairman by last
night by removing him from the
Committee.

I take it that you were not fired.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Blouin: As far as I know, I was not
dismissed from the Committee.

[English]

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Hogarth,
but this is part of the Minutes of the Trans-
port and Communications Committee and I
do not think it would be appropriate for us to
enter into all of the discussions that took
place in that Committee.
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Mr. Hogarth: Except, Mr. Chairman, there
is an allegation here that this man was
removed for what was evidently subsequently
referred to as hanky-panky, and I just want
to clear the man’s reputation. I do not know,
perhaps there is some evidence that we can
get to show that there was hanky-panky, or
something. I want to know from the Chair-
man if he was fired or not.

The Chairman: I agree with your point, but
it might be taken some other place. For the
time being, please. ..

Mr. Hogarth: Mr. Chairman, we have gone
over this thing from stem to gudgeon, so to
speak, and with the greatest respect, this
man’s reputation was very much in issue that
day and it is my respectful opinion that we
should get that cleared up, because I do not
think it is proper that such allegations be
made unless they can be substantiated in fact.
I want to find out from the witness if there
are any facts to substantiate the suggestion
that he was fired.

The Chairman: I would recognize this ques-
tion if this matter had been referred to us by
the House of Commons. However, I realize
that we must link ourselves with our terms of
reference, and after we have got through the
reason this resolution was not put in the
second report which was tabled in the House
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on December 3 we have finished what we
have to do. If we go into this it will generate
into a large debate. If you feel that Mr.
Blouin was wrongly accused of anything, I
think he can defend himself at any time in
the House of Commons. ..

Mr. Hogarth: I would not want to have to
put him in that position.

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. Hogarth,
but. 2

Mr. Hogarth: All right.

The Chairman: ...in all fairness I will
have to hold this question for the moment.

Are there any further questions?
[Interpretation]

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Blouin. I
hope we haven’t unduly hurt your feelings?

Mr. Blouin: Think nothing of it, Mr.
Chairman.

[English]

The Chairman: Gentlemen, I have a motion
I wish to read. If is moved by Mr. Jerome:
That this Committee report to the House of
Commons pursuant to the terms of reference
of the Order of the House dated Tuesday,
December 10, 1968, on the basis of evidence
received at this date.

Do you have a seconder, Mr. Jerome?

An hon. Member: Sir, you do not need a
seconder.

The Chairman: I also have an amendment
by Mr. McGrath to Mr. Jerome’s motion,
which reads: That the resolution dealing with
rail passenger in Newfoundland adopted by
the Standing Committee on Transport and
Communications be included in the Commit-
tee’s second report now before the House.

Mr. McGreth?

Mr. McGrath: I would point out, Mr.
Chairman, that the Committee’s second report
is on today’s Order Paper.

The Chairman: Yes, I agree with you on
that. Had I the right to do it I would perhaps
act otherwise than to rule this amendment to
the motion out of order.

Mr., McGrath: Mr. Chairman, may I speak
to my amendment?
The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. McGrath: My question of privilege, in
the first instance, and my resolution before
the Committee on Transport and Communica-
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tions on November 28 were not, as some peo-
ple might suggest, with a view to creating
mischief. It was a resolution that was passed
after a long and exhaustive examination of
the estimates of the Canadian Transport Com-
mission and of the President of the Canadian
Transport Commission, in relation to a deci-
sion that the Commission had made allowing
Canadian National Railways to phase out the
passenger service of the entire Province of
Newfoundland, which happens to be the
province from which I come.

I, my colleagues and those on the Commit-
tee who supported that resolution would like
to have it come before the House so that it
can be dealt with by the House.

The matter is of some urgency. The Com-
mittee on Transport and Communications is
going to Newfoundland, in its tour of the
Atlantic Provinces, on Sunday, February 16.
The resolution calls for withholding the
implementation of that decision until the
Committee goes to the Atlantic Provinces.
Consequently, it has some urgency.

I hope the members of the Committee will
look at it in that light, and that you, sir, will
allow that amendment to stand. To my mind,
this would be the only reasonable way to
dispose of my question of privilege.

The Chairman: Mr. Schreyer, have you a
comment on the amendment?
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Mr. Schreyer: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I want
to say very briefly that I support Mr.
McGrath’s amendment even though we have
had some harsh words here.

Mr. Cafik: Mr. Chairman, on a point of
order. ..

The Chairman: Just a moment; Mr. Schrey-
er has the floor.

Mr. Schreyer: I support the amendment
because I think it is logical that the Transport
Committee should recommend to the House
and to the Canadian Transport Commission
that there be no change in transportation ser-
vices in Newfoundland until after the Trans-
port Committee has had an opportunity to
visit Newfoundland and to look at the trans-
portation services there.

For that reason it is, in my opinion, logical
to support the amendment.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Murphy?

Privileges and Elections

65

Mr. Murphy: How is it possible for us to
speak to an amendment that is out of order.

The Chairman: No; I want to hear from
honourable members speaking on the amend-
ment, and then I will make my ruling.

Mr. Murphy: I thought you had made the
ruling?

The Chairman: Yes, I made the ruling, but
I allowed Mr. McGrath to make some
remarks in explanation of the amendment.
Mr. Schreyer?

Mr. Schreyer: I support the amendment,
because it is logical to do so, in my opinion,
but that does not mean that I consider there
is to be any legitimate question of privilege
before this Committee. I really do not.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Murphy?

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman, no matter
what my views on Mr. McGrath’s amendment
I feel that had he sought to have the matter
he raises in his amendment determined by
this Committee he should have made it a part
of his motion in the House. He did not.

I may be wrong—I am a newcomer here, as
earlier described by Mr. Woolliams—but from
what little I do know I am sure that had he
made that point a part of his motion before
the House the Speaker would not have ruled
on it as a question of privilege to be deter-
mined by this Committee.

Consequently, I do not think that this Com-
mittee should attempt to expand its own
terms of reference to permit a discussion of
this amendment by this back door method
when we would not have been given that
right by the Speaker in the House.

The Chairman: Order, please. I have heard
the remarks made and the arguments put but
I must repeat that it is not within the scope
of our terms of reference to do here what
perhaps some other committee could do.

You, Mr. McGrath, are a member of the
Transport and Communications Committee.
This amendment could be valid there. But if
you read again the terms of reference under
which I—

Mr. McGrath: Of course, we had to move a
motion in Committee to get it passed; we
have already moved it once, and it has been
passed once.
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The Chairman: Order, order. I think I have
listened with great indulgence to members’
comments.

Mr. McGrath: So have 1.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, I have to state
again, as Chairman of the Committee, that I
must rule your amendment out of order, for
the reason I was going to give—and I will
repeat it—that this motion could be wvalid
some other place but we have to act within
the terms of reference that were referred to
us by the House of Commons, and with your
motion, Mr. McGrath.

If you want some action taken by the
Transport and Communications Committee
you can go and ask them, but the only thing
we have to deal with here is the reason for
your motion, passed by the Committee at the
end of its deliberations on November 28, not
being included in the report tabled in the
House on December 3. You have heard the
evidence.

I have the motion, and I will read it again:
That this Committee report to the House of
Commons pursuant to the terms of reference
of the Order of the House dated Tuesday,
December 10, 1968, on the basis of evidence
received at this date.

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, if I may speak
to that motion, the purpose of it is to take us
back to the terms of reference of the Order of
the House of Tuesday, December 10, 1968,
which as we have heard repeated ad nauseam
up to this point, was to inquire into the rea-
son for the omission of the resolution from
the second report of the Committee on Trans-
port and Communications.

The reason to my putting that motion
before you now is because it is my respectful
opinion that we have found that reason. We
have found it in clear and unequivocal lan-
guage in the answers of the Clerk and in the
answers of the Chairman of the Committee.
Having found that, I think it is the duty of
this Committee to stop now, because we have
completed that inquiry. We have our answer,
and I think we should make our report.
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I would hasten to add, Mr. Chairman, that
I do not wish, nor do I intend in any way, to
abrogate any of the privileges of any of the
members of this Committee or of any of the
members in the House. We were given a job
to do, which was to find a reason. We have
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found the reason. Now I believe we should
report it to the House. It seems to me that
there are certain grievances that have been
expressed here which do not die with the
report of this Committee. This Committee
simply finds a fact and makes its report.
Upon the tabling of our report in the House
of Commons there may very well be certain
members of the house who feel that they
have a point of privilege to express to the
House, based on the answer contained in our
report. If that is the case, then they are cer-
tainly free to do so. Furthermore, there are
certain actions or recommendations that
members can make respecting future pro-
ceedings of committees, because Mr. McGrath
has raised the very legitimate question, in my
personal opinion of how many times he has to
move a motion before it gets contained in the
report. I do not know. I do not know that and
I am sure we should know it, because we are
going to do an increasing volume of extreme-
ly emportant work in committees and when
we do, I am sure all of us will want to know
whether, when a motion is moved, we have
to do something other than simply move and
carry the motion in order to get it in a report.
If we do, what is it?

I really do believe that we have completed
the inquiry that we were instructed to con-
duct. We have found the reason and the prop-
er thing for us to do is to conclude our work
and report to the House; and then and there
any members who are aggrieved I hope will
be encouraged to take the matter through
proper channels to find the answers that they
want to find which I am sure will enlighten
all of us. That is the reason I feel my motion
is proper at this time. I really do believe that
we have finished our work and that we
should report to the House and let those who
wish to carry it further from there.

Mr. Woolliams: I appreciate the argument
that my good friend has made. It is the most
logical one this afternoon. There is only one
thing that bothers me and I come back to it.
We are all members and we should belong to
the greatest gentlemen’s club there is in
Canada, the House of Commons. I am not
here to cross-examine or say there may be
some question of anyone’s credibility, particu-
larly when he is a member of the House of
Commons, and particularly when he is a
friend of mine. But it does bother me—and I
am serious about this—that here is the House
Leader, a Privy Councillor, President of the
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Privy Council, who says:—I have not studied
this; I am advised the resolution was out of
order.” When the President of the Privy
Council made that statement in the House of
Commons I got the feeling and I still draw
the inference from those words—whatever
they mean I do not know—that someone had
advised him the resolution was out of order,
and naturally I thought that was why it was
dragged out of the report and not put in. Now
Mr. Blouin has said that in his opinion may
be that is not the case—from what he knows
about it. But this I would like to know from
Mr. Macdonald: who advised him, when he
was advised and why he made that statement
at page 3587 of December 6. He is a Privy
Councillor. It would not take long and I
thought the Steering Committee was going to
call the President of the Privy Council. It
agreed to do so and now he is not here today
and I will support that motion providing Mr.
Macdonald is called and I think everyone
will. We want to get this thing over with. I do
not like playing games, but I want to know. I
want to know who advised him and what part
he had to play in this. He may say: “Well,
look. I spoke in a hurry. We all do that; we
all make mistakes. I did not mean that it was
out of order in that shape. I was talking to
some lawyer or someone and I did not know
all the terms and conditions of what went on
in the Committee.” If he says that I will
accept Mr. Macdonald’s word. But in the
meantime he says: “Here I was advised the
resolution was out of order,” leaving the
impression that was why it never got in the
report.

My hon. friend over there said he is
satisfied. I will be satisfied if Mr. Macdonald
tells me. Whatever his answer is I am pre-
pared to accept it as a Privy Councillor.
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Some of my friends across there have
opposed this. If there is nothing wrong and
you have nothing to hide—and I do not think
we have anything to hide and I do not think
you have—you are leaving the impression, in
my opinion—and I hope I am wrong—that
there is something, that you people are run-
ning these Committees because you have a

majority—and I am going to speak my mind
today—and sweeping these things under the
table. There may be nothing wrong with what
has happened in this Committee at all, Mr.
Chairman. There may be nothing wrong in
the fact that the resolution got left out, but I
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do not think we can come to that conclusion
until the President of the Privy Council has
passed that and I ask you, Mr. Chairman, to
ask your Steering Committee before you put
that motion, because the motion is going to
pass. I know exactly how these boys line up.
That is why I object to the change in the
rules; that is the only reason. It would not be
any different if a government other than the
Liberal Government were in. I would say to
your Conservative members, “You would
likely be doing the same thing”, or NDP
members, or Social Credit members. And I
am coming to grips...

Mr. Fortin: Not Social Credit members.

Mr. Woolliams: Well, you would behave as
human behaviour.

Mr. Chairman, surely when I was given to
understand that the President of the Privy
Council would be called, I want to know why
he is not called; and if my hon. friends object
to it, would they mind telling me why they
object, because there is an inference here that
he was advised and he dragged it out of the
report.

The Chairman: Order, order. Mr. Wool-
liams, just one moment, please. A few
minutes ago I made some comments about the
desirability of having Mr. Macdonald. With
the evidence we already have it is, in my
view, completely useless to have Mr. Mac-
donald here, but I personally, as Chairman of
this Committee, have no objection whatsoever
to having Mr. Macdonald called if he had
anything to do with the tabling of this report.

I want to express to you in all fairness, in
all frankness, that I personally have no objec-
tion to calling Mr. Macdonald and asking him
some relevant questions about whether he
had anything to do with the tabling of this
report or with the drafting of this report. But
I felt and I still feel that since we have heard
both Mr. Normand and Mr. Blouin state that
they had nothing to do with Mr. Macdonald,
that they did not get in touch with him, that
he did not speak to them, there is no use in

having Mr. Macdonald appear before the
Committee.
[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Chairman, on a point of
order. Mr. Ollivier spoke a while ago to Mr.
MacDonald and he replied to my question by
saying that he had advised Mr. MacDonald.
So, I wish to go back to that point. I do not
necessarily agree with what the previous



speaker said, but I wish to remind you
what ...

[English]

Dr. Ollivier: I imagine that practically every
case that happens has happened before. I was
looking for something the other day in Han-
sard but I found something else. On May 2,
1966, Mr. Frank Howard raised the point—he
did not raise it under a question of privilege,
but he raised it at the late show, that he had
made a motion before a Committee, the
motion had been agreed to unanimously but
had not been reported to the House. And the
question of advising came in. I will not read
the whole thing because it takes a few
minutes, but I will read about three para-
graphs of it. Mr. Howard said:

Some two months ago I moved that the
committee report to the house, and that
the Canada Elections Act be referred to it
for study. That motion of mine was car-
rid unanimously in the committee. There
was not a whisper of objection to the
idea that we should complete the exami-
nation begun in 1963.

We waited in vain for the committee to
report. The chairman, the hon. member
for Northumberland-Miramichi (Mr.
McWilliam) who is not here this evening,
said in answer to one question of mine
that someone had objected to the pro-
ceedings of the committee. But this was a
unanimous decision. So we must ask our-
selves: Who objected, and for what
reason?

I will try to make that a little shorter. Then
he says:

I submit that it is for that reason the
government has refused to carry out the
unanimous recommendation of the Privi-
leges and Elections Committee of 1963,
that the government has interfered with
the privileges of the committee, and did
it by having the committee stymied
through the chairman. I submit that this
has been an unwarranted intrusion into
the affairs of the committee.

Now Mr. Bechard, who was then Parliamen-
tary Secretary to Miss LaMarsh, answered:

Mr. Speaker, on Tuesday, March 1,
1966, at the organization meeting of the
Committee on Privileges and Elections a
motion was made, as stated by the hon.
member for Skeena (Mr. Howard), in
substantially these words, “that the Cana-
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da Elections Act be referred to the com-
mittee for study, examination and
report.”

Then these last words, Mr. Béchard said:

Well, I am told by the chairman of the
committee that it was raised, due to the
fact that the act was not referred to the
committee by the house. The chairman of
the committee then requested opinions on
the matter, not from the Prime Minister
(Mr. Pearson) or the Secretary of State
(Miss LaMarsh), but from the Clerk of
the House, the parliamentary counsel and
the chief of the committees branch. These
three officials stated in writing to the
chairman that the committee acted
beyond its terms of reference.

Since then the chairman of the commit-
tee has requested space for the accommo-
dation of another meeting, at which time
the opinion of the officers of the house
will be brought before members of the
committee for consideration and action. I
must state that there was no interference
by the Prime Minister, the government,
or any member of the government.

In this case I myself gave an opinion to Mr.
Macdonald. I did not give a written opinion,
but I just met him in the hall—and I met
some other members too—and said to him
that I thought that motion was out of order. I
am still willing to debate that, but I do not
think it is before the House. Another point is
that even if this motion is reported to the
House, and is carried in the House, it will not
allow you to travel to Newfoundland. You
would have to have a new order of reference
to the Committee. Even if you accept the
report, if it is accepted unanimously in the
House, it will not allow you to travel. You
will have to have a new reference to the
Committee allowing you to travel from place
to place.

Mr. McGrath: We have that, Dr. Ollivier.

Dr. Ollivier: Yes, I know you have had it
since, but you did not get it by accepting the
report.

[Interpretation]

Mr. Fortin: As I was saying a minute ago,
on the point of order...

The Chairman: Mr. Fortin, would you
please wait the time it will take to deal with
one question only.
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[English]

Mr. Hogarth: In the light of Dr. Ollivier’s
explanation, are you insisting that Mr. Mac-
donald be called?

Mr. Woolliams: No, I will accept Dr. Ollivi-
er’s statement. It would have been, in my
opinion. ..

The Chairman: Would you speak up close
to the microphone, please, Mr. Woolliams.

Mr. Woolliams: Excuse me. I will accept

Dr. Ollivier’s statement if he advised Mr.
Macdonald, and if he advised him after the
report was filed. That is an answer to this
situation. As far as I am concerned I am
quite happy about that. But it does seem to
me—I want every member to think about this
because I am going to be short and I hope
you agree with me—as far as I am concerned
I do not know of anything I have ever done
when I get on these standing committees that
I do not think we are trying to build rules to
fence ourselves in. We say “this term of ref-
erence”, “that term of reference”, “you can-
not do that”. We are out here to actually try
and govern the country and help the govern-
ment. These committees—and I back up my
honourable friend—have never functioned in
the 12 years I have been here. That is my
opinion.
I know when we were the government, I
know what went on then, and I am not being
critical of the government. But it is human
nature to stand together like you fellows have
this afternoon. If we were the government we
would likely be doing it. And as long as you
have got committees like that, that is why—
and I am maybe using a very rude term—I
call this the most “Kangaroo Court”—and
that includes myself because I am here—that
I have ever taken part in. And that is what is
wrong with the committees.

I wish that we could get a different kind of
fellowship, that we could get down to the
facts and do the job. I am not from New-
foundland as you know, but here they did
pass a resolution. They want to have the
Committee look into something that is going
to happen and happen very soon, so that
those people in Newfoundland have railways,
have transportation. Or if they do not have
railways, have substitutes that will be set up
when the railways are taken off. And yet we
are wasting time fighting each other on some-
thing we want for the good of all Canada,
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and there is not one of you who do not agree
with me right now.

[Interpretation]
The Chairman: Mr. Fortin.

Mr. Fortin: Mister Chairman, you said a
while ago that Mr. MacDonald had not been
advised.

The Chairman: I didn’t say that. I am sorry
if I did not express myself clearly, but I
never stated that. I simply repeated what Mr.
Normand and Mr. Blouin had said. Both said
that in no circumstances did they get in touch
with Mr. MacDonald before the report was
tabled in the House, and that it was only time
lost to ask Mr. MacDonald about the legality
of the report. That is what I stated and noth-
ing else.

Mr. Fortin: All right.

[English]

The Chairman: I want to read the motion
first.

Mr. McGrath: Mr. Chairman, we are not all
trained seals. T did not mean to say that, but
you guys do not care about the people who
will suffer.

The Chairman: Order, please. Before I put
the motion I think it would be advisable for
us to have some opinion from Dr. Ollivier as
to what we have to decide, because this mat-
ter has been referred to us as a question of
privilege. And with all respect to the motion,
we have to decide, I think, if there is a
question of privilege. I think it would be
appropriate for us to hear from what we
should consider our expert.

Mr. Jerome: Mr. Chairman, the purpose of
my motion was not in any way to restrict
what we may do with this report, and I think
that that might be a subject for continuing
and very meaningful discussion. I simply
wanted to establish that we set out to find an
answer; we had found it; and it was time to
report. Now we might have discussion for
quite some time over quite a number of meet-
ings as to what should be contained in the
report.
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Dr. Ollivier: I will be very short. I think
this was raised in the House as a question of
privilege and the Speaker decided that there
was a prima facie case of privilege. There-
fore, I do not think we should drop that. I
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think the first thing that this Committee
should decide is whether there is a question
of privilege or not, because that has not been
decided; that has not been resolved. And
after that you could answer the second ques-
tion that was put directly by the order of
reference, namely, why the resolution was
not reported to the House. That is as simple
and as short as I can put it.

Mr. MacGuigan: Mr. Chairman, may I ask
what the effect of this motion would be. Is
the effect of it that we hear no more evidence
and that we proceed to discuss what would be
in the report, as Dr. Ollivier has suggested?

The Chairman: If you want to put your
suggestions before the members of the Com-
mittee as to what should be contained in the
report, we might have to adjourn and have
the steering committee make a draft report
and submit it to another meeting, maybe
tomorrow afternoon or Thursday morning, to
have this report approved by the whole
Committee.

Mr. Hogarth: May we have the question on
this motion? There is no need for that motion
to.be ...

Mr. McGrath: I do not think we need to put
the motion. I think we generally agreed not to
call any more witnesses. So why put the
motion?

Mr. Cafik: Let us put the question, Mr.
Chairman, and at least we can establish
whether we are making some progress.

The Chairman: Would you then, if every-
one agrees, pass the motion and decide to
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refer it to the steering committee for drafting
in the report?

Mr. Hogarth: I might add to that motion.
What does it say?

The Chairman: It states:
That this Committee report to the House
of Commons pursuant to the terms of
reference of the order of the House dated
Tuesday, December 10, 1968, on the basis
of evidence received at this date.

Mr. Hogarth: “.. and that the steering
committee prepare a draft thereof.”

Mr. Skoberg: I conclude from that that it
will come back here, though, to be authorized
by the full committee?

The Chairman: Yes, to approve the report.

Mr. Skoberg: And this still is not satisfying,
though, what Dr. Ollivier has suggested here,
as yet.

Mr. Hogarth: We will have that in the
nature of the report.

The Chairman: I am advised, Mr. Hogarth,
that we do not have to put in the motion the
fact that it has to be referred to the steering
committee. I think it should be agreed then
that we report to the steering committee by
tomorrow, and then we will have another
meeting on Thursday morning. So I will put
the motion, gentlemen. All those in favour of
the motion? All those opposed.

Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned
until Thursday.
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The Chairman: Gentlemen, is it agreeable
that while we are waiting for a quorum we
start with Mr. Hamel, who is the Chief Elec-
toral Officer? Then, as soon as we have a
quorum, we can have a motion to have those
minutes—Is this agreeable?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

The Chairman: First, I would like to
inform you that yesterday we had a meeting
of the Steering Committee whereby we decid-
ed to proceed today with the estimates of the
Chief Electoral Officer, first and which, I
think, we can finish by the end of this meet-
ing. Next week we could start with the case
referred to us by the House of Commons and
raised by Mr. John Roberts. After we have
dealt with the Roberts case, then we could
proceed on Thursday next with the matters
referred to us by the Leader of the House,
Mr. Macdonald. We first have to study the
advisibility of having a permanent electoral
list and second, the Election Act and the four
matters in the way it was agreed by the
House we should proceed.

I think it is appropriate for those who do
not know him, for me to introduce Mr. Jean-
Marc Hamel, the Chief Electoral Officer. At
our last meeting in the fall, when we studied
the estimate for the earlier year Mr. Hamel
was asked if he could get the figures for the
total cost of the last general election on June
25. Mr. Hamel has prepared complete and
detailed figures of those costs by constituency
in both English and French and I would ask
if they could be distributed.
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Before we deal with these figures, if you
have any questions to be asked of Mr. Hamel,
we will, first, proceed with the estimates of
the Chief Electoral Officer which you can find
on page 357 of the Blue Book, Vote 45.

71

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF
ELECTORAL OFFICER

Expenses of elections including the
salary of the Chief Electoral
Offeer: i .5 il bin: s J843: $372,680

45 Salaries and Expenses of Office $171,000

* Total .. $543,680

I will ask Mr. Hamel if he has any com-
ments he would care to make.

Mr. Jean-Marc Hamel (Chief Electoral
Officer): Merci, Monsieur le Président. Good
morning, gentlemen. It is not exactly a state-
ment that I wish to make. I believe, though, I
should provide you with some additional
background information regarding the esti-
mates of my Office as they appear on pages
357 and 358 of the Blue Book, or for those of
you who have this White Book, they are on
pages 58, 60 and 61.

You will notice that our budget is divided
between two main headings or, as we call
them now, activities, namely Administration,
which includes the salary of the Chief Elec-
toral Officer—this constitutes one activity—
and Expenses of Elections, which is our
second activity.

I cannot see that there is some rationale in
this presentation since there is considerable
overlapping between the two activities or
between the two main subjects. However, it
has to be presented in this way because the
Canada Elections Act as it presently reads
provides only that in addition to any sums
payable to the Chief Electoral Officer, only
the fees and expenses of election officers as
well as the expenses incurred for the pur-
chase or printing of election material can be
paid out of the unappropriated Consolidated
Revenue Fund. Other amounts, that is,
amounts required for the payment of the sal-
aries of the staff of the Chief Electoral Officer
including the additional staff required at peri-
ods of peak activities as well as expenses of
administration, have to be appropriated. I
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said that there is over-lapping between the
two activities, so if you wish, I could later on
give you some examples if you are interested.
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For 1969-70, in the budget that is now for
your approval—that is on page 58 of the
White Book and 358 of the Blue Book—there
is an amount of $171,000 to be voted while it
is indicated that ‘we might—I insist on the
word “might”-—spend $350,000 on expenses of
elections, that is on statutory items, that lat-
ter figure cannot be forecast with any degree
of accuracy because there are too many
unknown factors over which we have abso-
lutely no control, such as for instance, the
number of by-elections that may have to be
conducted or the quantity of election material
or supplies that will be purchased during the
year. I may say.that I do not intend to pur-
chase any supplies this year because of the
possible changes that might be recommended
by the Committee following the study of Mr.
Castonguay’s report.

For last year, 1968-69, and this is some-
thing, I believe, that I must point out, if you
look at the book there is an amount of $165,-
000 - mentioned ‘there as the expenses of
administration, but that amount had to be
supplemented by an amount of $170,000
which was granted by the Treasury Board out
of the Department of Finance contingencies
vote when the general election was called. As
I mentioned earlier, the staff has to be paid
out of ‘appropriation and since we could not
foresée last year that there was going to be a
general election, we just budgeted for a regu-
lar year. Therefore, we had to go to the
Board to obtain additional funds at the time
the general election was called, so this $170,-
000 will not be found in the book because it
was in the estimates of the Department of
Finance.

[Interpretation]

As the Chairman told you earlier, you
asked me last year to prepare a detailed
report on the cost of the last general elec-
tions. Copies were distributed. It should be
stressed that the amount of $170,000 that I
mentioned a while ago does not appear in this
report. In fact, the report includes only statu-
tory expenditures. But since the salaries and
current expenses of the office were not
included in the Estimates and since these are
fairly current expenditures, I did not feel it
was necessary to include the additional
amount obtained from the Treasury Board for
the salaries of supplementary staff.
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The last detail, if you will allow me, Mr.
Chairman and gentlemen, the complete
report, the detailed report of the last general
elections, let us say the report I must prepare
according to paragraph 6 of Section 56 of the
Act, was released by the printers last Monday
and I presume that you received a copy dur-
ing the week.
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Mr. Chairman, gentlemen, that is all I have
to say now. If you have questions, I will be
very pleased to try and answer them to the
best of my knowledge.

The Chairman: Thank you very much Mr.
Hamel. Mr. Forest?

Mr. Forest: Mr. Hamel, could you give us
an idea of your staff for the last election, for
this year and for next year?

Mr. Hamel: My regular staff is composed of
21 people, 22 including myself. To conduct an
election, we have to hire at least one hundred
extra people. In fact, during the last election,
we hired altogether 140 people. However,
some were there for only two weeks or three
weeks. This is simply at our headquarters.

As far as electoral districts are concerned
these people are paid from statutory funds
and their salaries are included in the 13 odd
million dollars shown as election cost.

Mr. Forest: You are talking only about
returning officers?

Mr. Hamel: Not only returning officers, but
also election secretaries, deputy returning
officers, poll clerks, enumerators, revision
officers, in other words all the many people
who are needed for elections. These people
are paid from the statutory item.

Those I hire at headquarters are not paid
with the statutory fund. As soon as the elec-
tion is started, I must apply to the Treasury
Board to obtain supplementary funds. These
funds are obtained from the Finance Contin-
gencies item, an item for unexpected situa-
tions. This is a non-refundable item. This is
why I did not have to submit supplementary
estimates. Thus this amount does not appear
in my estimates even if it is money I have
spent. It was spent from the budget of the
Finance Department and not from my budget.
This may seem paradoxical, but this is the
actual case.
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The Chairman: Mr. Fortin?

Mr. Fortin: Mr. Chairman, I presume this
will appear in the report from the Depart-
ment of Finance?

Mr. Hamel: Yes, it will appear from the
total amount of the item called the Financial
Contingencies; I do not know the French
translation. It is quite a large item of about
$100 millions, I believe, and is intended for
contingencies.

Mr. Foresi: Normally, this year or next
year, your staff will be about 20 people.
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Mr. Forest: And when there are no elec-
tions, what kind of a job do you do?

Mr. Hamel: First of all, to clean up an
election takes about a year. The amendments
or modifications to the Act which we intend
to suggest require quite a lot of work, of
drafting and printing. There are by-elections
which we cope with. There are elections in
the Northwest Territories and the Yukon for
which I am Chief Electoral Officer. However
these elections are at fixed dates. They were
held last in 1967; therefore they will take
place in 1970. We also have to prepare for the
next General Election, to review all material
available, what we have to purchase and also
to see what improvements can be brought
about in this material, etc.

Mr, Forest: In the years between elections,
such as this year and next year, do the
returning officers remain on your staff? Do
they review lists or polling districts in their
electoral constituencies?

Mr. Hamel: The returning officers, as they
are called in the Act, are appointed on a
permanent basis, but they are paid only when
they do a specific job. I believe it would not
be right to ask for them to review their dis-
tricts when we know that the next election
won’t take place next month.

This means probably that in 1970 or 1971
these returning officers will have nothing to
do except accounts which might still be out-
standing, some problems which might catch
our attention from the last election, as there
are things which are brought to our attention
at any time, but they are not paid at all. They
have no fixed fees between elections; they
don’t have to review their districts every
year, as in some provinces. They review their
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districts only when I ask them to do so. And I
ask them to do so when I feel that it is useful
or necessary, either before a by-election, for
example if a member resigns or if a vacancy
occurs in the House of Commons. If we
believe there should be a review, then I ask
the returning officer to review his districts at
that time and as close as possible to the gen-
eral election coming. With the population
movements we have, particularly in urban
centres, if it is done one year prior to a
general election, this really creates trouble
and problems.

[English]

Mr. Riichie: I have some questions on the
printing of voters’ lists and the remuneration,
which may not have been adequate. I would
like to ask how you arrive at this. I presume
there is a variation in printing costs through-
out the various parts of the country and so
on. How do you assess the reimbursement of
the cost of printing the voting lists? Also, can
you tell me if you had any complaints about
this?

Mr. Hamel: If I understand correctly you
are dealing with the printing of the prelimi-
nary lists of electors?

Mr. Ritchie: Yes.

Mr. Hamel: Pursuant to section 60 of the
Act, we have what we call a tariff of fees
established by the Governor in Council and
we have a standard tariff throughout Canada.
The printers get a certain amount of money
per name on the list, and there is no differ-
ence between one area of the country and
another. There is only a slight difference in
the process used by the printer, it is 16 cents
per name if he uses a certain process and 18
cents per name, if he uses another process.

We did not have problems during the elec-
tion, if I may say so, in the sense that to my
knowledge no returning officer had any prob-
lem whatsoever finding a competent printer
to print his lists. We had the odd complaint
after the election to the effect that our rates
were not adequate, particularly in some areas
of the country; for instance, in large urban
centres where the salaries that the printers
have to pay are probably much higher than
in smaller centres or in rural areas.
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I may say that we definitely intend to have
a look at the tariff of fees before the next
general election, and, if necessary, to try to




74

obtain some expert advice on the best system
to compensate adequately the printers respon-
sible for printing our lists. Perhaps I should
add that the returning officer is responsible
for the selection of the printer. I have nothing
to do with this; he selects. The only direction
he gets from me—it is in his instructions—is
that he should select a printer in his electoral
district or near his electoral district; a printer
who is competent and has the equipment to
do the job required of him.

Mr. Ritchie: I do not know much about
printing, but do you know if there is a varia-
tion in the normal pricing between large cen-
tres or is this fairly standard across the
country?

Mr. Hamel: At the moment our rates are
uniform across the country.

Mr. Ritchie: You do not actually set these
rates. Did you mention by whom they are
set?

Mr. Hamel:
Council.

They are set by Order in

Mr. Ritchie: Oh yes, but you can set them
yourself; that is, you suggest that such and
such a fee be considered adequate, is that
right?

Mr. Hamel: That is correct.

Mr. Ritchie: You are going to have a look
at them for the next time around?

Mr. Hamel: That is correct.
Mr. Ritchie: Thank you.
The Chairman: Mr. Cafik?

Mr. Cafik: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. May
I direct a question to the witness in respect of
this 1968 general election break-down that
has been presented to us this morning? I am
looking at the column of returning officers
services and expenses. Not being too familiar
with this aspect of government, I would like
to know why there is such a large difference
in certain ridings. For instance, many of them
are in the $5,000 to $6,000 category and two
or three in the Province of Ontario, for
instance, that are up in the $10,000 range.
From my experience I cannot see that they
are any larger ridings; one is, but one does
not appear to be any larger in number. How
is that amount determined?

Privileges and Elections

April 17, 1969

Mr. Hamel: The basic fee of the returning
officer is based on the number of names on
the list of electors. He gets, all in all, I think
about 11 cents, 11} cents per name on the
list, plus in urban areas $1.50 per polling
division for his travelling expenses. In rural
areas he is reimbursed the actual expenses
incurred in ftravelling in his district for
selecting and appointing his enumerators,
selecting and appointing polling stations and
deputy returning officers and so on.

The main variance would probably come
from the difference in the number of names
on the list of electors. By and large the num-
ber of electors per polling division does not
vary that much so in terms of travelling
expenses in urban areas there should not be
that much difference between two districts
which have approximately the same number
of electors. Normally they should have
approximately the same number of polling
divisions; therefore, on that item the return-
ing officer should get approximately the same
fee.

Of course, it is quite understandable if you
look at York Scarborough, for instance, which
has probably twice as many electors. . .

Mr. Cafik: That is understandable.

Mr. Hamel: Yes. To take an extreme exam-
ple, of a rural area it is quite normal for the
returning officer in the Northwest Territories
to spend quite a lot on travelling expenses
because the only way he can get to different
places in his district is by chartering aircraft
and this is a very expensive mode of travell-
ing. However, this is the only way of travell-
ing, he has no choice. In other places he may
use his own car, or some returning officers
will travel much less than others. They will
mainly do their work over the telephone, or
they have people who will do the selecting in
various areas in their districts; they will
make the appointments and then whoever is
appointed will be sworn in by the postmaster
or a notary or a lawyer or a commissioner.

e 1140

Mr. Cafik: Is the returning officer responsi-
ble for all the staff that he may hire during
the course of the election? Is that paid for out
of his amount of reimbursement, or is that an
additional charge?

Mr. Hamel: No, it is paid out of an allow-
ance we give him. There is an item in our
tariff of fees whereby he gets, I think, four
and a half cents for his clerical assistance
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plus two cents or two and a half cents for
addressing envelopes when mailing prelimi-
nary lists of electors to electors.

Some returning officers will hire a small
staff on more or less a full-time basis. Others
will hire a greater staff, but for very short
periods of time. I even know of a few return-
ing officers who used the facilities of some
specialized schools, for instance, for addres-
sing envelopes to mail preliminary lists of
electors to the electors in his district, or busi-
ness schools, for instance. But, this is paid
out of the allowance we give him for that
purpose.

Mr. Cafik: What sort of controls do you
have on his travel? What controls do you
have? Is there a certain allowable mileage
allowance, perhaps a certain number of miles
he is allowed to travel depending on the
nature of his riding or is this just left wide
open?

Mr. Hamel: He has to submit a detailed
account of his travels; in other words, where
he went. He may perhaps add the odd mile
here and there, but if there is any exaggera-
tion I think it is quite easy for us to pick it
up. If he has a relatively small district and he
claims he travelled 25,000 miles I think it is
quite evident there is something wrong
somewhere.

Furthermore, if he happens to spend more
than a day travelling he will have to claim
for his meals, also, if he spends a night some-
where he has to provide us with a voucher
for his hotel. I do not think I am naive
enough to say that we can control to the last
penny, but I think we can exercise a reasona-
bly adequate control over this kind of
travelling.

Mr. Cafik: Thank you.

[Interpretation]
The Chairman: Mr. Fortin?

Mr. Fortin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I
would like to ask a few questions to the Chief
Electoral Officer. I don’t know if other people
did, but as far as our party is concerned, I
had occasion to speak very often to the Chief
Electoral Officer during the last electoral
campaign and almost everywhere in Quebec.
And every time I found out that his services
were tremendous, excellent, quick and effi-
cient. Since I am a member of this Commit-
tee, I shall congratulate him and his team
for all the excellent work he has done. And
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it is not enough to criticize, we should also
congratulate when congratulations are in
order.

Now, I would like to ask a few questions
about printing costs of the preliminary elec-
toral lists and official voters’ lists.

I am under the impression, Mr. Chairman,
I would not like to say anythi